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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Boqji (Deputy Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Tse Michael Nam

Non-executive Director
Mr. Zou Chengjian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Leung Yin Fai

Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph Gss, Jp
Mr. Zhou Chunsheng

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Shek Wing Wa Acis Acs

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Units 2001-2, 20th Floor

Li Po Chun Chambers

189 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch

Ngau Tau Kok Sub-Branch

Shop G1 & G2, G/F.

Phase I, Amoy Plaza

77 Ngau Tau Kok Road, Kowloon
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ANCI-E

LEGAL CONSULTANT

Michael Li & Co.

19/F, Prosperity Tower
39 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F, Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited Not©
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.northasiaresources.com

Note:

o Name changed with effect from 1 April 2017 and formerly known as Codan
Services Limited
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BOARD’S PROFILE
EEE/N

MR. ZHANG SANHUO

— Executive Director (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Sanhuo, aged 51, joined the Company on 7 June 2013 and
now being as an Executive Director, Chairman of the Board, chairman of
nomination committee and member of the remuneration committee of the
Company, graduated from L4 K2 (Shanxi University of Finance &
Economics®) (formerly known as L7881 £ 2Bt (Shanxi Institute of Finance
& Economics®)) with a bachelor’s degree in accounting and obtained a
master’s degree in business administration from &I & £t (Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business). Mr. Zhang has over 20 years of experience in

corporate management in mining, investment, finance and other industries.

MR. HUANG BOQl

— Executive Director (Deputy Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Boqi, aged 51, joined the Company in 6 October 2014 as
an Executive Director, deputy Chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. He obtained his Bachelor degree in Engineering from South
China University of Technology (formerly known as South China Institute
of Technology) in 1987 and a Master degree in Economics from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics in 1999. He was the chairman and
executive director of China Best Group Holding Limited (Hong Kong
listed company, Stock Code: 370) from June 2011 to July 2014. He
was also a chairman, executive director and interlocking chief executive
officer of Goldmond Holdings Limited (Hong Kong listed company, Stock
Code: 8190) from February 2005 to March 2010. He has over 20 years
of experience in corporate management, corporate finance and capital
operation, merger and acquisition transactions. He also has extensive
experience in the field of information technology and electronics industries

as well as mining industry.

* For identification purpose only
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BOARD’S PROFILE
EEE/EN

MR. TSE MICHAEL NAM

— Executive Director

Mr. Tse Michael Nam, aged 59, joined the Company on 12 February
2007 as an Executive Director and currently in charging of the new
mining operations. Mr. Tse has over 28 years of experience in corporate
management in the agriculture, manufacturing, mining and M&A sectors. Mr.
Tse was a registered consultant to Asian Development Bank and has held
key positions in several companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) such as being Executive
Director of Asia Coal Limited (stock code 835) and as the Vice Chairman
and Managing Director of Asia Aluminum Holdings Limited (a company
previously listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under stock code 930).
Mr. Tse holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Biological Science from the
University of California, Berkeley and a Master of Business Administration

degree from the University of San Francisco.

MR. ZOU CHENGJIAN

— Non-executive Director

Mr. Zou Chengjian, aged 74, joined the Company on 7 June 2013 as a
non-Executive Director, graduated from LS #EZ 22T (Shandong Institute of
Mining and Technology*) with a bachelor degree in mining since September
1965. From September 1965 to January 1970, he worked as a mining
technician at 75L& B EA1E (Xishan Mining Administration Ximing
Mine*). He was promoted to the position of executive mining technician
in January 1970 and acted as the mining engineer, the deputy technical
manager and the acting manager of the mining area successively from
January 1970 to April 1980. He served at the development headquarters of
7RIS B & X EE (Xishan Mining Administration Gujiao Mine District*)
from April 1980 to April 1985, during which period he worked as the deputy
group leader of the development group of # L& B FE#HE (Xishan Mining
Administration Ximing Mine*), the chief engineer and the mine manager of
such mine. He then served as the leader of such development headquarters
and its deputy general and production director from April 1985 to April
1995. From December 1995 to December 1997, he acted as the director of
YERAERS /B (Huainan Mining Administration®). He subsequently worked as
the deputy general manager and general manager of & £ A &) (Huajin
Coking Coal Company*) successively from December 1997 to June 20083.
Since 2004, he has acted as the technical consultant of Shanxi Changtong
and had been the dean of &k T4 B aT Tkt L 7A DT (Shanxi

Branch of Hefei Design Research Institute for Coal Industry®).

*

For identification purpose only
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BOARD’S PROFILE
EEE/N

MS. LEUNG YIN FAI

- Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Leung Yin Fai, aged 52, joined the Company on 1 April 2014 and
now being as an independent non-executive Director and chairman of
each of the audit and remuneration committees and member of nomination
committee of the Company, obtained the master degree of commerce
from the University of New South Wales, Australia. She is currently the
managing director of K E Management & Consultancy (Shanghai) Co., Ltd..
Prior to this, Ms. Leung acted as the office head of KCS Management &
Consultancy (China) Co., Ltd. Beijing Branch and Tianjin Branch for 7 years
and worked in one of international CPA firms for 20 years.

Ms. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, CPA Australia and Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants.

MR. LEUNG PO WING, BOWEN JOSEPH GBS, JP

- Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, JP, aged 67, joined the
Company on 26 March 2010 and now being as an independent non-
executive Director and member of each of the audit, nomination and
remuneration committees of the Company, is currently serving as an
independent non-executive director for three other companies listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange namely Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code
0617), Regal REIT (HK Stock Code 1881) and Quali-Smart Holdings Limited
(stock code 1348).
Office of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

Mr. Leung previously served as the Director of the

in Beijing until his retirement in November 2005. During his tenure with the
Government, Mr. Leung has served in various senior positions including
the Deputy Secretary for District Administration (later re-titled as Deputy
Secretary of Home Affairs), Deputy Secretary for Planning, Environment and
Lands, Private Secretary, Government House, and Secretary for Planning
Environment and Lands. Mr. Leung has extensive experience in corporate
leadership and public administration. Mr. Leung was conferred with the Gold
Bauhinia Star honour in 2004 and appointed as a Justice of Peace in 2007,

for his very distinguished services to the Hong Kong community.
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BOARD’S PROFILE
EEE/EN

MR. ZHOU CHUNSHENG

- Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhou Chunsheng, aged 50, joined the Company on 14 June 2013 and
now being as an independent non-executive Director and member of each
of the audit, nomination and remuneration committees of the Company,
is currently a professor-in-residence and was director of the executive
master of business administration program of &£ I# £t (Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business). He was an assistant dean, director of the
executive education program and a professor of finance of J¢#EE I &2
Bt (Guanghua School of Management) of 1t AZ (Peking University).
He is a distinguished economist, a winner of the National Excellent Young
Researcher Grant, an honorary professor at the University of Hong Kong,
a visiting professor at the City University of Hong Kong and a member of
the 1st and 2nd Listing Committee of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr.
Zhou obtained a master degree in mathematics from Peking University and
a doctoral degree in economics (finance) from Princeton University in the
United States. From 1994 to 1995, he was awarded an honorary doctoral
scholarship excellence from Princeton University. During 1997 to 2001, Mr.
Zhou worked for the University of California and the School of Business of
the University of Hong Kong. From April to December 2001, at the invitation
of China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”), Mr. Zhou acted as
a member (deputy level) of the planning and development committee of
CSRC. He also became the head of the finance department of Y%= & 12 £
Bt (Guanghua School of Management). Mr. Zhou is an expert in analysing
financial investment, securities markets, capital operation and financial

derivatives.

Mr. Zhou is an independent non-executive director of each of Zhejiang
Transfar Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 002010: Shenzhen Stock Exchange),
Guosheng Financial Holding Inc. (Stock Code 002670: Shenzhen Stock
Exchange), Kunwu Jiuding Investment Holdings Co., Ltd (Stock Code
600053: Shanghai Stock Exchange), China ITS (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (Stock
Code 1900: Hong Kong Stock Exchange) and Zhonghong Holding Co. Ltd.
(Stock Code 000979: Shenzhen Stock Exchange).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRE

Dear Stakeholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of North Asia Resources
Holdings Limited (“the Company, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the

year ended 31 December 2016.

At the end of the year 2016, one of the coal mines operation went
smoothly. In the past few years, the government enhanced its environmental
protection efforts at the national level, especially formulating more clear
guidance on the safety and environmental requirement standards for
coal mines in Shanxi. Lots of the coal mines operation in Shanxi had
been ordered to suspended for rectification in order to implement the
safety measures for coal mines. As disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 3 February 2017, all the reconstruction and technical
improvement of Fuchang Mine has been completed, inspected and
approved by the relevant authorities in Shanxi. It is expected that the
commercial operation of Fuchang Mine will be commenced on or before 30
April 2017.

During the year 2016, in order to expand the business of the Company
and achieve sustainable development of the Company, management of the
Company was optimistic on recycling economy of agricultural plantation,
bio-cleaning fuel and fine processing for recycling through market analyses.
Therefore, the Group had explored the new business segment which was
expected to provide a good future prospect to the Group. The Group has
currently in Cambodia engaged in (i) planting cassava; (i) producing and
processing of cassava starch; and (i) exporting and trading the cassava
starch. For further expanding this segment of business, the Group will
acquire some lands in Cambodia for cultivation of cassava, to build up the
factory for processing the cassava starch and to produce fine-processed
products with higher value. The Group would develop recycling industrial
economy focusing on downstream products, and to construct product
research and development base and eco-industrial park. Meanwhile,
the Group had approached certain famous research institutions and
organizations to seek for cooperation in respect of developing new products
and optimizing technical process and explore with well-known enterprises in

the industry for the possibility of joint venture and cooperation.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRE

The demand for cassava products (premium cassava flour, starch, syrups
and glucose, ethanol and new energy derivatives) is expected to rise rapidly
due to urbanization, currency devaluation and continuing fluctuation in grain
prices among the Asian countries. Cassava can be used as a substitute
for higher-priced raw materials. With growing market demand for cassava,
increased production can now generate increased benefits. The Group
would develop some innovative processing technology (in the field and at
the factory) that would change dramatically the way cassava is perceived,

grown and processed around the world.

This segment will enable the Group to broaden its business scope and

revenue base which is in the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Further, the Group will continue to look for investments or acquisitions
project opportunities suitable to the sustainable development of the
Company, in order to enhance the value of the Company and to create

higher returns for shareholders.

At the same time, | would like you to take this opportunity to thank our
management and the entire staff for their loyalty and dedication. | would
also like to thank our shareholders and business partners for their trust and
confidence in the board of directors and management of the Group. With
the concerted efforts of all members of the staff, | believe the business
of the Group will continue to thrive and generate greater return for our

shareholders.

Mr. Zhang Sanhuo

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of Results

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$197,765,000 (2015: HK$63,923,000) which represented
an increase of approximately 209%. Due to the increase in sales of
coking coal and revenue from rendering computer technology services,
the revenues of mining segment and system integration services and
software solutions segment were significantly increased to approximately
HK$93,225,000 (2015: HK$5,590,000) and HK$94,912,000 (2015:
HK$58,333,000) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded gross loss of
approximately HK$27,947,000 (2015: gross profit HK$17,170,000), mainly
caused by an adjustment for amortisation of mining rights included in cost
of sales of approximately HK$94,882,000.

The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$191,198,000 as
compared to a loss of approximately HK$3,772,732,000 last year. The
turnaround from loss to profit was mainly due to the impairment loss
reversed in respect of the mining rights and property, plant and equipment,
change in fair value of derivative component of convertible loan notes and
decrease in administrative and operating expenses and finance costs.
The impairment loss reversed in respect of mining rights and property,
plant and equipment amounted to approximately HK$900,880,000 and
HK$143,517,000, respectively, arising from the increase in fair value of
mining operation. The increase in fair value of mining operation was mainly
due to the expected increase in coal price. Greater China Appraisal Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuer, estimated the fair value of the
coal mining business based on income approach using a discount rate of
14.98% (2015: 15.84%) and prevailing coal price of RMB700 per tonne
(2015: RMBB680 per tonne) based on information obtained from Shanxi. The
major reason for the increase in the coal price was due to the volatility of
business cycle on coal market in the PRC. The mine’s commercial operation
was delayed by an average of 9 months as compared with 2015 due to the

suspension of construction and development works of our mines.

The operation of our mines with exception of Fuchang Mine was further
delayed due to the inspection on the rectification measures required by
the notifications issued in 2015 and January 2016 by relevant authorities
and the implementation of rectification measures by other mines required
by each natification issued in May 2016. Please refer to Business Review

section for details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

Greater China Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer, has consistently applied the income approach for the valuation
of the Lexing Group as at 31 December 2015, 30 June 2016 and 31
December 2016. The key assumptions and parameters in the valuation of
Lexing Group as at 31 December 2016, as at 30 June 2016 and as at 31

December 2015 are set out as below:

Wﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁ@“ﬂaﬁm

—AFt+ZA=+—H - ZF—~
7~ +B&:—*—¢+:H:+*BZ%
EERERBAE LEEER -_T—XRF+=
ﬁ*+*5‘%:§*F¢ﬂﬂ*+H&%:§
—REFTZA=+T—BIZEEMRZEZERR

IEE
Bn=
A=

A‘ﬁ BB
W M

31 December 2016

REJTEER -2 LA
2B

SHEINAT

30 June 2016

Methodology Income Approach Income Approach
5 -XE+ZA=+-8 ZE-R"FRA=TtH
WA E W
Key Assumptions
FTERR
Production Schedule 1. AERRR
- Operation Starting Date -&KERH
Bolong Mine MERE Fourth quarter of 2017 Second quarter of 2017
—E-tEEMF “E+FEC
Fuchang Mine BE®RR Second quarter of 2017 Second quarter of 2017
“E-tE%E=F SR
Jinxin Mine SERR Fourth quarter of 2017 Second quarter of 2017
“E-tFENF —tEFE-F
Liaoyuan Mine BERERE Fourth quarter of 2017 Second quarter of 2017
“E-tEENFE —tFE=
Xinfeng Mine BERE First quarter of 2018 Third quarter of 2017
“E-N\EE-F —E-tFE=
Coal Price (per ton) 2. KE(EHM) RMB700 RMB700
AR¥7007T ARE7007T
Discount Rate (Post-tax) 3. BAIRE (Fi%%)  14.98% 15.37%
Mine Operating Costs 4. BELEKAR  Based on Technical Report  Based on Technical Report
issued by JT Boyd in 2017 issued by JT Boyd in 2012
BETEER-Z—tFHE RETHEEAZZ 1%
ZRMBRE ZEiTEE
Capital Expenditures 5. BAREH Based on Technical Report  Based on Technical Report
issued by JT Boyd in 2017 issued by JT Boyd in 2012
BREITEER-S—tEHE RETEER_T— 7%
ZRMRE ZEiEE
Allowable annual working 6. BEFETER 276 days 276 days
days
276H 276H
Production schedule 7. HEREE Based on Technical Report Based on Technical Report
- Annual Production -FEE issued by JT Boyd in 2017 issued by JT Boyd in 2012

RBTERR-_T—=
B

FTE

31 December 2015

Income Approach
—hRE+ZA=+—H

WA

Second quarter of 2017
—tFE=F

Second quarter of 2017
—tFE=F

Second quarter of 2017
—tEE-F

Second quarter of 2017
—tFEC

Third quarter of 2017

“TtFE=F

RMB680
AE¥680TC

16.84%

Based on Technical Report
issued by JT Boyd in 2012

RETEER T —F 1%
2 B E

Based on Technical Report
issued by JT Boyd in 2012

BEJTEER T ——F 7%
Z B E

330 days

330H

Based on Technical Report
issued by JT Boyd in 2012

BEITHER - B——E7%
RS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

The impairment loss recorded for the period ended 30 June 2016 was
mainly due to the reduction in allowable annual working days from 330 days
to 276 days. This update was made based on (BIR 2% HIEFREA REE
IR £ EE MR EEM @A) (Notification of the Strict Compliance
with New Production Capacity for Coal Mines in Shanxi Province) issued by
Shanxi Coal Industry Office on 5 April 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, a reversal of impairment loss was
recorded. This was mainly due to the positive updates on projected mine
operating costs, projected capital expenditure and the projected annual
production based on the updated technical report prepared by JT Boyd in
2017. These positive factors outweighed the negative effect of the reduction
of allowable annual working days, which resulted in a reversal of impairment

loss.

Following up with the change in key assumptions, the reasons for the

change of each parameter are listed below:

(@) The update of the operation commencement date was based on the

latest commercial operation of each mine;
(b) The update in coal price was based on latest market data;

(c) The discount rate was changed to reflect the changes in prevailing

market data;

(d) The mine operating costs, capital expenditures and projected annual
production schedule were updated since an updated technical report

prepared by JT Boyd was available in February 2017; and

(e) Allowable annual working days was updated based on (B & & K iE
KEGRERIZRITET EER NEBEENBA) (Notification of
the Strict Compliance with New Production Capacity for Coal Mines in

Shanxi Province) issued by Shanxi Coal Industry Office on 5 April 2016.

More details regarding impairment testing of mining rights are also set out in

Note 33 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Greater China Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer, has consistently applied the income approach for the valuation of the
Lexing Group as of 31 December 2015, 30 June 2016 and 31 December

2016. There is no change in the valuation method used.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWR D

The increase in fair value of derivative component of convertible loan notes
for the year 2016 was approximately HK$126,851,000.

The administrative and operating expenses for the year 2016 was
approximately HK$174,064,000 (2015: HK$223,576,000) which
represented a decrease of approximately HK$49,512,000 or 22% when
compared with the year 2015, mainly due to the decrease in staff costs of
approximately HK$36,861,000.

The finance costs for the year 2016 was approximately HK$272,652,000
(2015: 371,978,000) which represented a significant decrease of
approximately HK$99,326,000 or 27% when compared with the year
2015. The decrease in finance costs was mainly due to decrease in
interest expenses on convertible loan notes and promissory notes after
the redemption of 2013 Convertible Loan Note B, Promissory Note B, and
Promissory Note C in March 2016. Please refer to Business Review section

heading Reduction of debts for details.

FINAL DIVIDEND

Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

During the year 2016, the Company has worked diligently towards (i)
developing agricultural and processing business; (i) developing system
integration and software solution business; (iii) fund raising for the operation
of business: (iv) reduction of debts; and (v) strive for resumption of the
construction works for the five coal mines located in Shanxi Province, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) which had been suspended by the
PRC authorities.

Developing agricultural and processing business

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 25 November
2016, the Group intends to commence the business of (i) cultivation of
cassava; (i) building/acquiring a processing plant to process the cassava
into starch and other products; and (i) marketing and sales of cassava
starch. During the year of 2016, the Group had commenced the operation
of processing cassava into starch and marketing and sales of cassava
starch. The Group is seeking for suitable lands for cultivation of cassava
and building manufacturing plant to process the cassava into starch and
other products. In year of 2016, this segment contributed the revenue of
HK$9,628,000.

CE-AFABRBRERRBZTETARD QF
{32 N4 /126,851,000 7T ©

TE-RFEZITBREEE R R174,064,000%
T (ZZ—H4F:223,576,00087T) K _-_ZT—Hh
FR D #949,512,0008 70 5k22% EEHMKE L
R AR /) #936,861,00078 T AT EK ©

CE-RFEZBAKARL /272,652,000 7T (=
T — A F 371,978,000 L) B ZE—RAFK
8 8 > 4999,326,0007%8 7T 527 % ° Bl & AKX AR 4>
FTERAR T ANFZABERBE_T—=F
AHRBRERTEE BEANZBRRCHEAREIRY
% BEURARERZERALZEREZFERX
AT R ER 2 E SR — SR E—

Be

RKEIR B

EEfERRERHE_T-R"F+_A=1+—H
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EHEE

R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

Developing System Integration and Software Solution
Business

During the year of 2016, the Group put a lot of resources into our System
Integration and Software Solution Business to promote our products and
services to our existing and new customers. As a result, the sales of System
Integration and Software Solution Business recorded the significant growth
of revenue by approximately HK$36,579,000 or 63% to approximately
HK$94,912,000 (2015: HK$58,333,000).

Fund raising for the operation of business

As disclosed in (i) announcements dated 3 December 2015, 15 January
2016 and 18 March 2016; (i) circular dated 31 December 2015; and (iii)
supplementary circular dated 20 January 2016 of the Company respectively,
the Company entered into the placing agreement dated 3 December 2015
(as amended and supplemented by a supplemental placing letter dated 15
January 2016) with placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent, as
agent of the Company, agrees to procure on the best effort basis not less
than six placees, who will be independent third party, to subscribe for the
placing shares, being up-to 38,000,000,000 shares at the placing price of
HK$0.01 per placing share. The closing price per share on 27 November
2015, being the last trading date prior to the entering of the placing
agreement, was HK$0.061. The placing was completed on 18 March
2016 and the allotment and issue of 38,000,000,000 shares to more than
six placees, who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent
third party, at the price of HK$0.01. Net proceeds of HK$363.9 million
from the placing were used to redeem the 2013 Convertible Loan Note B,
Promissory Note B and Promissory Note C which due to mature on 23 June
2016 and 2 July 2016 respectively, and to settle the related interest of the
Group. The balances of net proceeds from the Placing of approximately

HK$10.9 million are used for general working capital of the Group.

Reduction of debts

As the above mentioned, the Company redeemed US$16,500,000 of the
2013 Convertible Loan Notes B and US$20,500,000 of the Promissory
Note B and US$7,000,000 of the Promissory Note C on 18 March 2016.
Moreover, principal amounts of approximately HK$1,001,287,000 of
the 2013 Convertible Loan Note A were converted into 14,304,099,595
ordinary shares on 30 December 2016.

After the said redemption and conversion of Convertible Loan Notes and
Promissory Notes, the debt burden of the Company had been lightened and

the future interest expenses would be lessened.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR D

Strive for resumption of the construction works for the five
coal mines

During the year, the re-construction and improvement works on Fuchang
Mine has been completed. It is expected that the commercial operation of
Fuchang Mine will be commenced by 30 April 2017. The other mines are
still implementing the rectification measures required by the each notification

issued by relevant authorities in May 2016.
Details are stated in the Coal Mining section below.

Coal Mining

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 9 March 2016,
our coal mines in Shanxi Province had been suspended for implementation
of safety requirements for coal mines requested by several notices issued
by relevant authorities in Shanxi Province.

On 29 January 2016, IUFE& E ik T#EE (Shanxi Provincial Coal Industry
Office*) issued (ILFAEREBEEEEZHUETEMFRBA) (Notification
of Basic Requirements on Inspection for Resumption of Production and
Construction for Coal Mine in Shanxi Province*) which clearly defined further
requirements by the relevant authorities in inspection on the resumption of

production and construction.

On 25 May 2016, Shanxi Provincial Coal Industry Office together with ||
TR % 2 85525 (Shanxi Administration Bureau of Coal Mine Safety*)
issued (M EN B ILTEEE —FRICEBEALEN BB BER
KEWIETZREBA) (Notification of Effective Further Prevention for
Significant Disaster in Shanxi Province*) which required specific check
on prevention measures on gas leakage, coal mine flooding, fire, land
pressure, hoisting-and-transport, roof collapse, and grime. During the
year, the rectification measures of Fuchang Mine has been completed
and applied to relevant authorities for the inspection on the rectification
measures. The re-construction and improvement works on Fuchang Mine
has been completed. It is expected that the commercial operation of
Fuchang Mine will be commenced on or before 30 April 2017. For other
coal mines of the Group, the relevant authorities are inspecting rectification
measures as required by the notifications issued in 2015 and January 2016
and other mines are implementing the rectification measures required by
the notification issued in May 2016. After the completion of rectification
measures required by the notices, the Group shall apply for inspection on
the implementation of the required rectification measures. After inspection
by relevant authorities on rectification measures, the Group shall apply for

resumption of construction and development works of our mines.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

Due to the uncertainty on timing of completion of rectification measures and
inspection on rectification measures by relevant authorities for mines with
exception of Fuchang Mine, under the best estimation of the management

of the Group, the schedule of the respective mines are set out below:

Liaoyuen Mine FERER
Jinxin Mine TERE
Xinfeng Mine ZERER
Bolong Mine SHEERE &
Fuchang Mine BERER

The Board will continue to use its best endeavours to satisfy the conditions
set forth by the relevant PRC authorities with an aim to resuming the
construction and development work of the Group’s mining sites located in
Shanxi Province as soon as possible. We will keep Shareholders updated

for the development as and when appropriate.

For the details of historical development activities of our five mines and their

latest status, please refer to our past annual reports and announcements.
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Expected
completion date of
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and improvement
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EERREIRZ
FEFH5EAK B #R

31 May 2017
T—+FEA=+—H

30 June 2017
—E—+tFXA=1+H

30 September 2017
—E—+FNA=TH

31 July 2017
F-LFLA=+—H

Completed
=174

Expected

date of the
commencement
of commercial
operation
EHEXEEZ
sCEIl=E

30 September 2017
—E—tFAA=+H

31 October 2017
T-tF+A=+-8

31 January 2018
T-\F-A=+—*H

30 November 2017

—E—t+tF+—H=+H

30 April 2017
—E—tFHmOA=+H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

Resources and Reserves of Mines

The mines and projects owned by the Group have significant coal reserves
and resources under the JORC Code (2012 Edition).
Competent Person’s Report from John T. Boyd Company dated January

According to the

2017, the total aggregate proved and probable recoverable reserves of coal
in Liaoyuan mine was approximately 7.91 Mt, the total aggregate proved
and probable recoverable reserves of coal in Jinxin mine was approximately
3.60 Mt, the total aggregate proved and probable recoverable reserves
of coal in Xinfeng mine was approximately 7.52 Mt, the total aggregate
proved and probable recoverable reserves of coal in Bolong mine was
approximately 21.86 Mt and the total aggregate proved and probable
recoverable reserves of coal in Fuchang mine was approximately 5.15 Mt.

JORC Mineral Resources and Reserves as of 31 December 2016:

BREECERERRE

REBEMER 2 ERRIEEREBEJORCHA (=ZF
—ZFRA)FE BHERERSLE IRELN
ﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁ”aﬁﬂjﬂzEﬁﬁi%:;—ti—ﬁzA
BRATHRE  BRERZFE XK E 2
HEHEELL7IEEN SEBRR BT R
AT El A EEEEAS60E BN BIERER ZF
R AEER AT g B AR R R K A7 50/ B A
BlR 2 B8 LR AT e B R 2 3£4021.86 8 8

e R EEE 2 FE RS AT U El AR = A
5158 BME

BE-—F—Af+-F=+—AZJORCEEHL
REREHE:

MINING RIGHT AREAS

REEE

In-Place Resource (Mt)

Recoverable Reserves (Mt)

Marketable Reserves (Mt)

FUERE (FEM) TRER (FEM) TERE (FEM)

Processing % of

Mine Measured  Indicated Inferred Total Proved  Probable Total Yield % Proved  Probable Total  Reserves

WE 79 24 i @t #E e @y mIEkE #E e EHY hHE

(%) (%)

Bolong 17.94 20.66 - 386 10.54 11.32 21.86 93 9.79 10.52 20.31 48
i

Fuchang 6.94 2.31 - 9.25 4.05 1.10 5.15 92 3.73 1.02 475 11
&E

Jinxin 2.09 4.78 0.44 7.31 1.16 2.44 3.60 95 1.10 2.33 3.43 8
EX

Liaoyuan 9.07 6.57 2.58 18.17 4.42 3.49 791 94 414 3.30 7.44 17
R

Xinfeng 6.59 6.53 - 13.12 414 3.38 7.52 93 3.84 312 6.96 16
&

Total 42.63 40.85 2.97 86.45 2431 21.73 46.04 22.60 20.29 42.89 100
it
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR D

The reserves and resources table was compiled by the technical advisors

from J T Boyd. Their identities and qualifications are:

Mr. Ronald L. Lewis — Chief Operating Officer and Managing
Director, BS (Civil Engineering)

Mr. Lewis has over 45 years of experience in assessment and evaluation
of coal mining companies, with specialized expertise in the areas of coal/
mineral reserve estimation, opencut and underground mine analysis, and
economic assessment of mining operations. He is a Registered Professional
Mining Engineer within the United States and a recognized expert in mining
property valuation. Mr. Lewis is a Registered Member of the Society for
Mining, Metallurgy, and Exploration, Inc., and is qualified as a Competent
Person as defined in the JORC Code and HKEx Chapter 18 requirements.
Mr. Lewis accepts overall corporate responsibility for the CPR and has

independent status as required by Rule 18.22.
Mr. James F. Kvitkovich — Vice President, BS (Mining Engineering)

Mr. Kvitkovich has 34 years of experience in assessment and evaluation
of underground coal mining operations throughout the world. He is a
Registered Professional Engineer within the United States and is highly
experienced with regard to reviewing and evaluating continuous miner and
longwall (LW) mining operations. Mr. Kvitkovich is a Registered Member of
the Society for Mining, Metallurgy, and Exploration, Inc., and is a Competent
Person as defined in the JORC Code. Mr. Kvitkovich has independent
status as required by Rule 18.22.

Mr. Paul D. Anderson — Director of Geological Services, BS (Geology)

Mr. Anderson is a Certified Professional Geologist (AIPG) with 40 years of
professional experience in exploration, evaluation, and development of coal
and mineral deposits. Mr. Anderson is a Registered Member of the Society
for Mining, Metallurgy, and Exploration, Inc., and a member of the American
Institute of Professional Geologists, and is qualified as a Competent Person
as defined in the JORC Code. Mr. Anderson has independent status as
required by Rule 18.22.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR D

Mr. Jisheng (Jason) Han — Managing Director — China, MS (Mining
Engineering)

Mr. Han has 20 years of mining industry experience in both China and the
United States with extensive background in evaluation of underground
mines in China. His technical specialty is geotechnical assessments of
underground openings. Mr. Han is a Registered Member of the Society for
Mining, Metallurgy, and Exploration, Inc., and is a Competent Person as
defined in the JORC Code. Mr. Han has independent status as required by
Rule 18.22.

Mr. Rongjie (Jeffery) Li — Senior Geologist, MS (Geology)

Mr. Li has 10 years of consulting experience in coal and sedimentary
deposits on design and management of exploration programs, and
interpretation of exploration data. Mr. Li is a Registered Member of the
Society for Mining, Metallurgy, and Exploration, Inc., and is a Competent
Person as defined in the JORC Code.

System Integration Services and Software Solutions

The PRC government’s continuously promotion in “internet+” and strong
encouragement in applying huge data analysis in different areas has brought
great prospects to our System Integration and Software Business. The
Group seized the policy opportunities and successfully promoted our IT

products and services to our customers.

As a result, the turnover for the year of 2016 significantly increased in
comparison to the last year mainly due to the increase in revenue from our
system integration services. At the same time, the gross profit margin was
improved as a result of increase in revenue from rendering of computer

technology services and software.

In year of 2016, the PRC economic slowdown caused the suppression in
demand for automated teller machine (“ATM”) by banking industry. Besides,
the keen competition from local manufacturers of ATMs also affected the

sales of our ATMs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
a higher environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The Group
understands a better future depends on everyone’s participation and
contribution. It has encouraged employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social activities which
benefit the community as a whole. The Group maintains strong relationships
with its employees, has enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has
provided high quality products and services to its customers so as to

ensure sustainable development.

A separate Environmental, Social and Governance Report conducted
by a professional third party will be published in compliance with the

requirements of the Listing Rules.

OUTLOOK

As the information technology expanded rapidly in these years, many kind
of high tech products show up in the market and some of them spread
and reverse the traditional concept of consumption. Such as the pre-
paid card system, mobile banking, Near Field Communication featured
money transfer, all these would be a pressure for the ATM business of
the Company. Hence, the Company are now preparing to diversify the

resources to other segment of business.

The Company will continue monitoring the progress of the resumption of
construction work of the coal mines in Shanxi Province, the PRC, in order to

meet the expected timetable.
Also, the Group will continue to identify suitable investments, acquisitions

and project opportunities in order to enhance the value of the Company and

to create higher returns for shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Total Equity

As at 31 December 2016, the Group recorded total assets of approximately
HK$9,64 1,255,000 (2015: HK$9,221,849,000), which were financed by total
liabilities of approximately HK$7,559,440,000 (2015: HK$8,614,188,000)
and total equity of approximately HK$2,081,815,000 (2015:
HK$607,661,000). The Group’s total equity as at 31 December 2016 was
significantly increased by HK$1,474,154,000 or 243% to HK$2,081,815,000
as compared to approximately HK$607,661,000 as at 31 December
2015, mainly due to the improvement in capital structure as shown by the
significant increase in share capital and share premium, after the share

placing and conversion of convertible loans notes during the year of 2016.

Gearing
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s gearing ratio as computed as
the Group’s other borrowings, promissory notes, liabilities component of
convertible loan notes and obligation under finance lease over total equity
was approximately 23% as compared to approximately 250% as at 31
December 2015,

significant increase in share capital as well as reduction of debts.

indicating a largely improved financial position after the

Liquidity
The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$36,943,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$34,461,000). The

Group did not have any bank borrowings for both years.

Based on the latest working capital forecast prepared by the management
with reference to the Group’s current business plans and the financial
support by Shanxi Coal Transportation and Sales Group Co., Ltd., the
management considers that the Company will be able to finance its working

capital requirement.
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Funding raising activities — Placing

As mentioned in the Business Review section, the Company entered
into a placing agreement dated 3 December 2015 (as amended and
supplemented by a supplemental placing agreement dated 23 December
2015 and supplemental placing letter dated 15 January 2016) with a placing
agent and completed to allot and issue all 38,000,000,000 shares at the
placing price of HK$0.01 per placing share on 18 March 2016. The net
proceeds from the placing are approximately HK$374.8 million and have
been used for general working capital (including settlement of interest
expense and reduction of debts) as intended. The summary of use of

proceeds from the placing is set out as below:

FEEH-EE

BN FE TS BB — B Pl - AN B B AL S R IRET
HBHA-—ZT—RAF+-_A=RAzE&EH# (KA
PBA-T-—HE+_A-_t=ZB2@#xREmZ
RBEA-T—A"F—A+tHAAZHARS R
EEIRMETR)  WR=_T—"F=A+NBREKE
% 2 %17 2 #038,000,000,0000% f% 15 - BEL E B B
FRREERK0.01E T - B E FEATSRIEFE
#)/374,800,000/ 7T - B iR E AR AE—RE
BES (PREIMNMERASZRAE) - Bl &EFEA
SRIBABEMAT

HK$ million

BEET

Net proceeds from the placing BlE EBEMERBEE 374.8
Less: Reduction of debt and B ORERINAFIERE

settlement of interest expense (363.9)

Operating expenses KR (10.9)

Balance as at 31 December 2016 RZE—RNF+A=+—HZ&#H -

For details, please refer to Business Review section.

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2016, a share charge had been created over entire
issued shares of Topasia Computer Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company to the Lender. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 13 July 2015.

There was no additional asset pledged during the year 2016.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources, from equity and/or debt financial activities. All financing methods
will be considered so long as such methods are beneficial to shareholders
as a whole. Subsidiaries in the PRC use internally generated resources
to finance their working capital requirements. Bank deposits are mainly
in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States dollar
(‘US$”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
The Group had no material contingent liability as at 31 December 2016
(2015: nil).

The Group has capital commitments for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment which were contracted but not provided for
as at 31 December 2016 of approximately HK$313,879,000 (2015:
HK$328,555,000).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group mainly earns revenue in
HK$, RMB and incurred costs in HK$, RMB and US$. Although the Group
currently does not have any foreign currency hedging policies, it does not
foresee any significant currency exposure in the near future. However, any
permanent or significant changes in RMB against HK$, may have possible

impact on the Group’s results and financial positions.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed approximately 976 (2015:
1,012) full time staff in the PRC and Hong Kong. The staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments) for the year 2016 amounted to approximately
HK$89,327,000 (2015: HK$126,158,000). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, working experience and the
prevailing market price. Other employee benefits include mandatory

provident fund, insurance and medical coverage and training programs.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (each a “Director”) of the Company is
pleased to present the reports and the audited financial statements of the
Company together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group’s
principal business activities during the year were principally involved in (i)
the sales of information technology products, system integration, software
development, technology service and comprehensive product solution; (i)
geological survey, exploration and development of coal, sales of coking coal
and coal trading; and (i) cassava plantation, processing and trading. Details
of the material activities of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are set out in

Note 41 of the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital as required under the Listing Rules throughout the

year ended 31 December 2016 and as at the date of this report.

RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the

consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 188.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group, prepared on the basis set out in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. This summary does not

form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS 4
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“E-X§ -T-nf CE-WE —T-=F C—E--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR FiET FHT T FiET
REVENUE BA 197,765 63,923 106,246 129,737 86,147
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION ~ BBiAT#F (&) 310,070 (4,450,916)  (1,100,171)  (4,203,178) (114,044)
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT Fras (BX)ER (118,872) 678,184 177,040 56,980 (320)
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE AT IR IR AT
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS #A (F8) 191,198 (3,772,732) (923,131)  (4,146,198) (114,364)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER (83,593) 1,399,451 470,623 198,238 632
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO A2 F#H A
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY AL ERA (B1E) 107,605 (2,373,281) (452,508)  (3,947,960) (118,732)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ¥ E £ RFEREZ
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-XE  ZZT-n% “E-mE ZT-Z=% ZZ-CZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FET FEx FER
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE 9,403,806 9,080,025 12,739,018 12,826,791 567,343
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE 237,449 141,824 136,704 275,091 82,076
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE (5,248,475)  (4,607,195)  (4,043,871) (3,063,712 (359,906)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEEFE (5,011,026)  (4,465,371)  (3,907,167)  (2,788,621) (277,830)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELERRBEE
LIABILITIES 4,392,780 4,614,654 8,831,851 10,038,170 289,513
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAE (2,310,965)  (4,006,993)  (7,292,008)  (8,349,934) (40,756)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER (2,935,887)  (2,945,506)  (4,531,259)  (4,900,904) 2
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF A2 =R A i
THE COMPANY (854,072)  (2,337,845)  (2,991416)  (3,212,668) 248,759
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 15 of the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
and share-based payment transactions together with the reasons for
such movements, are set out in Notes 28 and 38, respectively, to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 39 of the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

67, respectively.

DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

At 31 December 2016, the Company had no retained profits available
for cash distribution or distribution in specie. Subject to the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Act”), the Company’s contributed surplus of
approximately HK$458,561,000 is distributable (2015: HK$458,561,000).
The contributed surplus and the Company’s share premium account, in
the amount of approximately HK$8,874,292,000 at 31 December 2016
(2015: HK$7,973,656,000), following a reduction thereof in compliance with
the Act and the approval of Shareholders of the Company, may be set off
against the accumulated losses of the Company. Thereafter, any balance in
the share premium account of the Company may be distributed in the form

of fully paid bonus shares.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
byelaws (the “Bye-laws”) or the laws of Bermuda, the jurisdiction in which
the Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws provides that the Directors shall be indemnified out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their

respective offices or trusts.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and directors of the

subsidiaries of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or

sold any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s largest customer accounted to approximately 25.3%
of the Group’s total sales in 2016. Sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 59.9% of the Group’s total sales in
2016.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 28.8%
of the total purchases in 2016 and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 9.5% of the Group’s total purchases for the

year.

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or any of the substantial
shareholders of the Company (which are disclosed to the Directors) had any

beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year of 2016 and up to the date of

this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Sanhuo (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Boqji (Deputy Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tse Michael Nam (appointed on 1 September 2016)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zou Chengjian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Leung Yin Fai

Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, JP
Mr. Zhou Chunsheng

In accordance with Bye-law 111(A) and 115 and the code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) under in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, Mr. Huang Bogi, Mr. Tse Michael Nam, Mr. Zou Chengjian,
Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Josph and Mr. Zhou Chunsheng will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Being eligible, all of the

retiring directors will offer themselves for re-election as Directors.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out on pages 4 to 7 of

this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the

Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

(i) Long position in the shares

EERRSTHRAEBRKRS - HER
REZZEERAR

RZBE-—RE+-A=+—R BEFRAQARK
BITRABRAELRBREMEEE (EXRES
KB IGGIEXVED) Z Bt - AR R EZ5+
BEARAREESFRAEGRDIE2GAFE
ZERMATR S HRIE EMEITAEFELETE
HFRSMBETR (RETA D EMEART R
B X2 P 2 s ROR R AR ¢

(i) R zZHR

Approximate
percentage of

issued share

No. of capital as at

Name of Directors Nature of interest shares held Position 31 December 2016

ERZE—XRE

+tZA=+—-8%2

ERTRA

EEpE EEME sl 688 ¥R BABED

Mr. Zhang Sanhuo Mt Beneficial owner 18,858,592,257 Long 25.85%
R=F A EmBEAA e

18,272,378,834 Short 25.04%
KB

Mr. Tse Michael Nam Beneficial owner 1,531,642 Long 0.002%
HEAFEE EmBEA Sy

Note: BieE

China OEPC Limited (“China OEPC”) which is beneficially owned by Best Growth
Enterprises Limited (“Best Growth”). And Mr. Zhang Sanhuo (“Mr. Zhang”) is the
ultimate beneficial owner. Therefore, by virtue of the SFO, Mr. Zhang was deemed
to be interested in all the shares held by China OEPC. As at 31 December
2016, China OEPC held 18,858,592,257 shares of the Company in which
18,272,378,834 shares had been pledged.

FEER(EH)ERERAA ([REERE]) B
Best Growth Enterprises Limited ( [Best Growth )
BEaBARR=ZELE ([ReE]) ARKRER
BAAN-BIL RIBEFHFRBEGO REEHR
ARPEERIAZHEROTEARER K=
T—XNE+-A=1+—HB PRERBELLF
18,858,592,257 % i 17 - H #118,272,378,834 % %
BB -
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(ii)

30

Long position in the underlying shares

(i) REEROGzZHFE

Approximate
percentage of

issued share

No. of capital as at

Name of Directors Nature of interest shares held Position 31 December 2016

BRZB-RE

+=A=+—-82

BRITRE

EEnS EEtE R EE BE BYABED

Mr. Zhang Sanhuo Mete ! Beneficial owner 5,658,857,142 Long 7.76%
SR= 8 A R ERERA 5

5,428,571,428 Short 0.80%
KE

Mr. Huang Bog; Nete2) Beneficial owner 160,000,000 Long 0.22%
TR & e ERERA 5

Mr. Tse Michael Nam Mete 3 Beneficial owner 60,000,000 Long 0.08%
B o A () ERERA 5

Mr. Zou Chengjian Mete 4 Beneficial owner 10,000,000 Long 0.01%
B e o A (e ERERA 5

Ms. Leung Yin FaiMote9 Beneficial owner 10,000,000 Long 0.01%
RENE R L (WS ERERA 5

Mr. Leung Po Wing Beneficial owner 10,000,000 Long 0.01%

Bowen Joseph Mot

RERLE IO EREAA HE

Mr. Zhou Chunsheng Mt 7) Beneficial owner 10,000,000 Long 0.01%
[ & S e EREAA HE
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Note:

These underlying shares are held by (i) Mr. Zhang, an Executive
Director and Chairman of the Board of the Company, as share options
of the Company which entitling him to subscribe for 16,000,000
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.15 per share; (i) Ms. Hao
Ting for the amount of HK$15,000,000 convertible bonds, which
are convertible into 214,285,714 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
in the capital of the Company, as a family interested; and (i) China
OEPC which is beneficially owned by Best Growth. And Mr. Zhang
is the ultimate beneficial owner for the amount of HK$380,000,000
convertible bonds, which are convertible into 5,428,571,428 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company. All the amount
of HK$380,000,000 convertible bonds, which are convertible into
5,428,571,428 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the
Company had been pledged.

As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Zhang held in aggregate 5,658,857,142
underlying shares in which 5,428,571,428 underlying shares had been
pledged.

Mr. Huang Bogi, an Executive Director (Deputy Chairman & Chief
Executive Officer), held share options of the Company entitling him to
subscribe for 160,000,000 shares at a subscription price of HK$0.15
per share.

Mr. Tse Michael Nam, an Executive Director, held share options of
the Company entitling him to subscribe for 60,000,000 shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.15 per share.

Mr. Zou Chengjian, a non-executive Director, held share options of
the Company entitling him to subscribe for 10,000,000 shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.15 per share.

Ms. Leung Yin Fai, an independent non-executive Director, held share
options of the Company entitling her to subscribe for 10,000,000
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.15 per share.

Mr. Leung Po Wing Bowen Joseph, an Independent non-executive
Director, held share options of the Company entitling him to subscribe
for 10,000,000 shares at a subscription price of HK$0.15 per share.

Mr. Zhou Chunsheng, an Independent non-executive Director,
held share options of the Company entiting him to subscribe for
10,000,000 shares at a subscription price of HK$0.15 per share.

ZEHBRODBOVUITEERAR
RIEFEERREEURDABER
(T REMNTZER1E T2
208 E R $16,000,0000% A% 17 ) 2 =
BH (WELETARKEZEAH
15,000,000/ 7T 2 AT IR (&2 (7] H.12
£214,285, 7148 78 A BB AN R B AR
BO.01B Tz EBR) A ¢ K (i) E
EER¥E A - Ma% A 718 Best Growth
BEaBlARRAEARKERESR
A 18 $£380,000,0005% 7T 2 ] # i &
% (7] 5, # 55,428,571,4280% & A A)
AR S REEOEILZ TiEmAR) o
380,000,0005% o 2 AT A 7] #2 AR (& %
(A] 3430 55,428,571, 428 K X B B A
FEREE.ONE T L iER) B iR
o

M-Z—RE+-A=+—H Kx4%
# A 4 $£5,658,857, 142/ 18 B A 17
H H15,428,571,428[% 1B BA AR 1 B 1 K
o

HITESEARELE (BIEERTH
BE)FRAARRABRE BT RE
MARGROIGET L REERE
160,000,000% i 15

HITESHEARERAARARABER
¥ T A TR EAR0.16/8 T Z R
i {8 R HE60,000,000/% A& 17 ©

R TESPRBEEBREALEE
&4 - B T 1 A A TR AR5 T 2
R 8 (8 7288 10,000,000% A% 17

BUFNTEZRRBLLREAR
AR - T RN AR ER0.15%
TL 2 R E R 10,000,0008% B 15

BUFHTEEREREERFEARD
R AR - BT R T IR B RR0.15/8
TL 2 REEEREE10,000,0008% X 7 °

BYNTESATERERBAR
RIE AR - B T A R AT IR S ARO.157
JT 2 iR HE B3R F810,000,0008% A 15 ©
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In addition to the above, as at 31 December 2016, certain Directors have
non-beneficial personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for
the benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of complying with the

minimum company membership requirements.

Except as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, neither the Chief
Executive Officer nor any of the Directors of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be notified to

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Except as disclosed above and in Note 38 of the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any of the
Directors or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by any of them; or was the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to

acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Grant of Share Option

With reference to announcement dated 14 July 2015, the Board has
resolved to grant share options (“the Options”) to certain individuals to
subscribe for a total of 825,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company, under the share option scheme adopted
by the Company based on the Shareholders’ resolution passed on 28 May
2015 (the “Share Option Scheme”), which shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years.
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The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant Options to certain employees of the Group and any suppliers,
consultants, agents and advisers or any person who, in the sole discretion
of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group in recognition

of their contribution to the Group.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
Options granted to each eligible participant or grantee (including exercised
and outstanding Options) in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of grant. Any further

grant will be conditional upon shareholders’ approval in general meeting.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, an Option may be
exercised in whole or in part at any time during the period to be determined
by the Board but in any event no later than 10 years from the date of grant.
There is no specified minimum period for which an Option must be held
before it can be exercised. An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain
open for acceptance for a period of 28 days from the date upon which is it
made and a non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by

the grantee upon acceptance of an Option.

The exercise price of the Options granted under the Share Option Scheme
may be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event
will not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of the share on the date of grant.

For details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 24 April 2015.

BRAERT BB EREA R R A A AEE R e
BHoER RERBAAZETREER IBEFS
ERNBERARELKEAR/AEEELER 2 F
MALTROEEE  URGRELAEEZER -

BRAEARSEESIABRAEHERHEB LA
2@ AN RITEER 2 EBRE (BED
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1% ° — S REBREBERFERREAS
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Among the Options granted, 20,000,000 Options were granted to the
Lender as disclosed in the said announcement and 276,000,000 Options
were granted to the Directors. Half of the Options granted to the Directors
are exercisable from the date of grant to the expiry of option period and the
other half of Options granted are exercisable from the first anniversary of the

Date of Grant to the expiry of option period.

For the details of grant of Share Option, please refer to our announcement
dated 14 July 2015.

The Scheme Mandate Limit was refreshed with the approval of the
Shareholders during the annual general meeting of the Company held on
23 May 2016. The Company therefore may grant Options entitling holders
thereof to subscribe for up to a maximum number of 5,866,336,340 Shares,
representing approximately 10% of the number of the issued Shares as
at 23 May 2016. The total number of Shares which might be issued upon
exercise of the Options granted under the “refreshed” Scheme Mandate
Limit of 5,866,336,340 Shares together with all outstanding Options as at
23 May 2016 carrying the right to subscribe for 807,000,000 Shares was
6,673,336,340 Shares, representing approximately 11.38% of the total

number of Shares in issue as at 23 May 2016.

The particulars of share options granted to Directors of the Company and

the movements during the year can be referred to Note 38.

As at 31 December 2016, there were 807,000,000 Options outstanding.
(2015: 807,000,000 Options)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

Persons who have an interest or short position which is
discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of part XV of the SFO
and Substantial Shareholders

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2016, the following
persons (not being Directors or the Chief Executive Officer of the Company)
had, or were deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares which are required to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or who were directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all

circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group:
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() INTERESTS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

() ABROEERERGDZER

No. of shares

Approximate
percentage of

and/or issued share
Name of substantial underlying capital as at
shareholders Nature of interest shares held Position 31 December 2016
BR=ZB—XREF
tZA=t—-8A%
FERBR, ERTRAK
TERRER BHEME HEBERDHE R BHAES
Best Growth Enterprises Limited Mot Interest of controlled 24,287,163,686 Long 33.28%
corporation
Best Growth Enterprises Limited (&) S AE R HE
23,700,950,262 Short 32.48%
KA
China OEPC Limited Metel Beneficial owner 24,287,163,686 Long 33.28%
HEIREIR (B8 ZEIRARA R ) EREAA Sy
23,700,950,262 Short 32.48%
KA
Chance Talent Management Limited Person having a security 23,700,950,263 Long 32.48%
interest in shares
HIRODFARBERAOA )
CCBI Investments Limited Interest of controlled 23,700,950,263 Long 32.48%
corporation
BIRBFRERR AR XEEEER =y
CCB International (Holdings) Limited Interest of controlled 23,898,450,263 Long 32.75%
(Note) corporation
RIRERR () AR A F W) XELEER )
CCB Financial Holdings Limited ®te) Interest of controlled 23,898,450,263 Long 32.75%
corporation
BIToERAR AR R LEER )
CCB International Group Interest of controlled 23,898,450,263 Long 32.75%
Holdings Limited Nt corporation
BITEBREEERAR AR REEEER A
China Construction Bank Corporation Interest of controlled 23,898,450,263 Long 32.75%
(Note) corporation
FRBRRTROBERF 0 XELEER )
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Nt Interest of controlled 23,898,450,263 Long 32.75%
corporation
FRESREFREMELDF WD XEEEER )

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 * 2016 & F i 35



REPORT OF DIRECTORS

EEEHRE

China OEPC beneficially owns, (i) 18,858,592,257 shares in which 18,272,378,834
shares had been pledged; and (i) HK$380,000,000 Convertible Bonds (“CB”)
which are convertible into 5,428,571,428 shares which had been all pledged. China
OEPC is beneficially owned by Best Growth. Best Growth is beneficially owned by
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo, the Chairman and executive Director of the Company. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. Zhang Sanhuo and Best Growth are deemed to be interested in
those shares and derivative interest held by China OEPC.

Chance Talent Management Limited (“CTM”) holds security interest in ordinary
shares and convertible bonds which in aggregate 23,700,950,263 shares. CTM is
wholly and beneficially owned by CCBI Investments Limited (“CCBII”). By virtue of
the SFO, CCBIl was deemed to be interested in those shares held by CTM.

CCBIl is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by CCB International (Holdings)
Limited (“CCB-IH"). By virtue of the SFO, CCB-IH was deemed to be interested in
those shares which CCBII was interested.

CCB-IH is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by CCB Financial Holdings Limited
(“CCB-FH"). By virtue of the SFO, CCB-FH was deemed to be interested in those
shares which CCB-IH was interested.

CCB-FH is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by CCB International Group
Holdings Limited (“CCB-IGH”). By virtue of the SFO, CCB-IGH was deemed to be
interested in those shares which CCB-FH was interested.

CCB-IGH is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by China Construction Bank
Corporation (“CC Bank”). By virtue of the SFO, CC Bank was deemed to be
interested in those shares which CCB-IGH was interested.

CC Bank is in turn 57.31% owned by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Central
Huijin”). By virtue of the SFO, Central Huijin was deemed to be interested in those
shares which CC Bank was interested.
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(1) INTERESTS IN SHARES OF ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
OF THE COMPANY

Name of subsidiary Name of entity

() RARQBEBEBRED 2 =

Class and number Percentage

of securities shareholdings

W& AR &R EREE BEERRYAE REBDL
BMC Software (China) Ltd BMC Software (HK) Ltd. 1 ordinary share of HK$1 (L) 10%
BMC Software (China) Ltd BMC Software (HK) Ltd. 1RIB T2 LRk (L) 10%

L. represents a long position in the securities

Except as disclosed above and so far as the Directors were aware, as at
31 December 2016, no other party had any interest or short position in the
shares, the underlying shares or debentures of the Company which would
be required to be disclosed to the Company under provisions of Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to herein.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION PURSUANT
TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

The appointment of Mr. Zou Chengjian (“Mr. Zou”) as a nonexecutive
Director has been expired and revised on 22 June 2016 with a term of
service for one year and subject to rotational retirements under the Bye-
laws. Mr. Zou currently entitled to receive a remuneration of HK$14,000 per

month.

The appointment of Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph (‘Mr. Leung”) as
an independent non-Executive Director has been expired and automatically
renewed on 26 March 2016 with a term of service for one year and subject
to rotational retirements under the Bye-laws. Mr. Leung currently entitled to

receive a remuneration of HK$14,000 per month.

L: REREHFZHR

BREXFEBEEIN BESHMA KT —XF
TZA=+—8 TEEMATRARARG
BN KBS HARERESRE KIS
XVEPE2 K37 FBIR B MR R A1 B8 - SRR E
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KR -

BiIEEHHRAE135IB)EEEES
FAdgse s ([EE]) HEFRTEREZERE
RZZE—RENAZTZBERBRER  REF
HR—F A8TRARMBZRERERTE - H5%E
IR R W F B = A 14,0008 7T

RELREE([REEDBEBILIFNTES
EﬁEﬁA:?*/_\ii)ﬂ*Jﬁ‘_\Eﬁ'i%&QiﬁE

& RFHA—F BAETARMRZHERT
%ﬁmoa@?ﬁifﬁhﬁﬁé%ﬁx S BN & A 14,0008 7T °

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 * 2016 & F i 37



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The appointment of Mr. Zhou Chunsheng (“Mr. Zhou”) as an independent
non-Executive Director has been expired and revised on 22 June 2016
with a term of service for one year and subject to rotational retirements
under the Byelaws. Mr. Zhou currently entitled to receive a remuneration
of HK$14,000 per month. The remuneration of the Directors is governed
by the Bye-laws and the remuneration amount is determined by the
Board based on the recommendation from the Remuneration Committee
of the Company with reference to, among other matters, the duties and
responsibilities of the Directors, salary paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, employment conditions of other members of the Group and a

bonus for each financial year which is subject to the discretion of the Board.

During the year 2016, the Executive Directors, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Huang
Boqgi and Mr. Tse Michael Nam received emoluments of approximately
HK$4,939,000, HK$5,137,000 and HK$1,941,000 respectively. The
non-Executive Director, Mr. Zou received emoluments of approximately
HK$390,000. The Independent non-Executive Directors, Ms. Leung Yin
Fai, Mr. Leung and Mr. Zhou received emoluments of approximately
HK$390,000, HK$390,000 and HK$390,000 respectively.

Details of Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments are set out in Note

14 of the consolidated financial statements.

The basis for determining the Directors’ emoluments (including bonus

payments) remained unchanged during the year.

It was informed by Mr. Zhou that he has been appointed as independent
non-executive director of Zhonghong Holding Co. Ltd. (Stock Code
000979: Shenzhen Stock Exchange) with effect from 12 August 2016.

It was informed by Mr. Leung that he had been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Regal REIT (stock code 1881: the
Stock Exchange) with effect from 28 October 2016.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, and as at the date of this report
there were no other changes to the Directors’ information that are required

to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company had
complied with the code provisions and recommended best practices of the
Code except for certain deviations. Details of corporate governance are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual

Report.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 had been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, who
will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment as auditor at

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
on 12 June 1999 with clear written terms of reference. And the terms of
reference of Audit Committee had been revised on 14 December 2015 and

became effective from 1 January 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and as at the date of this annual
report, the Audit Committee comprised three members, all of whom
were Independent non-Executive Directors. The composition of the Audit
Committee as at the date of this annual report was Ms. Leung Yin Fai
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph
GBS, JP and Mr. Zhou Chunsheng. Ms. Leung Yin Fai, the chairman of the
Audit Committee is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, CPA Australia and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. None of the members is a partner or former partner of

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the Company’s external auditor.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review (i) the annual and
interim results and the accompanying auditor’s reports, (i) the accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Company, and (i) the financial and

internal control systems of the Company.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, including the
disclaimer opinion in the auditor’s report thereon, and had submitted its

views to the Board of Directors.
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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The Board and the Management of the Company are highly committed

to maintaining good corporate governance practices, internal control, risk

management and transparency in fulfilling their corporate responsibility

and accountability to the Company’s Shareholders. The Board and

the Management recognize that the maintenance of good corporate

governance practices is an essential factor in achieving financial success

and enhancing shareholders’ value.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODES

(@)

Corporate Governance Codes

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
complied with the Corporate Governance Codes (the “CG Codes”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and where appropriate,
adopted the recommended best practices of the CG Codes. The
Board will continue to review and monitor the Company’s corporate

governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Codes.

The Company had adopted an internal monitoring policy to maintain
a higher level of the Company’s compliance with the CG Codes
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 and also to report
on whether any non-compliance with the CG Codes, if any, was fully
disclosed and explained in this Corporate Governance Report. The
execution and enforcement of the Company’s corporate governance
system is monitored and reviewed by the Board annually. The
Company believes that the commitment of high-standard corporate
governance will provide long-term value and maximized returns to

Shareholders.

Securities Transactions

The Model Code has been adopted as the code for Directors’
securities transaction for the Company. After having made specific
enquiry of all the Directors, each of the Directors confirmed that he/she
had complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code for relevant employees in respect of their dealing
in the Company’s shares and established written guidelines on inside
dealings in relation to the Company and the securities transaction of

the Company with reference to SFO Chapter 571 Division 4.
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(c) Board of Directors

Up to the date of this report, the Board is composed of seven
members comprising three Executive Directors (including the Chairman
and the Deputy Chairman), one non-Executive Director and three
Independent non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The biographical
details of the current members of the Board are set out on pages 4
to 7 of this Annual Report. The Company has also maintained on its
website and on the website of the Stock Exchange, an updated list
of the Directors and the Management which identifying their roles and

functions including whether they are INEDs.

Save for being a Director, each Director does not have any financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s) and in

particular, between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Board is tasked with the responsibility of directing and supervising
the Company’s businesses and affairs and promoting its success and
growth. The Board is collectively responsible for the management
and operations of the Company and is responsible for directing and
supervising the overall management of the Company with regards to
the implementation and maintenance of internal control procedures and
ensuring compliance with relevant statutory requirements, the Listing
Rules and other rules and regulations and performing the corporate

governance duties.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing
day-to-day operations, business strategies and management of the
Group’s businesses to the Executive Directors, senior management

and certain specific responsibilities to the Board committees.

The Board meets regularly. During the year, four regular Board
meetings were held. Notices for regular Board meetings were given to

all Directors at least 14 days prior to the meetings.
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Prior to each Board meeting (for regular meetings, at least 3 days
prior), the Chairman, with the support of the Company Secretary,
ensures that every Director has been properly briefed on issues and
provided with the agenda and accompanying Board papers containing
adequate information provided by the Management to enable them to
make informed decisions at the meeting. Every member of the Board
has an opportunity to propose matters in the agenda for discussion at

each Board meeting.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of committees are taken by
the Company Secretary and maintained at the Company’s premises.
Minutes of the Board and committee meetings record in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board or committee and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors or dissenting
views expressed. Drafts and final versions of minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comments within a reasonable time after the Board
meetings are held. Every member of the Board is entitled to inspect
Board papers and related materials and has unrestricted access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.
Where queries are raised by any of the Directors, responses are
provided as promptly and fully as possible. The Directors may also
upon reasonable request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the expense of the Company. So far,
there has not been any case where a substantial shareholder or a
Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the

Board which the board has determined to be material.
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The attendance of each of the Directors at the annual general meeting, BREERFRBTZRRBFRE EF
Board meetings and meetings of the Audit Committee, Remuneration TEH BRLEECgR FHEEgEEN
Committee and Nomination Committee held during the year is set out REZEEEFZHERNT:
below:—
No. of meetings attended/held
HE/BTEERE

General Audit Remuneration Nomination
Directors Meetings Board Committee Committee Committee
i) RRAE Exg ERERS FHzEES REZERS
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo 3/3 4/4 - 2/2 11
R=HEHE
Mr. Huang Boaqi 3/3 4/4 - - -
BREALE
Mr. Tse Michael Nam (Note 1) 0/3 1/4 - - -
B E (M)
Non-executive Director
FHTES
Mr. Zou Chengjian 1/3 4/4 - - -
PAGEEE
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYKHTES
Ms. Leung Yin Fai 3/3 4/4 3/3 1/2 11
REELL
Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2/3 4/4 3/3 2/2 11
Mr. Zhou Chunsheng 2/3 3/4 2/3 2/2 11
EEERAE
Note: BT

1. HEEEER-B—AENA—AEEEA
AARZHTES MRAAGR =T AL
E¥Em.

1. Mr. Tse Michael Nam was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
on 1 September 2016, and the general meetings held on the first half of 2016
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Two of the regular Board meetings were for the approval of the interim
and annual results of the Company and the others were to review or
discuss (i) the effectiveness of the financial and internal control systems
of the Company; (i) the policies; (iii) strategic business planning and
operation review; (iv) the risk management; and (v) the upcoming

business transactions.

The Company had maintained an appropriate level of insurance cover
in respect of legal action against the Directors and officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries throughout the year ended 31 December
2016.

Each Director has disclosed to the Company in a timely manner of any
change, the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments. All such changes
during the year and up to the date of this report, have been disclosed

in the Report of the Directors section of this report.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors, non-Executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a specific term. Such term is
subject to his/her re-appointment by the Company at an annual general
meeting upon such Director’s retirement by rotation at least once every

three years and offering himself/herself for re-election.

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that any Director appointed
by the Board, (i) to fill a casual vacancy in the Board, shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall
be subject to re-election at such meeting and (i) as an addition to the
Board shall hold office until the next annual general meeting of the

Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of chairman and Chief Executive Officer has been separated
since 14 June 2013 and the division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer has been clearly established
based on the requirement of Listing Rules.

During the year, the Chairman fulfilled his responsibilities, including
chairing the board meetings, ensuring that the Board operates
effectively and discharges its responsibilities, ensuring good corporate
governance practices and procedures by anchoring with the Listing
Rules (even though these practices and procedures have not been
formally documented in the Company’s policy), facilitating effective
contribution of Directors, ensuring effective communications with
shareholders and ensuring constructive relations between Executive
and non-Executive Directors. During the year, the Chairman has also
chaired meeting with the INEDs and the non-Executive Director, without

the presence of the other Executive Director.

Non-executive Directors

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company had
been in compliance with Rules 3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules by having at all times three INEDs on its Board, one who has the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and the number of

INEDs represented at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the INEDs and the non-Executive Director was appointed for
an initial term of not more than two years from the date of his/her
appointment. Upon the expiry of the initial term, the appointment may

be renewed for another term of not more than two years.

Each of the INEDs met the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered each of them to
be so. The Company had received from each of the INEDs an annual

confirmation as to his independence.
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The non-Executive Directors and the INEDs have been participating in
board meetings, taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise, serving on the audit, nomination and remuneration committees,
scrutinizing the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives, monitoring performance reporting and making a
positive contribution to the development of the Group’s strategy and
policies through independent, constructive and informed comments
and giving the board and committees in which they serve, the benefit of
their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through
regular attendance and active participation. Each Director has also
given sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs during the

year.

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in June 2005 with specific written terms
of reference detailing the Remuneration Committee’s role and authority.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are published

on the Company’s website as well as the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for formulating and
making recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
and the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration and review of the policy
and the procedure annually. The Remuneration Committee has the
delegated responsibility to determine the specific remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and senior management and to
make recommendations to the Board for the remuneration of the non-

Executive Directors after conducted the Board evaluation annually.

In fulfilling its functions, the Remuneration Committee takes into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
respective time commitment, and responsibilities of the Directors
and senior management and whether the remuneration packages are
competitively attractive to retain the Executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee members may consult
the Chairman of the Board about their proposals relating to the
remuneration of the Executive Directors and have access to sufficient
resources including professional advice if considered necessary. No

Director can, however, approve his own remuneration.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 and as at the date of this
report, the Remuneration Committee comprised four members, three
of whom were INEDs, in which one of them was also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. The members of the Remuneration
Committee as at the date of this report are Ms. Leung Yin Fai (an INED
and the chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Zhang Sanhuo
(Executive Director), Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph and Mr. Zhou
Chunsheng (INEDs).

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once each year and one
of the meeting was to review and approve the remuneration package
of the other Directors and the senior management (which had remained
unchanged from the previous year) and other related matters including

the Board evaluation.

Nomination Committee

The Company’s nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
was established on 14 December 2015 with specific written terms of
reference detailing the Nomination Committee’s role and authority. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are published on the

Company’s website as well as the Stock Exchange’s website.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and as at the date of this
report, the Nomination Committee comprised four members, three of
whom were INEDs. The members of the Nomination Committee as at
the date of this report are Mr. Zhang Sanhuo (Executive Director and
the chairman of the Nomination Committee), Ms. Leung Yin Fai, Mr.

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph and Mr. Zhou Chunsheng (INEDs).

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are,
among other things, review the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;
identify candidates with suitable qualifications as Directors, select and
make recommendations to the Board; assess the independence of
INEDs; and make recommendations to the Board on matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession

planning for Directors.

In fulfilling its functions, the Nomination Committee has been provided
sufficient resources by the Company to seek for independent

professional advice to perform its responsibilities.
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The Nomination Committee has a policy concerning diversity of
Board members which aims to maintain the Board with a diversity of
Directors in terms of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise, culture,
independence, age and gender, with a view to enhancing the quality of

performance of the Board.

The Nomination Committee meets not less than once a year and it
met to (i) review the terms of reference; (ii) review the structure, size
and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service) of the Board; and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to implement the Company’s
corporate strategy; and (iii) review the procedures for shareholders to
elect a director has been published in the Company’s and the Stock

Exchange’s websites.

Save as disclosed, there were no other new appointment to the Board

during the year.

Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”) was
established in June 1999 with clear written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are published on the

Company’s website as well as the Stock Exchange’s website.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include overseeing
the Company’s relations with the external auditors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditors, approving the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditors, reviewing and
monitoring the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards, monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and accounts, half-year report and
accounting policies, as well as overseeing the Company’s financial

controls, internal control systems and risk management systems.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 and as at the date of this
report, the Audit Committee was comprised of three members, all of
whom were INEDs. The composition of the Audit Committee as at
the date of this report was Ms. Leung Yin Fai (the Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph and Mr. Zhou
Chunsheng. Ms. Leung Yin Fai, the chairman of the Audit Committee is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,

CPA Australia and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

The Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors of the
Company, the Directors, the Company’s qualified accountant, and
other members of Management. The Audit Committee has met with the
Company’s auditors twice during the year ended 31 December 2016

with regards to review of the Company’s financial report and accounts.

The Audit Committee met third times during the year ended 31
December 2016 to review the annual and interim results and the
accompanying auditor’s report, the accounting policies and practices
adopted by the Company, and to review the financial and internal

control systems of the Company.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s audited financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Auditors’ Remuneration
During the year, the Company reappointed Messrs. SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited as auditors of the Company. The auditors remuneration for

the year ended 31 December 2016 was as follows:

Nature of work
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(k) Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company and that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. It is also the responsibility of the
Directors to ensure the timely publication of the financial statements
of the Company. During the year, the management has provided
sufficient explanation and information to the Board to enable it to make
an informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before it for approval including the monthly updates on the Company’s

performance, position and prospects.

A discussion and analysis of the Groups’ performance, an explanation
of the basis on which the Company generates or preserves value
over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the Company’s
objectives have been prepared and included in the Chairman
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis sections of this

Annual Report.

The statement of the auditors of the Company, SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited, on their reporting responsibilities in respect of the financial

statements of the Company is set out on pages 59 to 62.

The Directors confirm that, except for the issues as explained under
the basis of presentation section in note 1 of the consolidate financial
statements, they are not aware of any other material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director knows that he/she should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh his/her knowledge
and skills to ensure that his contribution to the board remains informed
and relevant. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding
suitable training for the Directors. Accordingly, during the year, the
Company has made available trainings and development programmes

for the Directors for their participation.
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During the year, all the Directors were provided with monthly FRN MEESCREIRTERES CER
commentary on the Group’s business, operations, and financial M ETEUREREERERRTENERBE
matters as well as regular updates on applicable legal and regulatory Fi{E R - RARIMAZESREM B RER
requirements. The Company had also provided the Directors with the ER BIEREBEF REEEN E ETR A
materials and information update including the Directors’ obligations HENESBRE N ARIEST2NTH
as required under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing HEBLETAREEAR BELBENOR
Rules. In addition, individual Directors have also participated in other B REBB2INEIIREIBBAEEY
courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company SEERBEM B E — P EEEE-
director or further enhancement of their professional development by FEESEERARNEREENCBFERN
way of attending training courses or via online aids or reading relevant Hl 4L 8% o

materials. All the Directors had provided the Company Secretary with

their training records for the year under review.

Directors Type of trainings

B b bl

Executive Directors

BTES

Mr. Zhang Sanhuo A
R=ZESE

Mr. Huang Bogi A
=HEBEEE

Mr. Tse Michael Nam A
A F A

Non-executive Director

FHITES

Mr. Zou Chengjian A
WA EE

Independent Non-executive Directors

BIYFHTES

Ms. Leung Yin Fai A, B
REE L+

Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph A B
Mr. Zhou Chunsheng A B
AEERE

A: attending internal briefing sessions/reading materials in relation to corporate A: HEABACEEAREEENNABERS A
governance and regulatory updates. SREEB@ME

B: attending seminars/courses/conference to develop and refresh their B: WEMNEG SRR GHRUEERENEMNH
knowledge and skills. &5 37
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) Company Secretary

Mr. Shek Wing Wa, joined the Company since 2011. He holds a
Bachelor Degree in Business Administration and a Master Degree in
Corporate Governance and has solid experience in company secretarial
field gained from both listed companies and professional firms in
Hong Kong. He is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom since 2010. During the year, he
has completed over 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Internal Controls and Risk Management

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for ensuring a sound
and effective internal control system is maintained within the Company
and its subsidiaries so as to safeguard the Group’s assets and its
Shareholders’ investments. The Directors conduct annual reviews
of the effectiveness of the system of internal controls as well as
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the accounting and financial reporting functions, and their training

programmes and budget.

Pursuant to provision C.2.5 of the CG Codes, the Board reviewed the
need for an internal audit department and considered it appropriate
to adopt an internal group policy to review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. Given the
Group’s simple operating structure, as opposed to a separate internal
audit department, the Board is directly responsible for internal control

of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board conducted a review on the internal control system of the
Group on an annual basis and has the responsibility to maintain an
effective internal control system in order to safeguard the Group’s
assets and shareholders’ interests. It covered all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Company. And the policy will be reviewed
annually by the Board to ensure it fulfilled the statutory requirement.
The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Board
will keep review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems on a regular basis to ensure that the

systems in place are adequate.
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Risk Management System
The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the

following phases:

e |dentification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives and

risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

e  Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate

the risk portfolio accordingly.

e Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual

risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2016, no significant risk

was identified

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COS0Q”) 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. The components of the

framework are shown as follow:

Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and structures that

provide the basis for carrying out internal control across the Group.

e Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a

basis for determining how risks should be managed.

e Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures to
help ensure that management directives to migitgate risks to the

achievement of objectives are carried out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information needed

to carry out day-to-day controls.
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e  Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and

functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an
inside information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures
have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the

Group, which include:

e The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their

obligations to preserve confidentiality.

e  Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters into

significant negotiations.

e The Executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external parties

such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2016, no significant

control deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which is consisted
of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal
control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and tests of

operating effectiveness.

An IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually and the results are reported to the

Board via Audit Committee afterwards.
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Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted annually. Several areas have been
considered during the Board’s reviews, which include but not limited
o (i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since the
last annual review, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in
its business and the external environment (ii) the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control

systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by IA function
and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate. Such systems,
however, are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It is
also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience
of relevant staff were adequate and the training programs and budget

provided were sufficient.

Based on the above, the Board is of the view that the Company has
established a proper internal control system which is effective and
adequate. And the Board also considers the internal control systems of
the Company effective and the resources, qualifications and experience
of the accounting and financial reporting functions, adequate for the

period in review.

In year 2017, the Group has engaged SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited, an independent professional third party, to review the
Group’s Internal Audit (“IA”) function. The IA function is independent
of the Group’s daily operation and carries out appraisal of the risk
management and internal control systems by conducting interviews,
walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness. An IA plan as
suggested has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually and the results are reported to the Audit

Committee afterwards.
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(o) Communications with Shareholders and Investors

0 ERRRREEZEE

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
the Company’s shareholders. A shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to shareholders’
communications, with the objectives of ensuring a transparent and
timely communication with shareholders via various means, has been
established and published on the Company’s website. And it will be
reviewed annually after the annual general meeting. The annual general
meetings of the Company and other general meetings are valuable
forums for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders
and to answer questions shareholders may raise. Another key element
of effective communication with shareholders and investors is the
prompt and timely dissemination of information in relation to the Group.
The Company has announced its annual and interim results in a timely

manner in 2016 as required by the Listing Rules.

Separate resolutions are proposed by the chairman at general meetings
for each substantial issue. The detailed procedures of conducting a poll
are explained to shareholders at the commencement of the AGM, to

ensure that shareholders are familiar with such procedures.

The Company’s last annual general meeting (‘AGM”) was held on
Monday, 23 May 2016 at 11:00 a.m. at Units 2001-2, 20th Floor, Li
Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Central, Hong Kong. Notice of
the last AGM were sent out on 22 April 2016, i.e. there were 19 clear
business days before the AGM. All the resolutions proposed at that
meeting were approved by the shareholders of the Company by poll.
Details of the poll results are available on the Company’s website.
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo, the Chairman of the Board chaired the last AGM
and also invited Ms. Leung Yin Fai, the chairman of both the audit
and remuneration committees to attend. All the Directors currently in
position, except Mr. Zou Chengjian and Mr. Zhou Chunsheng, attended
the last AGM. The auditors and the legal advisors of the Company
were also available during the AGM to answer questions from the

shareholders.
The next AGM will be held at Units 2001-2, 20th Floor, Li Po Chun

Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Central, Hong Kong on Monday, 29 May
2017 at 11:00 a.m..
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The market capitalisation of the Company as at 31 December 2016
was HK$1,532,316,723.04 (issued share capital: 72,967,463,002
shares at closing market price: HK$0.021 per share). The public float
was approximately 73.97% as at 31 December 2016.

Constitutional Documents

Except the increase of the authorized share capital from
HK$800,000,000 to HK$2,000,000,000 divided into 200,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each on 23 May 2016, there was no other change
to the Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws during
the financial year 2016. Copy of the latest version of the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-laws has been posted on the Company’s and

the Stock Exchange’s websites.

Shareholders’ Rights — Convening of General Meetings

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
general meeting of the Company. Shareholders holding an aggregate
of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company
may send a written request to the Board of the Company to request
for the convening of a general meeting. The written requisition, duly
signed by the shareholders concerned, must state the purposes of
the meeting and must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company. The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Section 74 of the Act once a

valid requisition is received.
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Shareholders’ Rights — Making Proposals at General
Meetings

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company: (a) any number of members representing not
less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of the Company
on the date of the requisition; or (b) not less than 100 members holding

shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company. The Company would
take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and
the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Sections 79 and 80 of the Act once valid documents are

received.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director at a general meeting, the shareholder
should lodge at the principal place of business of the Company at
Units 2001-2, 20th Floor, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux
Central, Hong Kong, the necessary documents as mentioned in the
“Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director of the Company” which has already been published in the

Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Shareholders’ Rights — Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company or at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary

whose contact details are as follows:

North Asia Resources Holdings Limited

Units 2001-2, 20th Floor, Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2889 6289

Fax: (852) 2897 9137
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

faikPia
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Disclaim of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of North
Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 63 to 188, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

Uncertainties relating to Going Concern

As set out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
had net current liabilities of approximately HK$5,011,026,000 as at 31
December 2016. The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared by the directors of the Company on a going concern basis,
the validity of which depends on the ongoing external facilities available to
the Group and the internal funds generated by the Group. We are unable
to verify the availability of such future financing. If these ongoing facilities
and internal funds are not forthcoming, the Group would be unable to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due, which might cast
a significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Accordingly, we disclaim our opinion in this respect.

Impairment Losses and Reversal of Impairment Losses
in respect of Mining Rights and Property, Plant and
Equipment

As detailed in Notes 15, 16 and 33 to the consolidated financial statements,
based on the valuation reports and the technical reports in relation to
the mining operations (the “Valuations”) as obtained by the Group, the
Group recognised impairment losses of approximately HK$338,896,000
and HK$51,704,000 in respect of mining rights and property, plant and
equipment respectively during the interim period. The Group carried out
an impairment assessment as at 31 December 2016 and reversed the
impairment losses made in respect of mining rights and property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$900,880,000 and HK$143,517,000
respectively. We are unable to obtain sufficient reliable evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to certain those assumptions and basis as adopted in the
Valuations and there is no other practical alternative audit procedure that
we could perform. Any adjustments that might have been found to be
necessary would have a consequential effect on the Group’s impairment
loss and reversal of impairment losses in respect of mining rights and
property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31 December 2016, and
the carrying amounts of the mining rights and property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2016.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company and Those
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or

have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report, solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Company Act,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. However,
because of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated

financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's  HEAARBT MR ENETEHEABAATR

report is Wong Chuen Fai. ¥ o

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited ERPM(BEB)EHMEEIERAA
Certified Public Accountants HEDEAD

Wong Chuen Fai =ERE

Practising Certificate Number: P05589 BEE SR - P05589

Hong Kong aBE

30 March 2017 —ET—t+tF=A=+H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiEZ —FT— ~NF+_A=1+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-X¥F —T—RHF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
s FHET TET
Revenue A 7 197,765 63,923
Cost of sales and services rendered HE RIRH RS 2 A (225,712) (46,753)
Gross (loss) profit E (1#8) 7 (27,947) 17,170
Other operating income H At A & W 2 7 11,741 5,128
Selling and distribution expenses HELDIHEHER (3,349) (4,574)
Administrative and operating expenses 1T R &4 & (174,064) (223,576)
Change in fair value of derivative AMBRERERITETA
component of convertible loan notes wo 2 A EEE 27 126,851 (786,373)
Loss on redemption of BOAmRERRE CEE
convertible loan notes 27 (4,181) (3,305)
(Loss) gain on redemption of BoAAER 2 (BE) K&
promissory notes 31 (126) 2,398
Impairment loss recognised MR BEEER ZREEE
in respect of mining rights 16 (338,896) (2,715,022)
Reversal of impairment loss DIRERE Z REBEED
in respect of mining rights 16 900,880 -
Impairment loss recognised REB®RZBNEEE
in respect of goodwill 17 - (2,352)
Impairment loss recognised MW HE MR EHER
in respect of property, REEE
plant and equipment 15 (51,704) (368,432)
Reversal of impairment loss BHAME -BER
in respect of property, BB RERBERD
plant and equipment 15 143,517 S
Finance costs Bl KA 8 (272,652) (371,978)
Profit (loss) before taxation BB ATFDE (E518) 9 310,070 (4,450,916)
Income tax (expense) credit FiEf (AX)ER 10 (118,872) 678,184
Profit (loss) for the year FEFE (HE) 191,198 (3,772,732)
Attributable to: LA A FEAL
Owners of the Company ARAEEB A 107,605 (2,373,281)
Non-controlling interests e AR HE 2 83,593 (1,399,451)
191,198 (3,772,732)
Earnings (loss) per share BRAER (EiE)
Basic (HK cents) AR () 12 0.21 (15.70)
Diluted (HK cents) e (B0 12 0.13 (15.70)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBm Rk HMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —E—"F+_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—XRE —ZE-hF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHEx FHET
Profit (loss) for the year FERA (BE) 191,198 (3,772,732)
Other comprehensive expense FEHME2EMAX
for the year
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified to HE R EFHDBEEEFZER -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINETE 2 [E R =5
foreign operations (148,950) (325,341)
Other comprehensive expense FEEMEEMAX
for the year (148,950) (325,341)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) FE2EWE (AX)EB5HE
for the year 42,248 (4,098,073)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) MTALTEGZE K (FAX) @5
attributable to:
Owners of the Company NABEAR A 51,867 (2,512,320)
Non-controlling interests FEIERRAE = (9,619) (1,585,753)
42,248 (4,098,073)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e P RIR TR

As at 31 December 2016 R—Z— X F+-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-X¥F —T—RHF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
s FERT FET
Non-current assets FERBERE
Property, plant and equipment W BERERE 15 1,437,291 1,060,046
Mining rights PR 16 7,944,075 7,977,311
Goodwill EES 17 - -
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, W%  HE L& EZ
plant and equipment BEffiEe 22,440 42,668
9,403,806 9,080,025
Current assets MEBEE
Inventories FE 18 4,676 5,530
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H th UK IE 19 195,755 101,824
Amount due from a related company FEY— R R R R 3RIA 20 9 9
Amount due from a director e —HE R HIE 21 66 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 22 36,943 34,461
237,449 141,824
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H fth JE A RIE 23 875,639 832,010
Amounts due to related companies FERRAE AR FRIB 20 344,157 321,448
Amount due to a non-controlling e — B IR E R
interest holder B ARIE 24 3,902,503 2,745,260
Other borrowings HiEE 25 40,007 5,755
Obligation under finance leases MEMEETZEMR 26 10,199 -
Liabilities component of convertible AMRERERZEBERS
loan notes 27 - 121,687
Derivative component of convertible ABMREREEZ
loan notes PTETEES 27 67,594 356,225
Promissory notes A ER 31 - 217,963
Income tax liabilities FrEmaE 8,376 6,947
5,248,475 4,607,195
Net current liabilities RBEEFRE (5,011,026) (4,465,371)
Total assets less current liabilities BERERTDAEE 4,392,780 4,614,654
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE PRI R

As at 31 December 2016 R —Z— X F+-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—RF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Bt 5 FHExT FHET
Capital and reserves BAR R
Share capital & 75 28 729,675 206,634
Convertible preference shares Al 8RB S0 IR 29 = -
Reserves ] (1,588,747) (2,544,479)
Equity attributable to owners of NAEEB AEEER
the Company (854,072) (2,337,845)
Non-controlling interests FEERRAE = 41 2,935,887 2,945,506
Total equity 4858 2,081,815 607,661
Non-current liabilities EmBEE
Amount due to a non-controlling B —RIFIERER
interest holder A AFKIE 24 25,712 975,196
Provision for restoration, rehabilitation WiE B RIR A AN BB
and environmental costs 30 66,682 67,497
Liabilities component of AMRERERZEBEDD
convertible loan notes 27 370,998 1,142,188
Other borrowings Hipfg & 25 - 31,284
Obligation under finance leases MEMERT2EME 26 52,147 -
Deferred tax liability ELHIEEE 32 1,795,426 1,790,828
2,310,965 4,006,993
4,392,780 4,614,654

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 188 were approved

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2017 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Zhang Sanhuo
R=EEEE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiEZ —FT— ~NF+_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREEAEE
Convertible Exchange Share Statutory Non-
Share Share  preference  Contributed translation options surplus  Accumulated controlling
capital premium shares surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
bL ESRE EERGR
BE  BRHEE BiR  AAER @ BRERE  OREE  RHEE af  FERES At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER ThT TET TET T Tin T TER TER TER TER

(note i) (note i)
(B (B ki)
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-15-fA-H 60,350 4974717 19,887 419,111 86,090 29,545 850  (8,581,966)  (2,991,416) 4,531,259 1,539,843
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - - - - (2373281)  (2,873,281)  (1,399.451) (3,722,782
Other comprehensive expenses FEAMZERS
for the year - - - - (139,039) - - - (139,039) (186,302) (325,341)
Total comprehensive expenses FERAE
for the year RXEE - - - - (139,039) - - (2373281)  (2,512,320)  (1,585,753)  (4,098,073)
Recognition of share based BRRHZAFEZ
payment expense - - - - - 41,007 - - 41,007 - 41,007
Issues of share upon: ITRE
ke
- Placings -RE 22,345 318,185 - - - - - - 340,530 - 340,530
~ Expenses on issue shares R GE - (3,575) - - - - - - (3,575) - (3,575)
~ Interest capitalisation -FEERIL 281 3,313 - - - - - - 3,504 - 3,504
~ Exercise of share options -TEERE 100 1,852 - - - (452) - - 1,500 - 1,500
~ Conversions of convertible —HRTERELR
preference shares 21,852 (1,965) (19,887) - - - - - - - -
- Conversions of convertible loan ~ — BT AREHE
notes 101,706 2,681,129 - - - - - - 2,782,835 - 2,782,835
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ-1%
1 January 2016 TZA=t-BER
—Z-"F-f-B 206,634 7,973,656 - 419,111 (52,949) 70,100 850  (10,955,247)  (2,337,845) 2,945,506 607,661
Profit for the year FEET - - - - - - - 107,605 107,605 83,593 191,198
Other comprehensive expenses FEAMRERY
for the year - - - - (55,738) - - - (65,738) (93,212) (148,950)
Total comprehensive (expenses) FERE (X)) K&
income for the year ek} - - - - (55,738) - - 107,605 51,867 (9,619) 42,248
Recognition of share based BRARBZAFR
payment expense - - - - - 8,229 - - 8,229 - 8,229
Issue of shares upon: T EEM
BRE
- Placings -RE 380,000 - - - S S S S 380,000 - 380,000
- Transaction cost attributable “REEERFRE
to placing - (3,990) - - - - - - (3,990) = (3,990)
- Conversion of convertible -HEARRERER
loan notes 143,041 904,626 - - - - - - 1,047,667 - 1,047,667
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE
+=ZA=1-H 729,675 8,874,292 - 419,111 (108,687) 78,329 850 (10,847,642 (854,072) 2,935,887 2,081,815
Notes: B EE

i) Contributed surplus represents the reduction of the Company’s issued share i)  SBIAZRBIEAQF D EITRA RS R AW LM

capital upon cancellation of paid up share capital, and the deemed contribution WL 2R URERFEARBAEFEREEAN
from equity holder arisen from the waiver of promissory notes in previous years. EEMGETENERE.

i) Subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China have appropriated 10% of the profit i)  FF#EE A RAFEIHE R A#510% 28 M BT AT &

to the statutory surplus reserve which is required to be retained in the accounts of BRATERE ARREARBRHNBARRE (B
the subsidiaries for specific purposes. ER® -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —E—"F+_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FERT FHEIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEER
Profit (loss) before taxation BB R A (E1E) 310,070 (4,450,916)
Adjustments for: RTYSIEEL A
Change in fair value of derivative AMBEERERTET AL 2
component of convertible loan notes N EEE (126,851) 786,373
Depreciation e 42,920 47,383
Amortisation of mining rights HuE i 94,882 -
Finance costs BE KA 272,652 371,978
Impairment loss recognised in respect MEREEER 2 REEE
of mining rights 338,896 2,715,022
Reversal of impairment loss in respect BRAREE 2 R EEE D
of mining rights (900,880) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MYE - BWERBEER
property, plant and equipment BB B 51,704 368,432
Reversal of impairment loss in respect BRME BERBEBZ
of property, plant and equipment BB EEE (143,517) -
Impairment loss recognised WE 5 E YRR
in respect of trade receivables B E B - 1,859
Impairment of goodwill BN = 2,352
Interest income FEWA (169) (242)
Gain on settlement of interest payable T EAAE 2 W - (477)
Loss on redemption of convertible loan BEOAMREREE 2
notes B8 4,181 3,305
Loss (gain) on redemption of promissory fE B H EE 2 e (W)
notes 126 (2,398)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME WER
equipment B P& (452) (2,660)
Share-based payment expenses A&7 T 2 8,229 38,905
Impairment loss reversal in respect BB ZENFHIE
of trade receivable BB E (8,733) -
Recovery of other receivables UEEA - i
previously written off E b fE W RIE - (35)
Operating cash flows before movements RetEBESEFHA
in working capital KERERE (56,942) (121,119)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA (5Em) 854 (3,650)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 & H fih Y RIR
1 50 (103,929) (20,774)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 M H b JE 5 FRIA L A1 90,680 65,656
Refund of mineral resource compensation REOBREERMES
fees - 5,967
Cash used in operations KEXBMARE (69,337) (73,920)
Income tax paid EATAER (853) (377)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 8% %5 fif B & 9458 (69,690) (74,297)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEREMNER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =%

—RETZA=T-RLEFE

2016 2015
—RE —hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment WY B Mkt (96,276) (70,449)
Net cash outflow from acquisition of Ui — M B 2 A
a subsidiary e mdFE - (2,387)
Interest received 2 WFLE 169 242
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BEX
plant and equipment RBETERIE 762 4,454
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES R & E8 i AE$ 55 (95,345) (68,140)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEE
Advance from non-controlling interests FEPE IR R EA R 383,250 356,044
Net proceeds from placing of shares Be & AR 1) P18 5B F 58 376,010 336,955
Exercise of share options TR B AR = 1,500
Repayments of obligations under RMEMHEETZ
finance leases STER (14,380) -
Cash paid on redemptions of f& ol A H R IR
promissory notes Tz BE® (214,500) (61,100)
Cash paid on redemptions of FEE A R ERER
convertible loan notes Sz HEE (128,700) (70,200)
Interest paid 21 F B (268,892) (321,656)
Advance from (repayment to) R NG ET N
related companies (BRTFHEQR) 36,009 (106,150)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTVITIES ~~ BEEB SRS FH 168,797 135,393
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRBESEEYEM ORD) FHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,762 (7,044)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FUzEESRBESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 34,461 40,632
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE IEERESFH o FE
RATE CHANGES (1,280) 873
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZASRASESEY
AT END OF THE YEAR, VAERITEHBRES
represented by bank balances and cash 36,943 34,461
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —E—"F+_A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed on the
main broad of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and principal place of business of
the Company are Units 2001-2, 20/F., Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.
The directors of the Company consider HK$ is the appropriate
presentation currency for the users of the Group’s financial statements.
The functional currency of the Company is changed from Renminbi
(“RMB”) to HK$ in 2015 since the management determined that the
Company was listed in Hong Kong and its fund raising and treasury
transactions are carried out in HK$. The functional currency of the

Company’s major subsidiaries are dominated in RMB.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
provision of finance and treasury service to the Group. During the year,
the Group were principally involved in systems integration services and
software solutions, geological survey, exploration and development of
coal deposits (mining operation), sales of coking coal and cultivation

and processing of cassava starch for sale.

70 NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 4t S5 &R R B R A 7

—REH
ARRBREREEMARL 2 EBLERA
Al ARRAZBHREEB AR BHERA
A (B3R ) EAR LT

RAGEMMERE R FZ S U2
% 5l &Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermudaf & i {& ¥ &
189% = B # N E201£2001-2% °

HEMBWMKRIAETEZY BT BRAT
ZREER - ARREERR BETHAEE
BHEBEEBEMERAELENEE AR
EEERRARBRBELT MARAZ
SEERMERGTIAETTH#ETT MARF 2
DEEER-_Z-HAFHAARER/ET-
ARBETEMNBRT 2 EEIAAREE
B

ARBZEBEXHR/RELBIARAARNEE
REBERMERE - RFR- AEBZENR
ERGERIRT KRB BIRTT R BRI
ZHHEE BREFEE (RREER) HE
FELEBERIMTARE RN AHHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =%
1.

—RETZA=T-RLEFE

GENERAL (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$5,011,026,000. The directors are of the opinion
that the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial

obligations as and when they fall due for the next twelve months from

31 December 2016 after had taken into consideration of the following:

i)

as at 31 December 2016, included in the current liabilities of
the Group was derivative component of convertible loan notes
of approximately HK$67,594,000 which represented options
to entitle the holders to convert the convertible loan notes into
ordinary shares of the Company before the maturity dates of the
convertible loan notes and the early redemption option. Such
derivative component of convertible loan notes shall not result in
any cash outflow for the Group;

subsequent to 31 December 2016, approximately
HK$438,175,000 of other payables and approximately
HK$344,157,000 of amount due to related companies had already
confirmed that they shall not demand immediate settlement due
by the Group before 1 July 2018;

subsequent to 31 December 2016, the Group’s non-controlling
interest holder had confirmed that the aggregate amount due by
the Group of approximately HK$3,928,215,000 are extended for
not less than one year from the original dates on which they are
falling due; and

further financing can be obtained by the Group when necessary
and internal funds shall be generated from the Group’s operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —E—"F+_A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis. If adequate finance is not available, the Group
may be unable to meet its obligations as and when they fall due in
the foreseeable future. Should the Group be unable to continue to
operate as a going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in
the consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS(s)”), amendments and Interpretations (“Int(s)”),
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the

“HKICPA”).

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014
Cycle

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 1

Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
HKAS 16 and Depreciation and Amortisation
HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to
HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 28

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiEZ —FT— ~NF+_A=1+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses'

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions?

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Investment

with HKFRS Insurance Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to the HKFRS

Standards 2014-2016 Cycles®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
4 Effective date not yet been determined.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning in or after 1 January 2017
or 1 January 2018 as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —F—~"F+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. BRAFMIIREEITEBUBR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as described
below, the application of the new and revised HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition. In 2013,
HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring into effect a substantial
overhaul of hedge accounting that will allow entities to better
reflect their risk management activities in the financial statements.
A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 to incorporate
all the requirements of HKFRS 9 that were issued in previous years
with limited amendments to the classification and measurement
by introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive income”
(“FVTOCI”) measurement category for certain financial assets. The
finalised version of HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected credit loss”
model for impairment assessments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

(continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 (2014) requires
that the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was

presented in profit or loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s expected
credit losses on its financial assets and commitments to extend
credit were added. Those requirements eliminate the threshold
that was in HKAS 39 for the recognition of credit losses. Under
the impairment approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised. Instead, expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses should always be accounted for. The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition and,
consequently, more timely information is provided about expected

credit losses.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE VI RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ T — ~NF+_A=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —E—"F+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

(continued)

e HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more closely
aligns hedge accounting with risk management activities
undertaken by companies when hedging their financial and non-
financial risk exposures. As a principle-based approach, HKFRS
9 (2014) looks at whether a risk component can be identified and
measured and does not distinguish between financial items and
non-financial items. The new model also enables an entity to use
information produced internally for risk management purposes as
a basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary to
exhibit eligibility and compliance with the requirements in HKAS 39
using metrics that are designed solely for accounting purposes.
The new model also includes eligibility criteria but these are
based on an economic assessment of the strength of the hedging
relationship. This can be determined using risk management
data. This should reduce the costs of implementation compared
with those for HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces

the amount of analysis that is required to be undertaken only for

accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9
(2014) in the future may have significant impact on amounts reported
in respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities.
Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable to provide

a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been

completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =%
2.

—RNFETZA=T—HLFE
APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to contracts
with customers, featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of
transactions to determine whether, how much and when revenue is

recognised. The five steps are as follows:

i) Identify the contract with the customer;

i) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

iy Determine the transaction price;

iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and

v)  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance

obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of

revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the

related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted. The directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the future
may have an impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15

until the Group performs a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —FT—~F+_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases
HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and their treatment in the financial statements of

both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a single
lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with the lease term of more than 12 months,

unless the underlying asset has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any lease payments
made to the lessor at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received, the initial estimate of restoration costs and
any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee. A lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. Lease liability
is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payment made, and remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised
in-substance fixed lease payments. Depreciation and impairment
expenses, if any, on the right-of-use asset will be charged to profit
or loss following the requirements of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment, while interest accrual on lease liability will be charged to

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VSRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ T — "F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. BAFIREEIEBUBR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly,
a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance
leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including HKAS
17 Leases and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019 with early application permitted provided that the entity
has applied HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers at
or before the date of initial application of HKFRS 16. The directors
of the Company are in the process of assessing their impact on the
consolidated financial statements of these requirements. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect until the
Group performs a detailed review.

Amendment to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. The amendments do not prescribe a
specific method to fulfill the new disclosure requirements. However,
the amendments indicate that one way is to provide a reconciliation
between the opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from

financing activities.

Amendments to HKAS 7 will become effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the application of Amendments to HKAS
7 would result in additional disclosures on the Group’s financing
activities, especially reconciliation between the opening and closing
balance in consolidated statement or financial position for liabilities
arising from financing activities will be provided on application.

EER([BEBMBHREER])
(&)

BRMBREEAE1SAR
(#)
BRHAAZEHEEN S BAMEREE
RIE16H EE LHTE B HERE 175
HBAREEE - Bl B ABRSHES
SEAREEEIMATEE YUTRF R
5 2% MR A AR -

RV BMEENF16FA N EBEIMAR
TZMEER BRBB S ENE17HRE
ERAERE-

BB BRELNE16RHIR T —NF—
A—Rz@Ra 2 FERHER LR
B EBEBARTEMBHRELERF16
SIS ERE AR 2 RAEBYBINE
EAFRFFEHNRA-RAREFLER
HEZEREHRNEEYBRR2EZE R
e RAEEETHERNNREZFEZ
BEEF I TNER -

ERETERFIRZBITRE
=t &l
REEIERERRREMBRREMAEL
HAERETDFEE AREH 2 REA
B ORERSREELZ BYRIRLEH -
RBEL EREERFRBRTZIEES
he KT - BB — AR AR
BATDELZ BB BNRERES Y
B o

EBRIRASETRZBTR -2 L5~
A— B2 kMA 2 EMEEN Dk
A -

EEEY EREESIERETR ZEFTH
SERUASERETHELEIEE &
MRENEARREGSMERARARBE
EBEEMNAERHTRAROERELY
BR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 * 2016 & F i 79



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —E—"F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are

measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal
(or most advantageous) market between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Details of fair value measurement

are explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary prepares its financial statements
using accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that subsidiary’s
financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements

to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =%

3.

—ANETZA=+—HILEFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over the
investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power over the investee
to affect the amount of the Group’s returns. When the Group has
less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, power over
the investee may be obtained through: () a contractual arrangement
with other vote holders; (i) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; (iii) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights;
or (iv) a combination of the above, based on all relevant facts and

circumstances.

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of these

elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
of the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses control of the

subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to

control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE =%

3.

—ANEFETZA=+—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by

applicable HKFRSs).

Business combinations

Businesses combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs incurred to effect a business

combination are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiEZ —FT— ~NF+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in the business combination are recognised

and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes;

e assets or liabilities related to the acquiree’s employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
transactions of the acquiree or the replacement of the acquiree’s
share-based payment transactions with the share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that

standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —E—"F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by another standards,
are measured at acquisition-date fair value except for non-controlling
interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured either at fair value or at the present ownership
instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the

acquiree’s identifiable net assets on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the

acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Other contingent consideration that is
within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value at each reporting
date, and changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with HKAS 39. Other contingent consideration that is not
within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value at each reporting

date and changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss.

84 NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 4t S5 &R R B R A 7

3.

EREEEGR (#)

X% a0t (&)

B3 2B A - 7 B SR AR 4 M
A8 2 AT @8 B R TEs A A
W T HHE ATEE BB I (5
FRAREZ RS T UURTFE
SKUASR S 2 A 1 T A RME RIS 5 R )
SEBRRT TR BF AR BRRS Wi

=

= o°

EAREREBAMRERELRERZAR
ARELTHIMEEZEERBER  AAK
ERRWERMZ A FEFE THRER/R
BafRmEEREZ B -TaER
ENHAERZIARARBZAFEZS FHU
EHHETRE  MEE RS ETHED
E-FEHEAREER [FFEHE] (T
HUHE B EES —F) MBS RKRERNEF
EZEBRERERBINERESZH

2o

IAREBZAFEESHZEREGHEIEON
BEBRFEFENEFHRIGBORNSARELD
MoB-NERBEHEZIARETIERER
WERHENAE MAKREENERAA
fro BB G ERIFE95R E E Rz H A sk A
RERSMEBHPRAFESE MAFE
BYRBEEE G EEINNEERER -
EB G ERIFEIREE S 2 H S A E
AR EHmE AR AFEFE MAFEE
PRIBRER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =%

3.

—ANETZA=+—HILEFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such

treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period (see
above), the provisional amounts recognised at the acquisition date are
adjusted retrospectively or additional assets or liabilities are recognised
as of that date, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would

have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at cost less

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)

that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE =%

3.

—ANEFETZA=+—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss

recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of

profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss. The
results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividends received and receivable.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the

normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Service income is recognised in the period when the services are
provided, using a straight-line basis over the term of the contract for
the contracted period or using a fixed rate charged on the service

provided to its customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H{Z -~ —"F+_-_A=+—HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3. FESEE (&)

Revenue recognition (continued) WATER (&)
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are HEERZWARERRINRAMARSER
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following BR&LATRIA G R R

conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and o FREBECEHERHEEZFERRKE
rewards of ownership of the goods; WEBTER

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to o AEEHMERBAETHABRMERE L
the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control HEBEEERE TERBYCDEERZE
over the goods sold; ARAEE AR

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; o BEAEFEWAZEFE:

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the o HIZHEBEILBEMNERAERARSE
transaction will flow to the Group; and P &

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction o HARMAECKABEEZIRHKA-

can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable CRVEE 2R BMARKE B =A Al gein
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of AEBRBAZ SERESZAERER -
income can be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset BB E 2 B U A IR R [ 2 - W02 B £
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding AeRBRRERACERMNEZRE BRMX
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that EReREERBEERSE R 2 M RKR
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected SWAEBUBEZEERN B AERR 2K
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial EFEZ =

recognition.

Leasing HE

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease EHERTGE A R R E bR & B R
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the ETABAR HES 7%% BEME -mAA
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. HmEEADBERKEHEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE -

3.

—NEFETZA=t+—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of

financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which

they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which

they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the

leased asset are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =%

3.

—ANETZA=+—HIEFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period and recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options

reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options

reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share

options reserve will continue to be held in share options reserve.

Share options granted to business associate

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are measured
at the fair values of the goods or services received unless that fair
value cannot be reliably measured, in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when the
counterparties render services, unless the goods or services qualify for

recognition as assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE -

3.

—NEFETZA=t+—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings (classified as finance
leases) held for use in supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment (other than properties under
construction) less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted

for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in
the course of construction for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the

assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in

the profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE VSRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =%

3.

—ANETZA=+—HIEFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms

of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in

profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
the exchange translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interest

as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange

differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

TESTHE (#)

S
RYSERNEERE M ERERS L%

‘ﬂﬂfﬂ}

BIEEEB NG (IMNE) T2 T
RHBEMERBERT A“ﬁ‘ﬁ%(ﬂﬂ%?ﬁﬁ

EZIBEEREEE) SR -R@EHR
SMEHEERER R BERENRHRE 12
LEEJZZ!S.#EZ?\\ FHEFEKIEE T T

o

imt

HEEWEANBENHRESKEAEL ZIE
REFRELHRANERER ENHRER
RNTEFIRZIFEHEIABES ZE X Z 8T
A EEE -

MEIEEAMBMEME NEEBINEBZ
BENBEREMERRZETRE[AE
E25E% (ET) Mk AKRFXHEE 8
REEFERME - FIEL ZEHZR (1
ﬁ)ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%@%@?&ﬁ&?ﬂ&ﬁé%ﬁ?& (ERHmE
FfEf (ERm - FEEREREG) ) B

WG ETE R L 2 P8 K B U BB AT 335
BEZATHEBARE BEZEINEBZEE
LABERE REREPREXEHRE -
PREESE 2 FE R Z N E b 2 Y s R

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 * 2016 & F i 91



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —ET—~"F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Mining rights

Mining rights are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).
Amortisation for mining rights is recognised on the units of production
method based on the total proven and probable reserves of the mine
or contractual period from the date of commencement of commercial
production which approximates the date from which they are available

for use.

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise cash at banks and on hand.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined

above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H{Z -~ —"F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments

Financial assets as FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL has two sub-categories, including financial
assets held for trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial

recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial

instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE -

3.

—NEFETZA=t+—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets as FVTPL (continued)

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise

arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the other gains and losses line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note 40.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amount due from a related company, amount
due from a director and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on

financial assets below).

94 NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 4t S5 &/RIZER B R A 7

3.

EEGTHER (&)

EWMIA (&)

ETRMEE (&)

BAFEHAEGZ2BEE (B)

« HAPTETATREEREARBY
BT

o REEFDERIAEXNRE LREFE
iﬁm%ﬂmﬁﬁszﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ

o ZEMEEATKEREBEANTRZ
R B EIR I A RIS A R T EREEER
LithRRzeREEL SR BEAR
EMEZEKE D BBEHSEERT
R EERRRIRM X

e WR-EEE AxZEASITETA
ZE#Z Ay - & B & A RIFE395%
ARHFENEHEN (BERBBIEER
BRAFES ARG

BATEFABZZeMEERR FER

2 RTEEDARELEPHEENBERRE

RoNBEEBRZUANEBRFEELESR
BERNZEMKREXFE Wit AtRa 8
mhEMmEERER s REEIEE
A o A B LAKT E40fT il 5 S T o

B RIEW

Am&§WMEﬁ%%%$%ﬁﬁﬁEﬁW
BEEKAIZENRZIFTESREE B
RHER%  BERRENFIE (BIEE S REM
FEMRIE - UL —RIRRIE A RIKIE B — A&
ERREURBITEBRER ) RAERA
FRIRBHEAK AR ER B B AR EEE (R
TXEHeREEREBEZ G BER)

=

=°



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE VSRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =%

3.

—ANETZA=+—HIEFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:
e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because

of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period
from 30 to 180 days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE =

3.

—ANEFETZA=+—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and
other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts
due to related companies, amount due to a non-controlling interest
holder, promissory notes and other borrowings are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H{Z -~ —"F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expenses over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form as integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible loan notes

Convertible loan notes issued by the Group that contain both liability
and conversion option components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion option that will
be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is a conversion option derivative. At the date of issue, both
the liability and conversion option components are recognised at fair

value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible loan
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The conversion option derivative together with other embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value

recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan notes
are allocated to the liability and derivative components in proportion
to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the derivative
components are charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the

convertible loan notes using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE -

3.

—NEFETZA=t+—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are classified as equity if it is non-
redeemable and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends on
convertible preference shares classified as equity are recognised as

distributions within equity.

Embedded derivatives

Derivative embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with

changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an

associated liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligation are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE VSRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =%

3.

—ANETZA=+—HIEFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are calculated using the weighted average method
for its mining products and first-in-first out method for its systems
integration services and software solutions products. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling prices for inventories less all

estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows

have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately

in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE =

3.

—ANEFETZA=+—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately in profit or loss.

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to

them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the

related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported in the
consolidated profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ =T — ~NF+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those

deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the PRC government retirement benefit scheme pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (‘MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

3.

EREETECR (F)

BiE (&)
BREHARGAMERRTAERBELE
T 18 5 LB R P PR A B 2 2
MEERR - FEEANEEEEEANE
WREEH AR M BT NBEREER
BEERREER AAE HENTESE
5 SR B R T 489 P9 % B B A
EHR-

RMBARZHERBZ ERREHIEER
EHEREEHRBEE RIEAREEHE
By I 22 RE B (o] o B M 22 R A W) R R 2R T
TEm - BIER® - REZERE LR
Mz AR REEEMES RERIAE
EEUTESEERHERTEN A HBA
ZEETRHUEERE NG BZEEREEE
BRI A R A R SRR ER

AR B RS AR R AR ER
5255 (RBUR) - R B EBRESE
B2 BRI S

BN HA RO RE A TR PN 1R 2 R AR

BRI A

18 450 ERARRE 25 T2 R0 R 1 ) o BB IR
BN BIARE SR AESHE ([%
MBI X2 RE - MR R RGRI
AARTERRERRAMNL -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 * 2016 & F i 101



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE -

3.

—NEFETZA=t+—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect
of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits

expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be

paid in exchange for the related service.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised
as a provision, is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking

into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Provision for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental
costs

Provisions for the Group’s restoration, rehabilitation and environmental
expenses are based on estimates of required expenditure to restore the
sites of Group’s mines in accordance with PRC rules and regulations.
The Group estimates its liabilities for final reclamation and mine closure
based upon detailed calculations of the amount and timing of the
future cash expenditure to perform the required work, escalated for
inflation, then discounted at a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability such that the amount of provision reflects the present value of

the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE VSRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =%

4.

—ANETZA=+—HIEFE
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimation (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated financial

statements.

Going concern basis
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the basis as set out

in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —ET—~"F+_A=+—HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies (continued)

Control over subsidiaries

The Group owns 49% equity interest in L 7aE kB HEBEETR L E
FEZ AR A A (“Shanxi Coal”). The Group’s ownership of 49% equity
interest in Shanxi Coal gives the Group the same percentage of the
voting rights in Shanxi Coal. The Group’s 49% equity interest in Shanxi
Coal was acquired on 7 June 2013 and there has been no change
in the Group’s ownership in Shanxi Coal since then. The remaining
51% of the registered capital of Shanxi Coal is owned by two equity
interest holders, who holds 41% and 10% respectively. The directors
of the Company made an assessment as at the date of completion
of acquisition as to whether or not the Group has control over Shanxi
Coal in accordance with the definition of control and the related
guidance set out in HKFRS 10.

The directors of the Company concluded that it has had control over
Shanxi Coal since the completion of acquisition on 7 June 2013 on
the basis that under the amendments made to the memorandum and
articles of association of Shanxi Coal on 21 December 2009, the Group
are able to appoint five directors out of nine on the board of directors
of Shanxi Coal through its wholly owned subsidiaries and a resolution
to be passed by the board of directors of Shanxi Coal requires a simple
majority. Upon Shanxi Coal were effectively acquired by the Group
on 7 June 2013, the Group is able to control the decision making
of the board of directors of Shanxi Coal through its wholly owned

subsidiaries.

In addition, all the shareholders of Shanxi Coal agreed that they
will approve the plans and proposals, including operating and
investment plan, financial budgeting, profit appropriation, extraction
of discretionary reserve and the issuance of bonds, proposed by
the board of directors of Shanxi Coal. Accordingly, Shanxi Coal is

accounted for as subsidiary of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H{Z -~ —"F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account their
estimated residual values. The determination of the useful lives and
residual values involve management’s estimation. The Group assesses
annually the residual values and the useful lives of the property,
plant and equipment and if the expectation differs from the original
estimates, such a difference may impact the depreciation in the year

and the estimate will be changed in the future period.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group tests at the reporting date whether property, plant
and equipment have suffered any impairment in accordance with
accounting policies stated in Note 3. Determining whether property,
plant and equipment are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment. Such
estimation was based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results. These
calculations require the use of estimates such as the future revenue

and discount rates.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment are approximately HK$1,437,291,000 net of
accumulated depreciation and impairment of HK$507,589,000 (2015:
HK$1,060,046,000, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment of
HK$596,669,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE =
4,

—ANEFETZA=+—HILFE
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of mining rights

Under the full cost method of accounting for mining rights, such
costs are capitalised by reference to appropriate cost pools, and are
assessed for impairment when circumstances suggest that the carrying
amount may exceed its recoverable value. This assessment involves
judgement as to (i) the likely future commerciality of the asset and when
such commerciality should be determined; and (i) future revenues
and costs pertaining to the asset in question, and the discount rate to
be applied to such revenues and costs for the purpose of deriving a
recoverable value. While conducting an impairment review of its assets,
the Group makes certain judgements in making assumptions about the
future product prices, reserves and future development and production
costs. Changes in these estimates may result in significant changes
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 31 December
2016 the carrying amount of mining right is HK$7,944,075,000 net of
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses of HK$2,901,363,000
(2015: HK$7,977,311,000 net of accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses of HK$3,601,142,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amount of goodwill is nil, net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$3,676,679,000. (2015: nil, net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$3,676,679,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are

disclosed in Note 17.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 H{Z -~ —"F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables
When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash receipts are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of trade
receivable is HK$33,438,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$14,298,000) (2015: carrying amount of HK$27,429,000, net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$23,591,000).

Mine reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s mine reserves are inherently
imprecise and represent only approximate amounts because of the
subjective judgements involved in developing such information. There
are authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering criteria that
have to be met before estimated mine reserves can be designated
as “proven” and “probable”. Proven and probable mine reserve
estimates are updated on regular intervals taking into account recent
production and technical information about each mine. In order to
calculate reserves, estimates and assumptions are required about
a range of geological, technical and economic factors, including
quantities, grades, production techniques, recovery rates, production
costs, transport costs, commodity demand and commodity prices.
In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to year, the
estimate of proven and probable mine reserves also changes. This
change is considered a change in estimate for accounting purposes
and is reflected on a prospective basis in related amortisation rates and

impairment of mining rights.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering estimates,
these estimates are used in determining depreciation expenses and
impairment losses. The capitalised cost of mining rights is depreciated
over the estimated unit of production. The estimated unit of production
are reviewed annually in accordance with the production plans of the

Group and the proven and probable reserves of the mines.

REEt B R AT ARES 2
EFERR (&)

A FTREEZETERE (F)
HESEWFIERZ ZRERE
W REBR TEER AEEGEE
mEtRRRERE- BEBEREEREDE
HIZeMEAERERAE (Bl ERERR
HZERME) R A RRASRERE
(TRENREEZAREERIE) 28t
o HARERRS WA DRTER - BIFT 88
EBERNRERBE RZE—XRF+A=+—
B & 5 kKR8 2 55 E 8 £33,438,000/%
JC (B RBR 514,298,000 L) (=%
— R4 REIE27,429,000/8 7T - 1k R AR &
1%23,591,0007 7T ) °

BE#Z
HRAEEBEEE TRESEEB SR
EEHE R TREH ARG TRERE EA
BOSE - NETBEHETEES [E9]
RIA8e) ol ARAEBIREGZE S
3l - RARATAHERE 2 e BT HEL
Wit R EBERPESRRMER 5 E
BN BT RITREBESEEELRE
HEBR ZERELEES Q- £ER
i B EERA EHKAS BHABR
R SER o tL5h - AR ER R AT S5
S8 WEBRURBEREEGT NGRS
B TR I - BB AETE
SRR B S A AERE M 8 R R IR AR -

HAZETIRMEAARGALTER BARE
EFERX LRERBE - RERE 2 8 AKX
AL EESUNE - A LEEEMRE
AEBEEFENMBEREBRAIELEHES
FRET o

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 * 2016 & F i 107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —ET—~"F+_A=+—HILFE
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 4. HARBETHERATTRESYZ

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters are different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred income tax provisions in the
period in which such determinations are made. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of income tax liabilities is approximately
HK$8,376,000 (2015: HK$6,947,000) and deferred tax liabilities of
approximately HK$1,795,426,000 (2015: HK$1,790,828,000).

Fair value of derivative component of convertible loan notes

The directors of the Company use their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not quoted
in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by market
practitioners are applied. For derivative components of the convertible
loan notes, assumptions are made based on quoted market rates
adjusted for specific features of the instrument. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of derivative components of convertible
loan notes recognised as current liabilities is HK$67,594,000 (2015:
HK$356,225,000).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs
The provision for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs
has been determined by the management of the Group based on their
best estimates. The management of the Group estimated this liability
for final reclamation and mine closure based upon detailed forecast of
the amounts and timing of future cash flows for a third party to perform
work, escalated for inflation, then discounted at a discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability, such that the provision reflects the
present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. However, the estimate of the associated expenditures
may be subject to change due to new government environmental
policy in the future. The provision is reviewed regularly to ensure that
it properly reflects the present value of the obligation arising from the
mining activities. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
provision for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs was
HK$66,682,000 (2015: HK$67,497,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The

Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts (which
included convertible loan notes disclosed in Note 27, other borrowing
disclosed in Note 25, amounts due to related companies disclosed in
Note 20, amount due to a non-controlling interest holder disclosed in
Note 24, promissory notes disclosed in Note 31, and obligation under
finance lease disclosed in Note 26, net of cash and cash equivalents)
and equity attributable to owners of the Company (comprising issued
share capital, convertible preference shares and reserves). The
directors of the Company review the capital structure monthly. As a
part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
the recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through new share issues and share buy-backs as well

as issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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NREEHEBRURRBEEDEEZEB 2R
B-RZE—RE+-RA=+—H W& &
18 3R 35 A AN 5 5 2 AR TH {8 /66,682,000
JL (=T —F4F 167,497,000/ 1) °

EXmBER

AEEZEAEREERRASEMEER
BAFELE RARERRIEREAELDR
#h BE/MNSHBESREALE - AKE
ZEBEEEEFURMERFIE -

AEEZEARBEEEHFR ETEHR
MisEe7it iR < IR E R R & - I 254K 5R
ZEMEE - M 204K B 2 M8 15 B 38 X B3R
B4R BE BN R RS A
AR MYV ER 2 L R iR K i FE 263
BemEMEERTZEE (MBRRERES
EEBY)URAARES ARIGER (BFEE
BORA EREERLFHEE) ARAE
ETARMELEE BhEREBELRK
ARBEEREANEBEZAR NEEKIZE
BEBERBATR R D B A R ¥
ERAEORAEEG FEHELEREREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE =

6.

—RETZA=T-RALEE
SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating segments, based on information reported to the
board of directors (being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”))
for the purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment
are as follows:

Systems integration — Provision of information technology

services and products, systems integration,

software solutions technology service, software
development, internet service, software
solution engineering and maintenance
services
Mining operation - Geological survey, exploration and
development of coal deposits (mining
operation), and selling of coking coal
Coal operation — Provision of coal trading and logistics
services
Cassava starch — Provision of cultivation and processing of
operation cassava starch for sale
The management of the Group monitors the operating results of
its business units separately for the purposes of making decisions
on resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on the operating profit or loss which
in certain respects, as explained in the table below, is measured
differently from the operating profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The Company’s financing and income taxes
are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to the operating

segments.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the CODM also reviews the segment

assets and segment liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ =T — ~NF+_A=1+—HILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segments revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenues and results by

reportable and operating segments.

Systems integration

oEER ()

7 EBUA R A
STHSIRA 2R REED BANT 2 A% E
IIN:ES T

services and Mining
software solutions operation Coal operation Cassava starch operation Total
AERHBHER
BEBARE REXH BREH RERBEH @t
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“§-xF ZT-1F Z§-xF C-T-3F ZE-xFf C-T-7F ZE-xFf C-T-7F ZB-xF C-T-%F

HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000 HK$ 000
TER TR TR TEn

HKS$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000
TR TER TR TER TR TER

For the year ended 31 December ~ BETZA=T—-H

HEE
REVENUE BA
Sales to external customers MABEPEL HE 94,912 58,333 93,25 5,590 - - 9,628 - 197,765 63923
RESULTS E3
Segment gain (oss) Al (KE) 37 (6% 489273 (3209559 (156) 07) 3,163 -4 (3217.282)
Unallocated income AAERA 128,761 491
Unallocated expenses AARZL (38,676)  (862,167)

Finance costs BERK

(272652 (371,978)

Profit loss) before taxation Riaad (58)

310,070 (4,450,916)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment gain (loss) represents the gain (loss) from each segment
without allocation of central administrative expenses, directors’ and
chief executive’s emoluments, change in fair value of derivative
component of convertible loan notes, loss on redemption of convertible
loan notes, (loss)/gain on redemption of promissory notes, certain other
income and finance costs. This is the measure reported to CODM for

the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

AEHEEED MG BRREREBHN
MisEsz &Rt BURMER - 2 &P i s (18D 18
EnWEL WS (BR) ML RKDEHR
TRFAX  EERITRARME  ATRRER
ERTAETARS 2 ATV ESZS EEAk
BRERZHE BE BEAEREZ (BE)
S WEs BT EMBARBRERA BT E
BROEERBIAGMEIBLERREREZ
EHH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2 —Z—

NETZA=T-RALFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEER (&)

Segments assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

THEERERE

AT REAZHRRELED DN 2 R EEE

reportable and operating segments. ERBE-
Segment assets DEEE
2016 2015
ZE-RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Systems integration services and R ENRTE R B AR R T &
software solutions 40,554 44,970
Mining operation RIBER 9,535,331 9,142,300
Coal operation R 41 75
Cassava starch operation NZ R T 27,618 -
Total segment assets DEEERE 9,603,544 9,187,345
Unallocated ROBE 37,711 34,504
Consolidated assets REEE 9,641,255 9,221,849
Segment liabilities DHMEE
2016 2015
—E-XF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FHET
Systems integration services and R EKIRTS R RR T %R
software solutions 45,440 48,482
Mining operation PR 275 5,121,446 4,834,080
Coal operation IR ER 54,301 54,401
Cassava starch operation INZER D HETE 7,309 -
Total segment liabilities NHEERTE 5,228,496 4,936,963
Unallocated RO 2,330,944 3,677,225
Consolidated liabilities LAEARE 7,559,440 8,614,188
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H{Z -~ —"F+_-_A=+—HIFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. PIEHR (&)
Segments assets and liabilities (continued) PHEEREE (F)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating MERSBRARR S BESEERM S

resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than certain - Fﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁi’i DEZFAZ2HRHE - HED
ETWE- lﬂ%& Sl B TEAR
Iéi . Tﬁi&;ﬁ\mﬁguﬁlmlﬁ ER—EES
RE-RITEBRERRESURBEAIER
DBERERZEE-

property, plant and equipment, certain prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, amount due from a director, bank balances and
cash, and assets jointly used by reportable segments.

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than certain - FBEABHIRESUZ2{HAE HTE
other payables, certain amounts due to related companies, other BE ?EMTEH K18 B TREMEEAR
borrowings, derivative component of convertible loan notes, B ﬂﬁ BE TRBREREEZ /TE
liabilities component of convertible loan notes, promissory notes, TEHS A RBREFEEZBES

income tax liabilities, deferred tax liability and liabilities jointly liable EAEE FEHRAaE- @L%RIEEELX
by reportable segments. MRS ERSBRRAREZEBE-

Hibn &R

Other segment information

Systems integration
services and

software solutions Mining operation Coal operation Cassava starch operation Unallocated Consolidated
FERRRER
BRERFE RRER RRER RERBEH *9E &8

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“2-xE CT-RfF ZR-AE CT-RF ZE-XF SR-R%F ZR-RE “T-RfF ZBE-RF SR ZE-xE 0 CT-0f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiEn THR TET iR T T TR Tk T TR FiEn

For the year ended BEt-A=1-A
31 December Ji3:3:4
Amounts included in the SEATNE (KBRS

measure of segment gain HAERTRITHA

(losses) or segment assets:

Depreciation k] 204 259 42,31 46,821 - S - S 345 303 42,920 47,383

Amortisation of mining right

REERE

94,882

= = = 94,882

Addtion of non-current REERDEE

assets 388,420 282,215 - 90 396 388,642 243,012
Impairment loss recognised HEARNERR L

in respect of trade HEEE

receivables - - S - S - 1,859
Gain on disposal of property, ﬁ'ﬂ‘ﬂ% BER

plant and equipment R hE (452) (2,535) - - - (452) (2,660)
Impairment logs recognised i~ SiEBERZHERE

respect of goodwil - - = - - - 2,362
Impairment loss recongnised  StRRERR L AEFE

in respect of mining rights 338,806 2,715,022 = - = 338,806 2,715,022
Reversal of impairment loss SRERZ 2 RERR

recongnised in respect of &R

mining rights (900,880) - - - - (900,880) -
Impairment loss recongnised  §t91% - B REERR

in respect of property, ZREEE

plant and equipment 51,704 368,432 o - = 51,704 368,432
Reversal of impairment loss m”% FREE

recongnised in respect HEFEER

of property, plant and

equipment (143,517) - - - - (143,517) -
Recovery of other receivables Bl Z BT i 2

previously written off E s - (35) - - - - (35)
Impairment loss reversal in

respect of trade receivable (8,733) - - - - (8,733) =

Amounts regularly provided to

CODM but not included in the
measure of segment losses:
Interest income FlEMA (66) (44) > - (L] (169) (242)
Interest expenses HERx 123,295 144,323 143,252 223,558 272,652 371978
Income tax expenses (credit)  F/EREX (K%) 116,777 (678,756) - - 118,872 (678,184)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —ET—~"F+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEBER (&)
Other segment information (continued) HivpHER (&)
Geographical information ih & & K}
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, elsewhere in the REBEBUNES  HEEMMRRRE
PRC and Cambodia. e
The Group’s revenue from external customers is presented based AEBERBINFEEL ZRAZRLKCEMIZ
on the location of the operation. Information about the Group’s non- e BAAREFRBEE 2 ERAIRARE
current assets is presented based on the geographical locations of the EEEMTHMEZ-
assets.
Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC Cambodia Consolidated
Epe] REE i E R e
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-XE —Z-145 ZB-XNEf —T-hE ZB-AFE —Z-1F ZB-AE —T-1f
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET TET TET FTER FET TET FET
Segment revenue AEBA
Revenue from external REMNIEPZ
customers WA - - 188,137 63,923 9,628 - 197,765 63,923
Non-current assets ERBEE 349 308 9,403457 9,079,717 - - 9,403,806 9,080,025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —Z—

NETZA=T—RLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major

products and services:

2EHER (F)

FEEMRBHEZBA
T AKEEEBESRBHZRADH

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Sale of automatic teller machines HEBBIES K 20,271 19,645
Sale of mining products HEREE R 93,225 5,590
Sale of Cassava starch HERZRH 9,628 -
Rendering of computer 1R IS = T AR 75
technology services 74,641 38,688
197,765 63,923
Information about major customers EHRETEEFZER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing over EAEEREBFEREEI0% N E2ERZ
10% of the total sales of the Group is as follows: AT
2016 2015
—E—XREF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FAET
Customer A’ BEPA 50,058 8,557
Customer B? ®FEB? 23,370 N/AAS 3 3 8
Customer C? BpRC? 22,176 N/AZ i FA ¢

U RBRERRE R BRRTT REMRZ WA

! Revenue from systems integration services and software solutions products.

2 REEBZKA-

2 Revenue from mining operation.

¢ REEE 2 ERIRAE LI R B A AN S B UL
AZ10% °

8 The corresponding revenue from mining operation did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —ET—~"F+_A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 7. WARHMZE WSS
Revenue represents invoiced value of goods sold and services WAEEEEmRIBERY (NBRATS TIT
rendered, net of discounts allowed and sales taxes where applicable. MEEER (WER) ) 2 ERE-FAER
Revenues recognised during the year are as follows: ZHAT
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Revenue N
Sale of goods HEEM 123,124 25,235
Rendering of services R 74,641 38,688
197,765 63,923
Other operating income b 482 s
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BEERREZ WS
plant and equipment 452 2,660
Interest income R B U A 169 242
Net foreign exchange gains SN W R 5 R 1,740 1,272
Recovery of other receivables U 8] 52 AT B 88 2 HL 4t PR UK IR
previously written off - 35
Impairment loss reversed in respect of 5 EWFRIE 2 R EE B R
trade receivable 8,733 -
Sundry income MEIA 83 3
Gain on settlement of interest payable B EAF B 2 W - 477
Government grant (note) BAESE (M) 564 439
11,741 5,128
Notes: BeE
Pursuant to the notices issued by the relevant government authorities, certain REBEAAB BT EEEL 2 @B AARE T+ B
PRC subsidiaries of the Company were entitled to enjoy subsidies for provision of BRAZEREZIMEMRBERBZHEHE A&
specialised information technology services. There is no further condition that the EREAMARTE 2 G-

Group is required to fulffill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —Z—

8.

NETZA=T—RLEFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. W&
2016 2015
—E-K¥ —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Interest expenses on borrowings wholly HARSFRNTBHEEZ
repayable within five years: BEZAMERAX:
- effective interest expenses on —ABRREREEZ
convertible loan notes ERF SHX 134,144 192,970
— promissory notes —E A RE 5,598 29,798
— other borrowings —HEE 3,027 2,346
- finance lease —REREE 11,885 -
— amount due to a related company — BT — R E A R B 482 791
— amount due to a non-controlling — BN —RIEERERFTE ARE
interest holder 321,709 314,848
Total borrowing costs BIEERA 476,845 540,753
Less: amounts capitalised in construction in = i REZR T RETERAZ & H
progress (207,876) (172,563)
Imputed interest for provision for B EERIRIBR AN
restoration, rehabilitation and FE=HF 2 (FFE30)
environmental costs (Note 30) 3,683 3,788
272,652 371,978
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —ET—~"F+_A=+—HILFE

9. PROFIT(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 9. FRBIATEF (BIR)
2016 2015
=B-RF i
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET

Profit (Loss) before taxation has been arrived BRE AR (E18) 2% -
at after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration %A N & 1,510 1,371
Amortisation of mining rights RIS (FFAEERAK)
included in cost of sales 94,882 -
Amounts of inventories recognised EEARMIZFESH
as expense 65,507 17,406
Depreciation e 42,920 47,383
Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments % % R /T A B &
(Note 14) (PfF3E14) 13,577 23,973
Impairment loss recognised in respect of REBEH RN EER ZHRESE
trade receivables - 1,859
Management fee paid to a non-controlling AT —REHEB AR — RIS
interest holder of a subsidiary BEAZEEE 29,808 -
Payments under operating leases THREFZEEHENK
in respect of land and buildings 10,963 12,641
Staff costs (excluding directors’ and B TITRA
chief executive’s emoluments) (TEREESERITHRERMNS)
(Note 13) (FfF3%13) 75,750 102,185
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE(CREDIT) 10. FREHBIZ (E%)
2016 2015
ZE-XRF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAET
Current tax: B EARR 1A
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”) PRGN (TREMEH]) 1,449 572
Cambodia profit tax RIFRFBH 646 -
Deferred tax (Note 32) EERIE (FIsE32)
Current year KE 116,777 (678,756)
Income tax expense (credit) P8R s (E2) 118,872 (678,184)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2= —Z—

NE+-A=1+—RHILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE(CREDIT) (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not subject to any income
tax in Bermuda and the BVI.

No provisions for Hong Kong Profits Tax have been made for
subsidiaries established in Hong Kong as these subsidiaries did
not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
during both years.

Profits of the subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to
PRC EIT.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Under the Law of the Cambodia, the tax rate of the Cambodia
Subsidiaries is 20% for 2016.

The income tax expense (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the
Profit (loss) before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as follows:

10. FRIEHMAX (ER) (&)

() EEaRENEBEZES ([RBEX
HEDZRARSRD AEBEANA
RENRBREIESHMERPTSH -

(i) BREBFBRILZMERRNMIEFE
WIS EAE R BB RS B0 2 FE ARt
A W WL Z BB AR GHREE

IS -

TR B AR AL 2 MY B B 2 0 M R A
BEMREH-

(i)

REPEEEMRGIE([REMRE
ED) REEMSBUEEMIRD EF'IMT
BARRZMEFEZHER25% °

RIS A - RN 2 B =
T RNFZREAE20% -

(iv)

FAMBHAS (E2) fRa
Al A (1R HER T -

BERZBHRH

2016 2015
—REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Profit (Loss) before taxation BrEd AR A (&) 310,070 (4,450,916)
Tax expense (credit) at rates applicable REBAEEEEARE
in the jurisdictions concerned AEIBMERY (Ke) 82,749 (1,019,764)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax BARBWAZ BB E (56,950) (377)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible T MBRZ 2 R E
for tax purpose 94,414 341,247
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZBEBE  RETE 842 245
Tax effect of deductible temporary REERZ AT
difference not recognised ERERBIMBTE - 465
Utilisation of tax effect of B 2RI RER 2 A HH
deductible temporary difference TR =R METE
previously not recognised (2,183) -
Income tax expense (credit) for the year FAMSHAL (KE) 118,872 (678,184)
11. DIVIDENDS 1. KRE
No dividend was paid or proposed during both years ended 31 HE-T-—R"FR_ZE—RFT-A=+—
December 2016 and 2015, nor has any dividend been proposed since HIEMEFETEDRKBRRE B &E

the end of the reporting period.

HRPATR IR 52 3 IR S AT AR B, ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 H{Z —Z—"F+_A=+—HILFE

12. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 122 8RER (BE)

The calculation of the basic and diluted earning (loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year is based on the

following data:

REEARBEBEARGEEREAREER
B (B8 IR T 8URA

2016 2015
—E-XKF —ZT-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FHEIT
Earnings Z
Profit (Loss) for the year attributable to the ~— AR A A AEEFEHF (EE)
owners of the Company 107,605 (2,373,281)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BUEESERR 2
Interest on convertible loan notes AR ERER2FE 114,696 N/ATiE A
Change in fair value of derivative ﬂﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂ?ﬁmil LDz
component of convertible loan notes NEEEE (126,849) N/AT 3 A
Earnings for the purpose of diluted earnings AT E SR EFEA T 2 27
per share 95,452 N/AT i A
Number of shares B EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares At EZRREARZEF| ~
for the purpose of basic earnings per AR N T 1 8
share 50,746,992,367 15,090,139,513
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BERELTER I TE
Convertible loan notes MRERER 20,213,092,320 -
Weighted average number of ordinary BUAGEERBEERN
shares for the purpose of diluted 3 AR AN S S 8

earnings per share

70,960,084,687 15,090,139,513

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic earnings per share has been adjusted for the placing and
share conversion of convertible loan notes on 18 March 2016 and 30

December 2016 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the computation
of diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s share options as the exercise price of the share options is

higher than the average market price for shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the computation of diluted
earnings per share did not assume the conversion of convertible loan
notes since its exercise has anti dilutive impact on the earning per

share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H{Z -~ —"F+_-_A=+—HIFE

12.

13.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the computation of diluted
loss per share does not assume the conversion of the convertible loan
notes and convertible preference shares since their exercise would

result in a decrease in loss per share.

The basic and diluted loss per share were the same for the year ended
31 December 2015.

12.

BREFN (BR) (&)

BE-_Z-AF+-_A=+t—RLLEE &
RITEARRERRERTERETREE
HERERRY St E SR ERE I &
BB BABEERRBER AT ERE LR

HE-_Z—AF+-_A=—HLTFE BK
ERREEEEMAR -

STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF BEIRNK (FTEREERTH
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS) HEHME)
2016 2015
—E-XRE —heF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHET
Wages and salaries TERF® 56,608 63,237
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BB FIFT BBk 17,051 16,630
Share based payment AR 19 - 3% 2,091 22,318
75,750 102,185
The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate the MPF Scheme which are EAMBARRERESE HEERE

available to qualified employees. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the subsidiaries in independently administered
funds. Monthly contributions made by the subsidiaries are calculated
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs or fixed

sums as stipulated under the relevant requirements, as appropriate.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC participate in respective
government retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) whereby the
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the Scheme to fund the
retirement benefits of the eligible employees. Monthly contributions
made to the Scheme are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the requirements
in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC are responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to pay the

ongoing required contributions under the Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions represent gross
contributions by the Group to the Scheme operated by the relevant
authorities of the PRC and the MPF Scheme operated in Hong Kong.

,\/ﬂﬂoufgﬂéﬁéﬁiﬁﬁg RZEBENF H
BUEREASHE -MBLARAEGARERH
MR 2&TaD LR RBERERTH
ZEERBEHRK (RERTE)

$ETF¢EE§#%Z%%§U'ZK‘§EPWE
AAZ MEMEBR RN B ([ BRI
2\JJ) Bt EHEQBARA B3 H#
R REEREEZEARBANREHES B
u+¥IZtHT mi;zﬂijiﬁiﬁﬁéﬁaﬁﬁiﬁwﬁﬂ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —ET—~"F+_A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2015:

122

seven) directors and the chief executive were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4 EE THRRABKRSREEAR

B <=

(@ EERTHRARMNE

BENEN & (ZFE—hF £8)E

ERTHREH ZME D BT

BE-Z2-—A"E+-A=+-HLEE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other scheme  Share-based
Fees benefits  contributions payment Total
§& 2ER RUKER
ne HiER STEMR BB st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR TERT TERT TERT TET
Executive directors YTES
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo (‘Mr. Zhang”) KEEE([REED - 4,565 18 356 4,939
Mr. Huang Bogi Hipgks - 1,560 18 3,559 5,137
Mr. Tse Michael Nam (“Mr. Tse”) FEELE ([FxE]D
(Appointed on 1 September 2016) (RZZ-R"ENA—BEZA) - 600 6 1,335 1,941
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Zou Cheng Jian BEfEEE 168 - - 222 390
Independent non-executive directors BIKHITES
Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, JP  RE &% 4HGBS, JP 168 - - 222 390
Mr. Zhou Chunsheng BAEERE 168 - - 222 390
Ms. Leung Yin Fai REELL 168 - - 222 390
672 6,725 42 6,138 13,577
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ =T — ~NF+_A=1+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

4 EE THRHRAIREREEAR
M (&)

() EERTHEAZME (B)

BE-T-BF+-AS+—ALFE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other scheme  Share-based
Fees benefits  contributions payment Total
e RER RIKEF
e Hi R SR BRI Esh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TiER TR TR FET THx
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo (“Mr. Zhang”) REERE([REE]D - 4,804 18 962 5,784
Mr, Huang Bogi Ehps 1,560 18 9,616 11,194
Mr. Tse Michael Nam (“Mr. Tse”) #EErE ((#xE]) (R=2F—1
(Resigned on 30 November 2015) F+-AZt+AHEM) - 300 14 3,605 3,919
Mr. Chen Liang (note) e st (BEE) - - - - -
Ms. Liu Rong-Rong (note) Rkt (Max) - - - - -
Non-executive director FUTES
Mr. Zou Cheng Jian BEEEE 168 - - 601 769
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Mr. Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, JP 2 B4 %4 GBS, JP 168 - - 601 769
Mr. Zhou Chunsheng BAEELE 168 - - 601 769
Ms. Leung Yin Fai 2EEIL 168 - - 601 769
672 6,664 50 16,587 23,973

Mist: RZZE—RFERA—B BaiE (K
FE]) REIEK L ([8lz+])EE
ERMITES - A% 5 51/60,000% T
40,0008 - R -_E—HFE A
B BREE R ZTEIRHTES UK
BREMER MRIEHE - REER
Bz EBAREFMLRK

Note: On 1 May 2015, Mr. Chen Liang (“Mr. Chen”) and Ms. Liu Rong-
Rong (“Ms Liu") had been appointed as the Executive Director with a
remuneration of HK$60,000 and HK$40,000 per month respectively.
On 2 June 2015, each of Mr. Chen and Ms. Liu resigned as Executive
Director in order to pursue their other business and as a result of the
termination of the agreement. Mr. Chen and Ms. Liu had declared to
give up the payment of remuneration.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —ET—~"F+_A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND SENIOR 1M EE - THARRKREREEAE
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) e (&)
(b) Senior management’s emoluments b) SREEAEMS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
three (2015: three) were directors (including the chief executive)
of the Company whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2015: two) highest paid

individuals were as follows:

AEBLERHMATBEREART=
Z(ZT—RF:=H)EZ (BETR
BE)  HEZMeEHN XX KM
(ZZ—0F - MAB)&ZaFTMALZM
Ea N

2016 2015

—E—-RE —T-RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FHET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e ER R HMEF 2,040 2,654
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R R 4@ | 51 2 1t 3% 36 18
Share-based payment [ 3GENE 1,230 5,780
3,306 8,452

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BHEZHME N FTIIHE :

2016 2015
—E-XK¥F —T—RF
No. of No. of
employees Employees
EEAH™ EE A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L £1,500,000/% 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t £2,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,0017% 7T £4,000,0007% 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ 7T £5,000,000/% 7T - 1

() No emoluments have been paid by the Group to any directors, (c) z—2—R"EFR-_ZF—AF+t_AH

the chief executive or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of the office during the two years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ =T — ~NF+_A=1+—HILFE
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
fixtures
Mining  Construction Leasehold and office Motor  Plants and
structure i progress Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles  machineries Total
B
HENE EEXER
REREYD ERIR | &3 %6 BOERB AE  BERRE @3t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT TAL TAT TAL TAT TEL TATL

COoST AR
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-15-A-A 198,404 1,087,156 91,104 3,295 17,832 16,434 74,928 1,489,153
Additions RE - 243,004 - . 10 847 3,167 247,028
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR - - - - 6 - - 6
Disposals heE - - - - - (3,250) (2,021) (5,.271)
Exchange realignment EHAE (11,879) (50,854) (5,468) - (749) (760) (4,497) (74,201)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1%
+=A=1+-A8 186,531 1,279,306 85,636 3,295 17,099 13,271 71,677 1,666,715
Additions hE - 388,149 - 90 58 101 244 388,642
Disposals e - - - - - (762) - (762)
Exchange realignment EXBE (11,794) (76,509) (5,431) - (748) 686) (4,559) (99,715)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-—RF
+-A=1+-H 174,737 1,590,952 80,205 3,385 16,409 11,924 67,268 1,944,880
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ~ Z:H7 & s
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2015 RZ-1§-A-A 41,983 96,662 16,077 3,295 10,278 7,231 20,441 195,857
Provided for the year 18,534 - 9,539 - 1,867 2,126 15,317 47,383
Impairment recognised for the year - 368,432 - - - - - 368,432
Eliminated on disposals L ER i - - - - - (1,692) (1,805) (3,497)
Exchange realignment ERAE (2,486) (5,787) (965) = (299) (744) (1,225) (11,506)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1%
+=A=+-A 58,031 459,197 24,651 3,295 11,846 6,921 32,728 596,669
Provided for the year EREE 17,824 - 9,549 8 12365 1554 12,620 42,920
Impairment recognised for the year FARZRE - 51,704 - - - - = 51,704
Reversal of impairment HERE - (143,517) - - - - - (143,517)
Eliminated on disposals LR - - - - - (452) = (452)
Exchange realignment EXRE (4,694) (29,129) (2,107) - (492) (516) (2,797) (39,735)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-—R%F
+-A=1+-A 71,161 338,255 32,093 3,303 12,719 7,607 42,551 507,589
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-—R%F
+-A=1+-AH 103,576 1,262,697 48,112 82 3,690 4,417 24,717 1,437,291
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1F
+-A=1-H 128,500 820,109 60,985 = 5,253 6,350 38,849 1,060,046
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H{Z —Z—"F+_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Mining structure 10%
Leasehold improvements 33'/5% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and office  20% to 33'/3%

equipment
Motor vehicles 33"/5%
Plants and machineries 10% or over the lease terms, whichever
is shorter
Buildings 10% or over the lease terms, whichever
is shorter

During the year ended 31 December 2016, based on the valuation
reports and the technical reports in relation to the mining operation
as obtained by the Group, the Group recognised impairment loss
of approximately HK$51,704,000 in respect of property, plant and
equipment during interim period. A further assessment was carried out
at the end of 2016 to further update the status of the mining operation
and the Group reversed the impairment losses made in in respect of
property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$143,517,000 as
the fair value of the property, plant and equipment was higher than its

carrying value.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group continuously
suffered loss from the mining operation. The directors of the Company
conducted a review of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
determined that a number of those assets were impaired. Impairment
loss of approximately HK$368,432,000 was recognised.

Particulars regarding impairment assessment are disclosed in Note 33.
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15. W% -BMERRKRE (F)

B W BRERREEE NEEERAT
ERHHFE

RIEBEY 10%
HEMEERE 33'/5% 5, HA
(B mHERE)
T -EERER 20%%33'5%
N
B 33'/5%
5 K 5% 1 10%3k 8 Hi
(A EERBE)
BF 10%3k 7 H3
(B mERE)

REBEE-Z—XR E+_A=+—BULFE"
BEAEERS 2 EERBEEB 2 HEA®R
ERBMRE  NEERPHBMERYE.
I# = K2 5% 15 T SR R! (B /&5 18 4951,704,00078
TLoARARZE—ANFERBITAAAE—
PREBARBEEG  RFTENBEAREE
BRI WE BERREED 2 BEBRLY
143,517,000 70 - REARME  WE R &EE
ZATFESREEREE:-

REE-_Z—AF+-A=+—BILFE K
SERBEBRHEZSIBR ARAESRE
ERAEE s ME BERERE WEFEZE
EEDRE - 2R A EE4368,432,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H{Z -~ —"F+_-_A=+—HIFE

16. MINING RIGHTS 16. PRIEAE
HK$’000
FHET
cosT B
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—HF—H 12,343,203
Refund of mineral resources compensation fees iR [0 & /£ &7 /i € & (22,581)
Exchange realignment R (742,169)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE—RAF+_A=F+—HBk=ZZFT—X~"F—HF—H 11,578,453
Exchange realignment M 5, 38 2 (733,015)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE-—XRFE+=-A=+—H 10,845,438
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT i MO E
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—HF—H 944,165
Impairment loss recognised for the year FABERBEERE 2,715,022
Exchange realignment fE i P& (58,045)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE—RAF+-_A=F+—Hk=ZZFT—~"F—HF—H 3,601,142
Amortisation for the year FAEEH 94,882
Impairment loss recognised for the year FAERBMEERE 338,896
Reversal of impairment loss recognised FNER 2R EEIEREED
for the year (900,880)
Exchange realignment bE & (232,677)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+=-A=+—H 2,901,363
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—RE+-A=+—H 7,944,075
At 31 December 2015 WZZE-—HF+-HA=+—H 7,977,311
The five mining licenses in relation to the coal mines will expire from AMERKEBEZ FETFAIEEN S —+tF
28 November 2017 to 8 January 2019 and subject to renewal. In the +—AZF+N\RE=ZE—NF— ﬂ/\EI B R
view of the directors of the Company, the Group will be able to renew R WA ABH - ARBEERAE A%EH
the mining licenses in relation to the coal mines with the relevant 15 88 LARBRK A AN BB R AR B U 8 A B 7
government authority continuously at insignificant cost. BE 2 IR A B B H o
During the year ended 31 December 2016, based on the valuation REBEE-_ZT—AF+_A=+—HItFE
reports and the technical reports in relation to the mining operation BREAEBERMESZEBRBES 2 GERS
as obtained by the Group, the Group recognised impairment loss of ERiTHRE  ANEBKN D EAHIE SRR T
approximately HK$338,896,000 in respect of mining rights during SRR B E5 18 49338,896,000/8 7T ° A A Al K
interim period. A further assessment was carried out at the end of E-RNERBITFEUNE—FREABERE
2016 to further update the status of the mining operation and the 2R RH AR AN £ B RO gt R EEE Y
Group reversed the impairment losses made in respect of mining rights 2 BB 518 #9900,880,0005 7T - R A A EAE
of HK$900,880,000 as the fair value of the mining right were higher BZAFESRERmTE
than their carrying values.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, due to commencement of T 2 il = R A = b BRI I
trial run from one of the mines and certain coal produced from the mine EEJEQ,HEP —(EAREERERELRBEREE .
was sold, the Group amortised the mining rights based on the units of FHRRETFHEE NEERIEEESEGK
production from the total reserve of the mine. E)Eli,ﬁ@ HEPEIHRERE-
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group continuously REBZE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HBLEE"
suffered loss from the mining operation. The directors of the Company ,%%,z %xx EREEBZEE -AQ
conducted a review of the Group’s mining rights and recognised AESERIAEE RBEERERREESE
impairment loss of HK$2,715,022,000. 2,715,022,000/8 JT °
Particulars regarding impairment assessment are disclosed in Note 33. B 2 FF BRI ES3H B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H{Z —Z—"F+_A=+—HILFE

17. GOODWILL 17. 58
HK$'000
FHET
COST B
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—A—H 3,674,327
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34) B it B B B8 2 R 2= AE (P9 5E34) 2,352
At 31 December 2015 & 2016 RZE—RAFRZZFE—A"F+ZA=+—H 3,676,679
IMPAIRMENT IE
At 1 January 2015 it s 3,674,327
Impairment loss recognised during the year FARZREESE
(Note 33) (FfI#¥33) 2,352
At 31 December 2015 & 2016 RZE—RAFRZZFE—AR"F+ZA=+—H 3,676,679
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2016 R_TE—RF+-_A=+—H -
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+=-A=+—H -
Goodwill arising from acquisition of cash generating units in segments: FAlE TR eEEEUmMEE S :
HK$'000
FHET
Mining operation B3 ES 3,661,555
Systems integration services and
software solutions RETEKIRTE R AT R 15,124
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—RFE+_A=+—H 3,676,679
During the year ended 31 December 2015, goodwill of HK$2,352,000 REBZ-_T—AF+-_A=+t—HILFE"
(2016: Nil) allocated to systems integration service and software DEERL %Wﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁm)&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁz
solutions segment was impaired. The rest of the goodwill were fully 22,352,000 (ZF—RF - &) HIR
impaired in previous year. B-EHEERNBEFEE2EBE-
Please refer to Note 33 for particulars regarding impairment testing of BEEE ZREANSFS  F2HHs3 -
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —Z—

NETZA=T—RLEFE

18. INVENTORIES 18. B &
2016 2015
=B-RF i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHEIT
Systems integration services and software  F{EE & 2 K&k BRG &
solutions products held for resale, at cost B ERR T B EE G RN ET 4,676 5,530
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. EZ R HMEWFIE
2016 2015
=B-RF i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Trade receivables =8 1 ¢ 47,736 51,020
Less: Allowance for impairment of B S EBIRRERE
trade receivables (14,298) (23,591)
33,438 27,429
Prepayments, deposits and TETFRIE -~ k& R E A FEUGRIA
other receivables 162,317 74,395
Total trade and other receivables B REMEWFIARTE 195,755 101,824

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2016, the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables included an amount due to non-controlling interest holder
amounted HK$65,432,000 (2015: HK$826,000).

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods ranging
from 30 days to 180 days which are subject to periodic review by

management.

AEBYERZSERTATMEMRSD -

RZE—RNE+ZA=+—B FEBfxE:
Ba RE MW GRIB R RN IER R RS
A A Z FIE65,432,0008 L (ZE— R4
826,000/ 7T ) °

REE—RIETEFIOREIBOR T EFZE
B Wl EEEE BT e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HlZE —ET—~"F+_A=+—HILFE
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. ESRHEMBEWFIE (&)
(@) The ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of impairment (a) MI|EER HREEABREEBEK

REZERH (WARERBEBA R
B2 B S REFIARE ST

losses recognised, based on the invoice dates which
approximated the respective revenue recognition dates at the end

of the reporting period was as follows:

130

2016 2015

—E—-RE —T-RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Within 90 days 90K A 17,649 7,704
91 days to 180 days 91 KE180K 10,304 7,460
181 days to 365 days 181K £365K 3,211 6,669
Over 365 days 365K A F 2,274 5,596
33,438 27,429

The movements in provision for impairment losses of trade

receivables were as follows:

BHRERBREERRE 2ZBN

T

2016 2015

ZE-XRF —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FAET

At 1 January ®—A—8 23,591 22,744
Impairment loss recognised FNER 2 REEE

during the year - 1,859

Reversal of impairment loss BB E R E (8,733) -

Exchange realignment HE 5, 58 2 (560) (1,012)

At 31 December R+—A=+—H 14,298 23,591
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H{Z -~ —"F+_-_A=+—HIFE
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

©

At the end of the reporting period, the analysis of trade receivables
that were past due but not impaired are as follows:

19.EFREMERE

©)]

RIE (#E)

RBEHR EBAMERREZESE
WRIBD AT AT -

Past due but not impaired

Neither
past ERBELEE
due nor  less than 91 to 181 to 1to
Total impaired 90 days 180 days 365 days 2 years
FEH 9Z 1812
“E  TREE  HRIX 180% 365% 122F
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIL TEL FREL FEL TEL THL
31 December 2016 —T-RE+ZA=+—H 33,438 17,279 5,520 8,226 294 2,119
31 December 2015 T-RE+-RA=1+—H 27,429 15,164 3,335 3,334 5,596 -
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate REHTMARRE B 5 REYGRIEREZ 5

to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default. The Group does not hold any collateral over the
balances.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

At 31 December 2016,
individual impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$14,298,000 (2015: HK$23,591,000) which have
been in severe financial difficulties and the directors concluded the

included in the impairment loss are

collection possibilities are remote.

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of HK$1,328,000
(2016: nil) were dominated in HK$, which is a foreign currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities.

As at 31 December 2016, other receivables amounting to
approximately HK$1,142,000 (2015: HK$1,102,000) were
dominated in HK$, which is a foreign currency other than the

functional currency of the relevant group entities.
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BREEANEREESEWRKE &
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BREME WEFRABKERE 2 #E
R -

R-ZE-AFEt-A=+—H BHE
WFKIE 1,328,000/ 7T ( ZF—RF &)
TIABT (LIFEHAEEERIGEEY
ZINE) EHE -
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1,102,000/ 7T ) LA/ 7T (I 3 46 A 5% (@
ERIEEE ZINE)FHE -

131



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016  #HZE—T— X "F+_A=+—HILFE

20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED COMPANIES 20. BUR (f) BBE A RIRIE
The amount due from a related company is unsecured, non-interest FEWREA R RIEREER Tt B RER
bearing and repayable on demand. EREE-
Included in amount due to related companies as at 31 December 2016 RZZ—RETZA=+—0 EN@EEQA
is an amount of HK$43,947,000 (2015: Nil) which is unsecured, carries FRIE /343,947,000 T (Z T —RF &) -
interest at 8% (2015: Nil) per annum and repayable on demand. The BERT RENERIE (ZT—RF &)
remaining balance is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on BRARERER SREREER THEAR
demand. The related companies are wholly owned by a director of the BIREKEERE ZSHAEATALARA—F
Company. BEE>EHA-
As at 31 December 2016, amounts due to related companies RZE—RNFE+_A=Z+—8 EHHE
amounting to approximately HK$93,861,000 (2015: HK$58,817,000) A &) FXIB 4993,861,000 T ( — T — A F -
are dominated in HK$ which is a foreign currency other than the 58,817,000/ 7T ) LAE T (I IFHRE S B B 48
functional currency of the relevant group entities. e B 2N ) EHE

21. AMOUNT DUE FROM A DIRECTOR . BEW—BRESENRE
The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on ZEFBEABER T EREREREER-
demand. The maximum amount outstanding for amount due from a FHNER—REEFEZERAREEES
director during the year is HK$66,000 (2015: HK$66,000). 66,0008 7t (—F — A % : 66,0008 7T) ©

22. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 22 SRITHBRES
At the end of the reporting period, about 58% or HK$21,356,000 RBEBRR RTEHRERRE 2+ 458%
(2015: 50% or HK$17,106,000) of bank balances and cash was 221,356,000 T (ZF — A F :50%k
denominated in RMB. 17,106,000/ 70 ) LA A R 5HE ©
The Group’s bank balances and cash denominated in foreign REBAYIEEBEEREREEE 2N
currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant group FHEZRITHEBRRIRSHIN O T

entities are set out as follows:

2016 2015

—EB-AF —T—hF

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FHET FAET

United States Dollar (“US$”) ETT 14,130 3,620

HK$ BT 172 3,038
Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% to HRA1T 45 BRI T 5 I 1 F0.01/2 £0.36/2

0.36% (2015: 0.01% to 0.36%) per annum. (ZZE—AF:0.01EF0.36F )T & °
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. E5 R EMENFRIE

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Trade payables 5 ENIE
— third parties —-%£=7 14,653 6,145
— a non-controlling interest holder ——HIFEREEFEEA 325 325
14,978 6,470
Receipts in advance TE U R IE 117,114 43,963
Accrued staff costs JEFT B TRAE 55,445 54,518
Other taxes payable E b1 3,969 3,689
Considerations for acquisition of WEK B AR ZNRE
subsidiaries 341,759 381,784
Payables for construction works and BETERBAKSENTIE
purchase of machineries 290,986 291,958
Accrued expenses and other payables B ER R EMERN KB 51,388 49,628
875,639 832,010

RBEHR KREZAHFE2EZEN

The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on the invoiced dates

at the end of the reporting period was as follows: KBRS
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Within 90 days 90K N 8,093 2,264
91 days to 180 days 91X E£180K 1,945 43
181 days to 365 days 181K £365K 707 1,143
Over 365 days 365K A E 4,233 3,020
14,978 6,470

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The BEEMZFHRESRRIO0K  REEK
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all BB REREERBUOR  BR 2 RN FIES
PR B B BABR A 4505 o

payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

As at 31 December 2016, trade and other payable amounting RZE—AF+ZA=+—HB BZKEM

to approximately HK$20,010,000 (2015: HK$20,499,000) were FE 1 2 78 #920,010,0000 75 (= B — A & :
dominated in HK$, which is a foreign currency other than the functional 20,499,000/ 7T) B T (L IFHBEEEE i
currency of the relevant group entities. e B Z NS ) R E -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 * 2016 & F i 133



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE_-Z

.AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

24

25.

134

HOLDER

As at 31 December 2016, the current amount due to a non-
controlling interest holder amounting to HK$3,902,503,000 (2015:
HK$2,745,260,000) is unsecured, bears interest at variable rates
ranging from 5.22% to 7.66% (2015: 6.12% to 12.05%) per annum
and is repayable within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. The amount is entrusted loans provided by a non-controlling
interest holder of a subsidiary through banks. During the year,
amount due to a non-controlling interest holder of HK$3,715,772,000
(2015: HK$787,841,000) was rollover at maturity dates without cash

repayment.

As at 31 December 2016, the non-current amount due to a non-
controlling interest holder amounting to HK$25,712,000 (2015:
HK$975,196,000) is unsecured, bears interest at variable rates
ranging from 5.22% to 7.66% (2015: 6.75% to 12.05%) per annum.
The amount is entrusted loans provided by a non-controlling interest
holder of a subsidiary through banks. The maturities of the balance are
ranging from 1 February 2018 to 31 October 2018 (2015: 12 March
2017 to 17 November 2017) and accordingly, the balance is classified

under non-current liabilities.

OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2016, a balance of HK$34,252,000 (2015:
HK$31,284,000) included in other borrowing is unsecured, which
carries interest at 9% (2015:
third party matured on 12 July 2017 (2015: matured on 12 July 2017).
The remaining balance of approximately HK$5,755,000 for both years

9%) per annum from an independent

ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 represents unsecured borrowing
which is non-interest bearing and repayable on demand from a former
subsidiary of the Company. These other borrowings are dominated in
HK$ which is a foreign currency other than the functional currency of

the relevant group entities.
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26. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES 26 MEHEENZ2EME

2016 2015
—B-AF —T—RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEENDITA:
Current liabilities REBAE 10,199 -
Non-current liabilities JERBAaE 52,147 _
62,346 -

The leased assets are mining machines for mining operation. The lease T EBE AFRBEKE 2 IREKE - A A4F - 7
term is 4 years. Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance EMHEBE T 2B SEMEMERE AL BEE

leases are fixed at respective contract dates 17.07% per annum. EATF17.07% °
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
BEBENE BERENRERRE

2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-XE —E-hf ZE-RE —E-hf
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TET

Amounts payable under finance ~ BEREEMHE

leases
Within one year —FR 20,065 - 10,199 =
After one year but within two years ~ —F % BRER 20,065 - 12,083 =
After two years but within five years MEEEBRER 45,816 - 40,064 =
85,946 - 62,346 -
Less: future finance charges B RREBES (23,600 = N/A R & A N/A i A
Present value of lease obligations HEEAZRE 62,346 - 62,346 =
Less: Amount due for settlement B2 ARG BEE 2 HB
within 12 months (10,199) -
52,147 -
The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the AEERBMEHEBE T Z2EEDHREAAY
lessor’s charge over the leased assets. HEEE ZHIPERER-
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27.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES 21. T RERERE

2010 Convertible Loan Notes A

On 14 September 2010, the Company issued convertible loan notes A
which had a maturity date on 14 September 2013 with an aggregate
principal amount of US$30,000,000 (the “2010 Convertible Loan Notes
A”). The convertible loan notes can be converted up to an aggregate
of 136,764,706 ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each. The notes were
denominated in US$ and entitled the holder to convert them into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time from (and including) the
date which is three months after the issue date up to ten business
days prior to the maturity date. The effective interest rate of the liability

component is 26.51% per annum.

At the issue date, the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A were bifurcated
into a liability component and an equity component. The equity
component is presented in equity under the heading of “Convertible

bonds reserve” on initial recognition.

Subsequent to the issue date, the Company and the subscriber of the
2010 Convertible Loan Notes A entered into a supplemental agreement
on 29 October 2010 (“Supplemental Agreement A”) to amend the
adjustment mechanism on the conversion price of 2010 Convertible
Loan Notes A. In accordance with the Supplemental Agreement A, the
conversion price of 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A will be adjusted
to the average closing price of one share during the month in which
the financial year-end day of the Company falls in any calendar year,
plus a premium of 15% if such price is lower than the conversion
price in force. According to the Supplemental Agreement A and the
announcement dated 3 January 2011, the conversion price was
adjusted to HK$1.30 per share. The Supplemental Agreement A was
approved by the shareholders at the special general meeting held on
18 April 2011 and approved by the Stock Exchange on the same day.
Due to the amendment of terms, the number of shares convertible by
2010 Convertible Loan Notes A is no longer fixed, the 2010 Convertible
Loan Notes A after amendment contained a derivative component in

addition to the liability component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE VI RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #EHZE—ZT—"FE+_-_A=1+—HIFE

27.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED) 27. ﬂ}?&ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%’i% (&)

2010 Convertible Loan Notes A (continued)

According to the Supplemental Agreement A, the conversion price of
2010 Convertible Loan Notes A was adjusted to HK$0.27 per share
on 3 January 2012. The details of the adjustment were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 3 January 2012. In the event that the
2010 Convertible Loan Notes A are fully converted, a total number of

861,111,111 new ordinary shares will be issued.

One of the undertakings under the relevant subscription agreements
(the “Subscription Agreements”) in respect of the issue of the 2010
Convertible Loan Notes A requires Mr. King Jun Chih Joseph (“Mr.
King”) and Mr. Chan Kwan Hung (“‘Mr. Chan”) to remain as executive
directors of the Company, so long as the subscribers hold any
outstanding amount of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A prior to 31
December 2014.

Both Mr. King and Mr. Chan resigned from the directorship of the
Company on 27 January 2011 (the “Resignation”) and caused a breach
of covenants of 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A. Thus, it was alleged
by the subscribers that the Resignation had constituted a breach of the
Subscription Agreements and an event of default under the terms and
conditions (the “Conditions”) of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A,
which would entitle the subscribers to give notice to the Company that
each of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A is due and payable at its
principal amount. In addition, it was further alleged by the subscribers
that the resignation of Mr. King had also constituted a change of
control event as defined in the Conditions, which would entitle the
subscribers to require the Company to redeem all or some of 2010

Convertible Loan Notes A on demand.

As stated in the Company’s announcement dated 15 December 2011,
the Company had received redemption letters from the subscriber of
2010 Convertible Loan Notes A (“Bond Holder A”) on 30 November
2011, requesting for the redemption of 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A

in accordance with the Conditions.

AR—Z-ZFTRREREE

(,%;)
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27.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED) 271. T RERERE (&)

2010 Convertible Loan Notes A (continued)

The Company and Bond Holder A had entered into a supplemental
agreement (“the Supplemental Agreement B”) in relation to the
alteration of certain terms and conditions of 2010 Convertible Loan
Notes A on 6 January 2012. The maturity date of 2010 Convertible
Loan Notes A was changed to 13 December 2012. Various terms
regarding increased charge on convertible preference shares and
ordinary shares, amendment on redemption upon change of control
and additional terms on redemption as a result of a major assets
acquisition and/or disposal and guaranteed return were altered in
accordance with the Supplementary Agreement B. Details of the
aforesaid alterations are set out in the Company’s circular dated 8
February 2012. Pursuant to the resolution passed in a special general
meeting on 23 February 2012, the alterations were approved by the

shareholders.

As explained in the Company’s announcement dated 8 October
2012 and circular dated 25 March 2013, the Group entered into
several contracts to acquire the entire equity interests in Lexing (the
“Acquisition”) and to dispose of entire equity interests in North Asia
Resources Group Limited (“NARG”) and Good Loyal Group Limited
(“GLG") (NARG and GLG and their subsidiaries collectively referred to
as the “Disposal Group”) and the sum of the outstanding loans from
the Disposal Group to the Group (the “Sale Loans”) (the “Disposal”) on
7 June 2013.

Moreover, on 6 September 2012, the Company and the Bond Holder A
entered into the subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement
A”) in which the Company agreed to allot and issue ordinary shares (the
“Subscription Ordinary Shares”) and convertible preference shares (the
“Subscription CPS”) at HK$0.17 per Subscription Ordinary Share and
Subscription CPS to the Bond Holder A (the “Subscription”).
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27.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED) 271. TR ERERE (&)

2010 Convertible Loan Notes A (continued)

The consideration of the Subscription that is payable by Bond Holder A
to the Company shall be satisfied by setting off against the aggregate
of (a) US$15,000,000 principal amount of the 2010 Convertible Loan
Notes A (the “Set-Off Convertible Loan Notes”) and (b) the difference
between (i) an amount that would vyield the internal return rate of
18% calculated on the Set-Off Convertible Loan Notes from the issue
date of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A up to and including the
date of completion of the Subscription (such amount shall take into
account of any interest (other than default interest) previously paid
with respect to the Set-Off Convertible Loan Notes, and (i) interest on
the Set-Off Convertible Loan Notes accrued from the date of the last
interest payment (i.e. 14 March 2012) up to and including the date of

completion of the Subscription at the rate of 8% per annum.

Further, on 6 September 2012, the Company, Bond Holder A and City
Bloom Limited (“City Bloom”), an independent third party to the Group
and the vendor of Lexing, entered into a supplemental agreement (the
“Supplemental Agreement C”) to amend terms and conditions of the
non-capitalised portion of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A with
outstanding principal amount of US$15,000,000 immediately after
the Subscription (the “Remaining US$15M Convertible Loan Notes”)
(the “Alterations”). The principle terms of the Remaining US$15M
Convertible Loan Notes as altered was detailed in the Company’s

announcement dated 8 October 2012.

The completion of the Acquisition, Disposal, Subscription and
Alteration (collectively referred to as the “Transactions”) should take
place simultaneously. Since the Transactions were not yet completed
on 12 December 2012, the Company had entered into an extension
agreement on 14 December 2012 (the “Extension Agreement”) for the
extension of the completion date of the Transactions. The Bond Holder
A has also given an undertaking to and covenanted with the Company
that it would not request for any redemption of the whole or any part
of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A on or before 13 March 2013
and it would not otherwise exercise or enforce any rights under the
2010 Convertible Loan Notes A to request the Company to redeem the
whole or part of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A on or before 13
March 2013.
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27.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED) 27. TR ERERE (&)

2010 Convertible Loan Notes A (continued)

As detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 18 March 2013,
the Company had entered into another extension agreement in relation
to the further extension of the completion date of the Transactions
from 13 March 2013 to 30 June 2013. Bond Holder A had also given
an undertaking to and covenanted with the Company that it would
not request for any redemption of the whole or any part of the 2010
Convertible Loan Notes A on or before 30 June 2013 and it would not
otherwise exercise or enforce any rights under the 2010 Convertible
Loan Notes A to request the Company to redeem the whole or part of
the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A on or before 30 June 2013.

The Transactions were approved by shareholders of the Company in
the extraordinary general meeting held on 12 April 2013 and completed
on 7 June 2013. As a result, upon the completion of the Subscription
on 7 June 2013, as detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 7
June 2013, the Company issued 351,122,243 Subscription Ordinary
Shares and 547,638,384 Subscription CPS to Bond Holder A to settle
the Set-Off Convertible Loan Notes. According to the settlement
deed, an additional loan from a related company of approximately
HK$4,102,000 had been used to settle the outstanding interests.

A loss on redemption of the Set-Off Convertible Loan Notes of
approximately HK$91,812,000 was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2013.

Upon the completion of the Alteration on 7 June 2013, the Remaining
US$15M Convertible Loan Notes will be due on 6 June 2016. The
Remaining US$15M Convertible Loan Notes can be converted up to
an aggregate of 430,555,555 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. The
effective interest rate of the liability component is 14.68% per annum.
A gain on amendment of terms of the Remaining US$15M Convertible
Loan Notes of approximately HK$14,538,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss during the year ended 31
December 2013.
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27.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED) 21. TR RERERE (&)

2010 Convertible Loan Notes A (continued)

On 4 May 2015, the holders of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes
A converted principal amount of US$15,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$116,250,000) of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A into
683,823,529 ordinary shares of the Company.

As at 31 December 2015, all of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A
has been fully converted and there is no outstanding 2010 Convertible
Loan Notes A as at 31 December 2015.

2013 Convertible Loan Notes A

On 7 June 2013, the Company issued convertible loan notes to the
shareholders of City Bloom with an aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$3,548,272,000 (the “2013 Convertible Loan Notes
A”) with coupon rate equal to the rate of dividend per share from time
to time declared and paid by the Company to the shareholders as if
the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A have been converted in full into
shares at the same time when the relevant dividend is payable to the
shareholder, in respect of the Acquisition. The 2013 Convertible Loan
Notes A had a maturity date of 6 June 2018 and can be converted up
to an aggregate of 20,872,186,547 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at
HK$0.17 per share. The notes were denominated in HK$ and entitled
the holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company at
any time during the period commencing from immediately after the
date of issue of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A up to the maturity
date. The effective interest rate of the liability component is 9.78% per

annum.

The Company may redeem whole or part of the 2013 Convertible Loan
Notes A at 100% of the outstanding principal amount together with
declared but unpaid dividend of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A
(the “Redemption Amount”) at any time after six months of the date of
issue of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A and before the maturity

date with prior notice to the shareholders of City Bloom.
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27.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED) 21. T RRERERE (&)

2013 Convertible Loan Notes A (continued)

The shareholders of City Bloom may at any time after one year of the
date of issue of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A and before the
maturity date with prior notice to request the Company to redeem
whole or part of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A at Redemption
Amount. On 2 September 2013 and 3 September 2013, the holders
of the 2013 Convertible Loan Note A converted HK$13,600,000 and
HK$10,200,000 of 2013 Convertible Loan note A into 80,000,000
and 60,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company respectively. On
27 January 2014, 28 March 2014, 4 April 2014, 23 June 2014, 19
August 2014, 29 September 2014, 11 November 2014 the holders
of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A converted principal amounts
of HK$8,500,000, HK$4,828,000, HK$34,000,000, HK$5,100,000,
HK$27,200,000, HK$93,546,000 and HK$337,412,000 of the 2013
Convertible Loan Notes A into 50,000,000, 28,400,000, 200,000,000,
30,000,000, 160,000,000, 550,268,000 and 1,984,775,000 ordinary
shares of the Company respectively.

On 5 January 2015, 27 March 2015, 15 April 2015, 28 April 2015,
8 May 2015, 28 May 2015 and 14 September 2015, the holders
of the 2013 Convertible loan Note A converted principal amounts
approximately HK$8,000,000, HK$252,431,000, HK$363,315,000,
HK$213,345,000, HK$386,204,000, HK$52,417,000 and
HK$317,787,000 into 47,058,822, 1,484,887,143, 2,137,145,257,
1,254,969,463, 2,271,787,254, 308,335,000 and 1,869,337,346
ordinary shares of the Company respectively.

On 18 March 2016, the conversion price of the 2013 Convertible Loan
Notes A was adjusted from HK$0.17 per share to HK$0.07 per share
pursuant to certain adjustment terms of the 2013 Convertible Loan
Notes A as a result of the placing of the Company’s shares on the
same date.
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27.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED) 21. TR REREE (&)

2013 Convertible Loan Notes A (continued)

On 30 December 2016, the holders of the 2013 Convertible loan Note
A converted principal amounts approximately HK$1,001,287,000 into
14,304,099,595 ordinary shares of company.

As at 31 December 2016, the remaining principal of the
2013 Convertible Loan Note A is HK$419,101,000 (2015:
HK$1,420,388,000).

2013 Convertible Loan Notes B

On 24 June 2013, the Company issued convertible loan notes which
had a maturity date on 23 June 2016 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$23,000,000 (equivalent to HK$179,400,000) (the “2013
Convertible Loan Notes B”) and with coupon rate of 8% per annum,
settled semi-annually. The 2013 Convertible Loan Notes B can be
converted up to an aggregate of 578,709,677 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at HK$0.31 per share (subject to adjustment). The notes
were denominated in US$ and entitled the holders to convert them into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time from (and including) the
date of the issue date and up to five business days prior to the maturity
date. The effective interest rate of the liability component is 20.61% per

annum.

On 15 May 2015 and 20 May 2015, the holders of the 2013
Convertible Loan Notes B converted principal amounts of
US$3,000,000 (equivalent to HK$23,400,000) and US$500,000
(equivalent to HK$3,900,000) of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes
B into 75,483,871 and 12,580,645 ordinary shares of the Company

respectively.

On 9 November 2015, the Company early redeemed principal
amounts of US$3,000,000 (equivalent to HK$23,400,000) of the 2013
Convertible Loan Notes B at a cash consideration of HK$23,400,000.
A loss on redemption of approximately HK$981,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2015.
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27.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED) 21. T RRERERE (&)

2013 Convertible Loan Notes B (continued)

On 18 March 2016, the Company has early redeemed principal
amounts of US$16,500,000 (equivalent to HK$128,700,000)
of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes B at a cash consideration
of HK$128,700,000. A loss on redemption of approximately
HK$4,181,000 is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016. The Company agreed
with the notes holders to pay an additional interest of approximately
HK$14,089,000 for the redemption.

As at 31 December 2015, the remaining principal of the 2013
Convertible Loan Notes B was US$16,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$128,700,000) (2016: nil).

2013 Convertible Loan Notes C

On 3 July 2013, the Company issued convertible loan notes which had
a maturity date on 2 July 2016 with an aggregate principal amount
of US$7,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$54,600,000) (the
“2013 Convertible Loan Notes C”) and with coupon rate of 8% per
annum, settled semi-annually. The 2013 Convertible Loan Notes C can
be converted up to an aggregate of 176,129,032 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at HK$0.31 per share (subject to adjustment). The notes
were denominated in US$ and entitled the holders to convert them into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time from (and including) the
date of the issue date and up to five business days prior to the maturity
date. The effective interest rate of the liability component is 22.61% per

annum.

The Company may redeem whole or part of the 2013 Convertible
Loan Notes B and 2013 Convertible Loan Notes C at 100% of the
outstanding principal amount together with unpaid interest at any
time after twelve months of the date of issue of the 2013 Convertible
Loan Notes B and the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes C and before the

maturity date with prior notice to notes holders.

On 28 May 2015, the holders of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes
C converted principal amounts of US$1,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$7,800,000) of 2013 Convertible Loan Notes C into 25,161,290
ordinary shares of the Company.
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= =
27.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED) 27. IR ERERE (&)
2013 Convertible Loan Notes C (continued) CE_ZE—=F0BRREXREE
(&)
On 9 November 2015, the Company has early redeemed principal RZZE-—HF+—-—ANB AR2AERE
amounts of US$6,000,000 (equivalent to HK$46,800,000) of the 2013 K (46,800,000 TRRFERASHER
Convertible Loan Notes C at a cash consideration of HK$46,800,000. 6,000,000 7T (48 % 746,800,000/ 7t ) 2
A loss on redemption of approximately HK$2,324,000 was recognised CE_Z—=FARRERZE -BRLERE
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 #92,324,0008 LERBE-_T—HF+-A
December 2015. Zt+—HIEFEZHRABEANER-
The movements of the liability and derivative components of the ARBREFRZERABERTETIAS S 285
convertible loan notes are set out below: BN
2010 2013 2013 2013
Convertible Convertible Convertible Convertible
Loan Notes A Loan Notes A Loan Notes B Loan Notes C Total
AR-Z2-ZF AE-E-=f BE-T-=f CE-Z-=%
AR AR AR MHERR
ERRE EREE ERE ENER Foh
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR FAT FET FET
Liabilities component 8BRS
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-HF—A—H 186,637 2,199,644 153,505 47,600 2,587,386
Effective interest expenses (Note 8) ERFISHZ (M8) 8,738 149,683 26,412 8,137 192,970
Interest paid during the year FREMFE - - (12,083) (4,308) (16,389)
Redemptions of convertible loan notes B A/ EHE - - (22,377) (44,388) (66,765)
Conversion of convertible loan notes RBATBRRERER (195,375) (1,207,139) (23,870) (7,043) (1,433,427)
At 31 December 2015 and ‘s’” AF+ZA=t-Hk
1 January 2016 —T—R"¥-A-H - 1,142,188 121,587 - 1,263,775
Effective interest expenses (Note 8) ERF S HZ (M) - 114,697 19,447 = 134,144
Interest paid during the year FREMFE - - (16,515) - (16,515)
Redemptions of convertible loan notes BRI AIARERE R = = (124,519) = (124,519)
Conversions of convertible loan notes REABRRERER - (885,887) - = (885,887)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"E+ZA=1T—H - 370,998 - = 370,998
Presented by: BATARESF]:
As at 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+ZA=+-8
Non-current liabilities FRBHEE - 370,998 - - 370,998
- 370,998 - - 370,998
As at 31 December 2015 R-B-EF+=A=+-H
Current liabilities VoEIR=RE - - 121,587 - 121,587
Non-current liabilities ERBERE - 1,142,188 - a9 1,142,188
= 1,142,188 121,587 s 1,263,775
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27.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED)

—RETZA=T-RLEFE

271. T REREE (&)

2010 2013 2013 2013
Convertible Convertible Convertible Convertible
Loan Notes A Loan Notes A Loan Notes B Loan Notes C Total
AE-2-Z% AE-T-=f BE-Z-=f CE-Z-=F%
B33 THR THR TRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHL FER FHL FHL
Derivative component fTEIAESS
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-nE—F—R (11,340) 922,792 6,077 1,861 919,390
Conversion of convertible loan notes REATBERERER (52,034) (1,284,637) (10,275) (2,462) (1,349,408
Redemption of convertible loan notes ~ EE A/ AR EHEE - - (42) (88) (130)
Change in fair value ATEEH 63,374 718,068 4,240 689 786,373
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE-REFZA=F+—-H8K
1 January 2016 —E-R"¥-A-H - 356,223 2 - 356,225
Conversion of convertible loan notes m RREREE - (161,780) - - (161,780)
Change in fair value AFEZY - (126,849) © - (126,851)
At 31 December 2016 RZF—-R"E+=-A=+—H - 67,594 - - 67,594
Presented by: BRUTHAZES:
As at 31 December 2016 R-B-"E+=A=+-H
Current liabilities RBAR - 67,594 - - 67,594
- 67,594 - - 67,594
As at 31 December 2015 R-B-AF+-A=1-H
Current liabilities mEAaE - 356,223 2 - 356,225
- 356,223 2 - 356,225
The fair value of the derivative component of the 2010 Convertible AT —ZFAMRERERZITETA
Loan Notes A was estimated at the date of amendment of terms, the WA AFEMEREITEE RIRE B K
date of conversion and the end of each reporting period respectively BEMEMARD RN BT — B RETEIEE

using the Black-Scholes model with trinomial tree method. The &1
il

B
DZAFEZPHNESBERRER -

change in fair value of the derivative component is recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The derivative component of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A

R=BAMMREEEGF -TETA

ABR—Z-ZEARRERERZITETA

represented the conversion option of the holder and the redemption
option of the Company, revalued on 4 May 2015 based on the
valuation performed by Greater China, using the Black-Scholes model

with trinomial tree method. The significant inputs to the models were as

follows:

Spot price (HK$) REE (BT
Risk free rate 3 R A =
Expected option period (year) TEHAEAREHARR (F)
Expected volatility SEEEN

MoERBAAZ R BRERAAR ZEORE:
ER-F—RFH A M B KEREZE N A
n-HBTHEEERE R ZEAEREE
FETZEEEGR - ZEHLEZERBAE
N

4 May 2015
—g-EF
EAMA

0.28
0.2782%
1.09
51.78%
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27.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED)

The derivative component of 2013 Convertible Loan Notes A which
represented the conversion option of the holder and the redemption
option of the Company, was valued 5 January 2015, 27 March
2015, 15 April 2015, 28 April 2015, 8 May 2015, 28 May 2015, 14
September 2015, 31 December 2015, 30 December 2016 and 31
December 2016 based on the valuations performed by Greater China,
using Black-Scholes model with Trinomial Lattice Tree model. The

significant inputs to the models were as follows:

271. TR REREE (&)

AR —Z—=FAMRERERITETA
HBOEBEAZRABRERKTAR 2 BB
ERZZE—hEF—RAB -ZE—RAF=A
—+tR - ZE-RFWOA+THA -ZT—H
FOAZ+NB ZZE—RFREANB - ZF
—AFRAZ+N\B - ZZE—HFENLATHE
H ZZ—AF+-A=+—H ZZF—RF
TZAZTEERZE-RETZA=+—H
REBEEFAME R - HRTAEEEED
R=mEAGREBEET2EEGE -ZF

BRZBERBABRNT :

31 December 14 September 28 May 8 May
2015 2015 2015 2015
—Z-0F —E-mEF —Z-0F —Z-0F

+=ZA=+—-H AB+ImAE ER=+NH HANH
Spot price (HK$) REE (BT 0.035 0.100 0.335 0.360
Risk free rate 2 [ B ) 2 0.7520% 0.6403% 0.7362% 0.8494%
Expected option period (year) —~ TEHREAREHAMR (<) 2.44 2.73 3.03 3.08
Expected volatility TEERK 1R 70.42% 62.17% 53.36% 54.24%
28 April 15 April 27 March 5 January

2015 2015 2015 2015

—E-EHF —E-EF —E-I1fF —E-I1fF

mA=+N\H MA+EA =A=t++tH —HEA

Spot price (HK$) REE (BT 0.270 0.224 0.169 0.146
Risk free rate 3 B ) =X 0.6827% 0.6970% 0.7869% 1.1039%
Expected option period (year) TEHAEAREHAR (4F) 3.11 3.15 3.20 3.42
Expected volatility TEERK 1R 51.49% 47.68% 49.08% 58.50%
31 December 30 December

2016 2016

—E—XRE —E-RF

Spot price (HK$) REE (BT)
Risk free rate 2 [ B ) 2R
Expected option period (year) TEERHARE AR (&)
Expected volatility T8 HA R 18

e ety B o ralles

0.021 0.021
0.9439% 0.9439%
1.43 1.44
82.77% 82.77%
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27.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED)

The derivative component of 2013 Convertible Loan Notes B which
represented the conversion option of the holder and the redemption
option of the Company, was valued on issue date 18 March 2016, 15
May 2015, 20 May 2015, 9 November 2015 and 31 December 2015
based on the valuations performed by Greater China, using Black-
Scholes model with trinomial tree model. The significant inputs to the

models were as follows:

271. T REREE (&)

BE-_ZT=—FrRREFREEBZITETER
HAEFEAZ A RERAKNNR 2 BRI
ER-ZE—AE=ZA+N\BZ%TEH =
E-RAERA+HEB - —E—HEERA-+
A ZE—AF+—ANBER=ZT—AF+=
A=+—AKRBESEFAMIER —H RIS
EEEEREAE=BABREBEETZEE
HE - ZEBAERGABLT

18 March 31 December 9 November

2016 2015 2016

—B-RE —E-RE —E—XRE

=A+NB +=ZHA=+—H +—ARhH

Spot price (HK$) WEE (BT 0.036 0.035 0.070
Risk free rate 5 b | = 0.3061% 0.4597% 0.3732%
Expected option period (year) TEHAEARE HARR (5F) 0.27 0.48 0.62
Expected volatility I8 1K 1 87.30% 97.06% 93.01%
20 May 2015 15 May 2015

—E-E% —E-EF

HRA=+AH EB+EA

Spot price (HK$) WEE (BT 0.320 0.370
Risk free rate R A =X 0.2540% 0.2463%
Expected option period (year) TEHRHARE AR (5F) 1.10 1.11
Expected volatility SELEN ] 65.41% 64.86%

The derivative component of 2013 Convertible Loan Notes C which
represented the conversion option of the holder and the redemption
option of the Company, was valued on 28 May 2015 and 9 November
2015 based on the valuations performed by Greater China, using the
Black-Scholes model with trinomial tree model. The significant inputs to

the models were as follows:

Spot price (HK$) WEE (BT)

Risk free rate 47 3 R ) =&
Expected option period (year) TEHRHARE AR (5F)
Expected volatility T8 B R 18

CR_Z—=FT#HRERFHZITETA
MoERBAAZLBRERAAR ZEORE:
ER-ZE-AFAA-TNARZZT-RF
T— AN BKEER BT — AT
REBEBEAR =AAMREBEET2EE
HE - ZERU2ERGAEBEMAT:

9 November 28 May
2015 2015
—E-HEF —E-HEF
+—AnNA HEA=+tNH
0.070 0.335
0.3829% 0.2952%
0.65 1.10
91.77% 65.73%
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. IR 2
Number of shares Share capital
RGEE R
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RF —Z-0F ZEB-XKE —Z-0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FHREBIBTL EER
Authorised: ETE -
At 1 January R—A—H 76,905,061,616  76,905,061,616 769,051 769,051
Increase i 120,000,000,000 - 1,200,000 -
At 31 December ®»+-A=+—H 196,905,061,616  76,905,061,616 1,969,051 769,051
Issued and fully paid BERAIREE
At beginning of the financial year 7 Bf B & R 14 B 20,663,363,407  6,034,978,023 206,634 60,350
Issue of shares upon: AT EBEETRD
Conversion of convertible HprEnEaR (Mta)
preference shares (note a) - 2,185,231,785 - 21,852
Conversion of convertible RATRRERERE
loan notes (note b) (kD) 14,304,099,595 10,170,569,620 143,041 101,706
Issued on placing (note c) FRE k27T (Miske) 38,000,000,000  2,234,505,000 380,000 22,345
Interest capitalisation (note d) FEEARY (MiEd) - 28,078,979 - 281
Exercise of share option (note e) ~ FERREEITEE (fiste) - 10,000,000 - 100
At the end of the financial year R BUE & 4 R 72,967,463,002  20,663,363,407 729,675 206,634
i :

Notes:

a. On 30 March 2015, 15 April 2015, 21 April 2015 and 8 May 2015,
1,988,720,587 of preference shares were coverted into consideration shares.
2,185,231,785 of ordinary shares were issued and allotted as consideration
shares upon conversion of the convertible preference shares.

a. R-E—RE=ZA=+H —E—HFWNA
+HBA - ZE—FEFWNA=-+—AK=ZE—H
FRHA/NB - 1,988,720,587REBARE KA
KRB - R AR TTEIRELRE BEITR

fid3%2,185,231,785/% L @A E AR BARH °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE
28. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

b.

150

On 30 December 2016, the holders of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes
A converted principal amounts of approximately HK$1,001,287,000 of the
2013 Convertible Loan Notes A into 14,304,099,595 ordinary shares of the
Company.

On 4 May 2015, the holders of the 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A converted
principal amounts of HK$116,250,000 of 2010 Convertible Loan Notes A into
683,823,529 ordinary shares of the Company.

On 5 January 2015, 27 March 2015, 15 April 2015, 28 April 2015, 8 May
2015, 28 May 2015 and 14 September 2015, the holders of the 2013
Convertible Loan Notes A converted principal amounts of approximately
HK$8,000,000, HK$252,431,000, HK$363,315,000, HK$213,345,000,
HK$386,204,000, HK$52,417,000, HK$317,787,000 of the 2013
Convertible Loan Notes A into 47,058,822, 1,484,887,143, 2,137,145,257,
1,254,969,463, 2,271,787,254, 308,335,000 and 1,869,337,346 ordinary
shares of the Company respectively.

On 15 May 2015 and 20 May 2015, the holders of the 2013 Convertible Loan
Notes B converted principal amounts of HK$23,400,000 and HK$3,900,000
of 2013 Convertible Loan B into 75,483,871 and 12,580,645 ordinary shares
of Company respectively.

On 28 May 2015, the holders of the 2013 Convertible Loan Notes C
converted principal amount of HK$7,800,000 of 2013 Convertible Loan Notes
C into 25,161,290 ordinary shares of the Company.

On 18 March 2016, the placement of 380,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at HK$0.01 per share were allotted and issued under the Specific
Mandate.

On 17 April 2015 and 16 July 2015, the placement of 472,205,000 and
1,762,300,000 ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.18 and HK$0.145
per share respectively were allotted and issued under the General Mandate.

On 18 July 2015, the Company entered into an agreement with a lender
that it would issue 28,078,979 ordinary shares of the Company to offset
the unpaid accrued interest amounting to HK$4,071,000 for a borrowing
of approximately HK$32,000,000 classified as other borrowing. Upon issue
of the shares on 22 Jul 2015, fair value of the share issued amounted to
approximately HK$3,594,000 and a gain of HK$477,000 was recognised
from the transaction.

On July 2015, share options were exercised to subscribe for 10,000,000
shares of the Company at a consideration of HK$1,500,000. The total
amount of the consideration and the relevant share option reserve of
HK$1,952,000 were transferred to share capital and share premium in
accordance with accounting policy set of in Note 3.
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A i 75 4 %8 498,000,000 7T - 252,431,000
# 7T~ 363,315,000 7T+ 213,345,000/
7T+ 386,204,000/ 7T * 52,417,000 7T &
317,787,000 Tz AlE— T —=F AR E K
Z 5 Rl i A47,058,8220% + 1,484,887,143
f%-2,137,145,257/% +1,254,969,463
%~ 2,271,787,254 0% - 308,335,000/% &
1,869,337,3460% 7N A & & B A%

R-_E—RFRAA+HABR-Z—AEREA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE

29. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES 29. A EBAE KR
Convertible preference shares at HK$0.01 each, issued and fully paid: FREEC.OVE T AIBMEBLER 2T
LE R
Number of
shares Amount
B EE &8
HK$’'000
FHET

Convertible preference shares (note a) A ERE LR (MisFa)
At 1 January 2015 R_E—RAF—H—H 1,441,082,203 14,411
Conversion during the year FRHB] (1,441,082,203) (14,411)
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 RZE—RAFRK

—E-XRE+-A=+—H - -
Convertible preference shares (Class A) A EE LR (AE)

(note b) (M5Eb)

At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—HRF—H—H 547,638,384 5,476
Conversion during the year F N (547,638,384) (5,476)
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 RZE—RFR

—E-AF+-A=+—A8 - -
Total convertible preference shares AEREEREH
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 RZZE—RHFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE
29. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES (CONTINUED)

Note:

(a)

152

On 16 December 2009, the Company issued 2,547,300,000 convertible
preference shares of par value of HK$0.01 at issue price of HK$0.5 per share
in respect of the acquisition of NARG.

The initial conversion price of HK$0.5 per ordinary share is for each
convertible preference share. The conversion rate of each convertible
preference share is determined by dividing the issue price of each convertible
preference share by the conversion price. The major terms of the above-
mentioned preference shares are set out below:

() The convertible preference share holders has the right, exercisable at
any time perpetual as from the date of issue, to convert the preference
shares into fully paid ordinary shares, provided that (1) any conversion
of the convertible preference shares does not trigger a mandatory offer
obligation under rule 26 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and
Mergers on the part of the convertible preference shares holders and
their concert parties who exercise the conversion rights; (2) the number
of conversion shares to be allotted and issued upon the exercise of
the conversion rights attaching to the convertible preference shares
represents not more than 29.99% of the then issued ordinary share
capital of the Company on a fully diluted basis; (3) the number of
the conversion shares to be allotted and issued to any holder of the
convertible preference shares will not result in the aggregate holding by
such holder of convertible preference shares to exceed 19.99% of the
then issued share capital of the Company on a fully diluted basis; and (4)
the public float of the shares shall not be less than 25%.

(i)  The convertible preference shares are transferable other than to
connected persons, as defined under the Listing Rules, of the Company
and do not carry the right to vote. The convertible preference shares
holders shall not be entitled to any dividend.

(i) The convertible preference shares shall rank pari passu with any and all

current and future preferred equity securities of the Company.

(iv)  The convertible preference shares are non-redeemable.

Based on their terms and conditions, the convertible preference shares have

been classified as equity instrument in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

On 11 February 2010, the conversion price of the convertible preference
shares was adjusted from HK$0.5 per share to HK$0.44 per share as a
result of the issuance of shares placed on the same date which resulted a
conversion ratio of 88 convertible preference shares for 100 ordinary shares
of the Company. The details of the adjustment are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated on 20 May 2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE
29. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES (CONTINUED)

Note: (continued)

(b)

On 7 June 2013, the Company issued 547,638,384 convertible preference
shares (at the “CPS Class A”) with par value of HK$0.01 in respect of a
subscription completed as at the same date.

The valuation of the CPS Class A was carried out by Greater China, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the CPS Class
A are based on the directors’ best estimate.

The fair value of the CPS Class A as at 7 June 2013 (completion date of
Subscription) amounted to approximately HK$135,800,000, approximately
HK$0.25 per share. The amount in excess of the par value of the CPS Class
A is credited to the share premium in the equity of the Company.

Each of the CPS Class A can be converted into one ordinary share. The major
terms of the CPS Class A are set out below:

()  The CPS Class A share holders has the right, exercisable at any time
perpetual as from the date of issue, to convert the CPS Class A into
fully paid ordinary shares, provided that (1) the conversion of CPS Class
A will not cause the holders and parties acting in concert with it, will
directly or indirectly, control or be interested in 20% or more of the entire
issued ordinary shares of the Company; and (2) the public float of the
shares shall not be less than 25%.

(i) The CPS Class A are transferable other than to connected persons, as
defined under the Listing Rules, of the Company and do not carry the
right to vote.

(i) The CPS Class A have priority to any rights of the holders of any other
class of shares of the Company to receive dividends. And dividend
declared shall not be less than that declared in respect of any other
class of shares of the Company on a per share basis.

(iv)  The CPS Class A shall rank prior to the ordinary shares of the Company
in respect of dividends and distributions of surplus assets upon the
occurrence of liquidation.

(v)  The CPS Class A are non-redeemable by neither the Company nor any
holder of the CPS Class A.

Based on their terms and conditions, the CPS Class A have been classified
as equity instrument in the consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2015, all of the convertible preference shares have been
fully converted.

20. MERELR (F)

e ()

(0)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—ZF—

30. PROVISION FOR RESTORATION, REHABILITATION AND

NETZA=T—RLEFE

31.

154

30. B - EERRERARE

ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS
HK$’ 000
FHET
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—RF—HA—H 67,933
Imputed interest expense (Note 8) HEFBRAX (His) 3,788
Exchange realignment I 8 & (4,224)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE—AF+—A=+—HEZZE—X"F—A—H 67,497
Imputed interest expense (Note 8) HEFBRAX (His) 3,683
Exchange realignment ME 5 5 2 (4,498)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—X"F+=-A=+—H 66,682

The restoration and rehabilitation works will be performed in the years

from 2022 to 2040. The provision is carried at amortised cost at

effective interest rate ranges from 4.1% to 6.96% per annum.

REREEZTHEER T ——
TEET - BEDRERFNERNF41E
6.96/E 5t B 2 K AT R -

E=2-FM

PROMISSORY NOTES M. AHERE
The movements of the promissory notes for the two years ended 31 EARBERBE_T—"FRZZE—1F
December 2016 and 2015 are set out below: +Z A=+ —BALMEFEZZeHHI 0
T
Promissory Promissory Promissory
Notes A Notes B Notes C Total
ABREER BERLER CERAER @5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THT TR
At 1 January 2015 R-_E—hF—F—H 41,552 179,397 57,685 278,634
Redemption during the year FRER (44,042) (19,456) - (63,498)
Interest paid during the year FRERFE - (20,419) (6,552) (26,971)
Effective interest expenses (Note 8) BB F| 855 (HizE8) 2,490 20,650 6,658 29,798
At 31 December 2015 and R-Z-RF+-A=1+—-HEK
1 January 2016 —T-~¥—-A—-H - 160,172 57,791 217,963
Redemption during the year FRER - (159,820) (54,553 (214,373)
Interest paid during the year FRENHE - (4,521) (4,667) (9,188)
Effective interest expenses (Note 8)  EEF &R % (Hi:8) - 4,169 1,429 5,598
At 31 December 2016 A S ey e = - - - -
As at 31 December 2015 R-Z-RF¥+-A=+-H
Current liabilities nBEE - 160,172 57,791 217,963
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE

31. PROMISSORY NOTES (CONTINUED) 3. ZHERE (&)

Promissory Notes A

On 7 June 2013, the Company issued unsecured promissory notes
with principal value of HK$400,000,000 in respect to the acquisition
of a subsidiary (the “Promissory Notes A”). Promissory Notes A
will mature on 6 June 2016 and bear interest at 5% per annum.
All interests will be accrued and paid on the date of maturity. The
Company may redeem whole or part of the Promissory Notes A at
any time after the date of issue of the Promissory Notes A and before
the maturity date with prior notice to the shareholders of City Bloom.
No interest shall be accrued and payable in respect of the Promissory
Notes A that are early redeemed by the Company. The Promissory
Notes A were measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rates at 10.14%. The directors of the Company determined that no
value has been assigned for the redemption options of the Company
as it is considered to be insignificant in value. On 24 July 2015 and 10
August 2015, the Company redeemed the Promissory Notes A with
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 and HK$21,600,000 at a cash
consideration of HK$20,000,000 and HK$21,600,000 respectively. A
gain on redemption of approximately HK$2,442,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2015. As at 31 December 2015, all the Promissory Note A
had been fully redeemed.

Promissory Notes B

On 28 June 2013, the Company issued unsecured promissory notes
with principal value of US$23,000,000 (equivalent to HK$179,400,000)
by placing (the “Promissory Notes B”). The Promissory Notes B will
mature on 23 June 2016, bear interest at 12% per annum payable
every six months. The Company may redeem whole or part of the
Promissory Notes B from twelve months after the date of issue of
the Promissory Notes B and before the maturity date with prior
notice to the placees. The Promissory Notes B are measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rates at 12.18%. The
directors of the Company determined that no value has been assigned
for the redemption options of the Company as it is considered
to be insignificant in value. On 3 July 2015, the Company have
early redeemed principal amounts of US$2,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$19,500,000) of the Promissory Notes B at a cash consideration
of HK$19,500,000. A loss on redemption of approximately
HK$44,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015. As at 31 December
2015, the remaining principal amount of the Promissory Notes B is
US$20,500,000 (equivalent to HK$159,900,000).

ABARRE

RZTE—=FXAt8 ARAHKE I
BB 2 71317 A 4 B8 A400,000,000/8 7T 7 &
IR Z2H ([ABARER])  AEARE
BER T —XNFENANBESH WIRFE
SEFE-FTAMNERKERE WRIHBEX
e KRB A RAER N BB HITREBESH
BRIFERZBELNGMEAZRRE EED2
e ALEE N ZIE c AN BRATER ZA
BAREBRT T RERBMAFIE - AEER
SRR BN ER1014E R SR A E -
RARESRAEEREETKR  BURETH
KRRz EEEEETEEE - RZT—1
F+H+A-_tWBRER-_ZE—RFENA+H"
RRAFE D RIIRE € K E20,000,00078 7T K&
21,600,000/ 7T #& [8] 7~ <& %8 420,000,000/
7T 121,600,000 70,2 A7 3 =45 © fE B L
T #2,442, 000 TERBE-_T—HF+=
AZ+—BLEFEZHEBRERANER R
—E—AF+ZA=+—R8 FEAEEARE
REREED -

BEARRE
RZE—=FXAZ+=8 ERAINUREE
7 = 847 R £ 88 523,000,000 7T (HE R
179,400,000 7t ) 2 B E R A K 25K ([B
BARER]) BEAREBRBR-_ZT—X
FRAZT=R3H WESEAKREE
125 B - AA BT RBREAAH ZIR#EITH
Bt+_EAARERSABAERERSELHN
CEAREA BRI BOBEALZR B
BANRERE R BRI 12,182 L # #HAK
K8 - ARAEZRAARBET K K
REFRAARZEDERBETIEEE RN
ZE—RE+tA=ZH ARREEESRE
19,500,000/ 7T 2 F & 5] A~ & 88 42,500,000
T (M5 119,500,000/% 7T ) 2 B & X,
EE BRI EIEN44,0008 TEREBET
— A+ A=t BUEFEZREEEEX
NER- R-_TE—RAF+-_A=+—H'B
AR B 2 8 T AN & 58 420,500,000 7T
(8% #159,900,000% 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #EHZ—ZT— X FE+_-_A=+—HIFE

31. PROMISSORY NOTES (CONTINUED) N AHTEE (&)
Promissory Notes B (continued) Bﬁﬁﬁ%% (#&)

On 18 March 2016, the Company have early redeemed principal
amounts of US$20,500,000 (equivalent to HK$159,900,000) of the
Promissory Notes B at a cash consideration of HK$159,900,000. A
loss on redemption of approximately HK$79,000 was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2016. As at 31 December 2016, all the Promissory Note A

had been fully redeemed.

Promissory Notes C

On 3 July 2013, the Company issued unsecured promissory notes
with principal value of US$7,000,000 (equivalent to HK$54,600,000)
by placing (the “Promissory Notes C”). The Promissory Notes C will
mature on 3 July 2016 and bear interest at 12% per annum payable
every six months. The Company may redeem whole or part of the
Promissory Notes C from twelve months after the date of issue of the
Promissory Notes C and before the maturity date with prior notice
to the placees. The Promissory Notes C are measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rates at 12.23%. The directors
of the Company determined that no value has been assigned for
the redemption options of the Company as it is considered to be
insignificant in value. As at 31 December 2015, the remaining principal
amount of the Promissory Notes C is US$7,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$54,600,000).

On 18 March 2016, the Company have early redeemed principal
amounts of US$7,000,000 (equivalent to HK$54,600,000) of the
Promissory Notes C at a cash consideration of HK$54,600,000. A
loss on redemption of approximately HK$47,000 was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2016. As at 31 December 2016, all the Promissory Note C

had been fully redeemed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE VSRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—ZT—"FE+_-_A=1+—HIFE

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY RELEHREEE

The following is the movements of deferred tax liability during the

current and prior years:

AEEMBEFEZERERBAEZH N
T

Mining rights

PR R

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2015 WZZE—-—hAF—H—H 2,627,261
Credited to profit or loss FFAER (678,756)
Exchange realignment N AR (157,677)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R-E—RAF+_A=+—HEZZE—R"F—H—H 1,790,828
Charged to profit or loss BiEZ N 116,777
Exchange difference EHZR (112,179)
At 31 December 2016 WZBE-RF+-HA=+—H 1,795,426

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately HK$26,749,000 (2015: HK$23,381,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses of approximately HK$21,178,000 (2015:
HK$21,178,000) may be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining of
approximately HK$5,571,000 (2015: HK$2,203,000) will be carried
forward for 5 years from the year in which the respective loss arose.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$5,800,000 (2015: HK$15,094,000).
No deferred tax assets have been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can

be utilised.

Under the Tax Law of the Cambodia, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends in respect of profits earned by the Cambodia
subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2016, deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidation financial statements in respect
of temporary difference as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has accumulated earnings of
approximately HK$2,517,000 (2015: Nil).

RBEEHR AEEERDARBEBEDN
26,749,000 JT (=% — # 4 : 23,381,000
PETT) - A AR AR R F - R R BE TE AR
AR A BOR - B I 3 4 k5 B B 0B U 1B T
RIEIET IR & 7 - T IR B 18 £921,178,00078
T (ZZ—HE:21,178,0005 7T ) °] £ R 55
8 HR 18 495,571,0008 L (ZE—H
£ :2,203,0008 7T) i & B H IR 2 F 15 e
EF N -

RBEEHR AEEEAHNREREED
5,800,000/ 7T ( = F — F1 4F : 15,094,000/%
JL) o RN AR BEA FE R I AR {E L 8H AT
B 2 RO A AR [ I AR R B AT
MREREZEEREEHAEE-

IRE R RBL - BRI RN B A 7 AT
EUsf 2R ESMBENHR R —X
F+_A=+—H AEBELARERESE
RIEREUBRRELECHBERE RAR
AREBEEH B TR EZH R B5H
FREFEINITERITRERBR R
—RNE+Z A=+ B AEEERHEF
#)2,5617,0008 T (ZF—HF ) °
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32.

33.

158

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (CONTINUED)

Under the New Enterprises Income Tax Law of the PRC, withholding
tax is imposed on dividends in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards (the “Post-2008 Earnings”).
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidation financial statements in respect of
temporary difference attributable to the “Post-2008 Earnings” as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
has Post-2008 earnings of approximately HK$5,199,000 (2015:
HK$2,993,000).

IMPAIRMENT OF MINING RIGHTS, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND GOODWILL

Impairment testing of mining rights, property, plant and

equipment and goodwill in relation to mining operation

For the purpose of impairment testing, the Group’s mining operation
was allocated into five CGUs namely LI P& % 8 85 & B & 2 SRk &
¥ERNF (‘Bolong”), AKX EHER L XEREEEGRAA
(“Liaoyuan”), ILFAEREH S B H R BIEEFEBR AR (Xinfeng”), L7
B EEERBEREAR AR (“Fuchang”) and LI 78 1E % & $ &
&Rt EER QA (“Jinxin®), which represented five subsidiaries
in the mining operation segment to determine their recoverable

amounts.

The recoverable amounts of the mining operation CGUs are determined
from value-in-use calculation. Their recoverable amounts are based
on certain similar key assumptions. As extracted from Greater
China Appraisal Limited (“Greater China”)’s valuation reports for
the recoverable amounts as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 (the
“Valuation Reports”), the management of the Group prepared cash
flow forecast derived from the most recent available financial budgets
approved by management and cash flows beyond 5-year period are
extrapolated using 3% (2015: 3%) growth rate over nine to eighteen
(2015: nine to eighteen) years which does not exceed the long-term
growth rate assuming the extension of mining licenses is available and
administrative in nature. In preparing the forecast, management made
reference to the mineral reserves presently verified the production
cost projection and the future production capacity according to the

technical report issued by John T. Boyd (“J T Boyd”).
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REBIAR [ DTS N\FERBA] HR2Y
WZ8E - iR e IR EL R H A -
R PR R 7 B2 [ Bl 10 oIl 8 (B T B 2 RE 2 D
BB BT R EBT AN A &R E -
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£ 2,993,000/ ) °

REE MR BERRER
&R E

RERREB AR ZREE ¥
X BERREREBERENR
BREARTNE AREZRELEIRE
RERSEEEM DUERREHEES
RSB EERAR (T$5]) - WAKRE
WERESERREERAF (THR]) 1l
ERREHEEEXBEREARAT ([8
]) PR RBHEEE X EEREER
AR (EE]) RINFRREREEE 4
SBERAT ([28]) RRRBEHZE
EIMEAT AEEEAKESE-

REXBREELEU 2RO SERER
EBEABEZIEE - AAPROBEIRESE T
BUZTERREBT - AREERBEENEE
FEARAR (DERFE]HERS ([EER
EDMIR T —RER-_T-RHF+_A
=t—AZAKREER  HEOHEEEAS
HAEZ BBRERRASRERY  BBAF
HEZHERELIE3% (ZF—HF:3%)
EERXR (TEEBRAERR)EHAZETN
F(ZE-RF NAE+N\F)EE EHR
BEBEH AR EREERBITRNEE-E
BABSZEHNETEEAR ([JTHER]) #H
Z T IR P IR B BOBIE 2 AR EE R AN TR
N AR EEREfm LT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE
33. IMPAIRMENT OF MINING RIGHTS, PROPERTY, PLANT BREE-ME - BERZRER

AND EQUIPMENT AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED) EmERE (&)
Impairment testing of mining rights, property, plant and HERBEKERZKERE Y
equipment and goodwill in relation to mining operation ¥ HEERZREREERENR
(continued) (%)
Based on the Valuation Reports, the recoverable amounts of the BEMERS FEARBEEERSEESN
relevant mining operations CGUs are determined as follows: 2B SBEEMAT
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—B-RE —E—-h%F
+=A=+-8B +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT F&T
Bolong e 3,804,685 3,400,383
Liaoyuan EIR 1,584,463 1,646,631
Xinfeng Z1& 1,784,361 1,729,980
Fuchang =] 1,517,460 1,306,818
Jinxin ©& 766,198 945,267
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill of approximately hORCE S B S 0 491,322,481,00008 7T
HK$1,322,481,000, HK$644,490,000, HK$782,843,000, 644,490,000/ T * 782,843,000/ T *
HK$537,950,000 and HK$373,791,000 were allocated to Bolong, 537,950,000/ 7T % 373,791,000/ 7T 2 i &
Liaoyuan, Xinfeng, Fuchang and Jinxin respectively and was fully ENRoEZNE BER BB - BERE
impaired during the year ended 31 December 2013. Z2 EREBE-ZT—=F+-A=+—H1Lt
FEBERE -
The directors of the Company were of the opinion that, based on RARIEERA  BEMHERS  REXKE
the Valuation Reports, the recoverable amounts of the mining rights T ERHERE 2 AT U S € BB /R7,944,075,00078 7T
were HK$7,944,075,000 (2015: HK$7,977,311,000) and recoverable (ZZ—FR%:7,977,311,000%7C) ¥ % -
amounts of property, plant and equipment of HK$1,513,092,000 (2015: 5 MM 2 ATk el € B8 A 1,513,092,0007%8
HK$1,059,067,000) under the mining operations. The amounts for L (ZF— A% :1,059,067,000%7T) - B#
impairment loss and reversal of impairment loss in respect of mining HIEERME BREREE R EEE KR
rights and property, plant and equipment are disclosed in Note 16 and EEERENSEE  DAIRK 16 R ME15
Note 15 respectively. Bz
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33. IMPAIRMENT OF MINING RIGHTS, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of mining rights, property, plant and
equipment and goodwill in relation to mining operation
(continued)

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are those
regarding discount rates, anticipated changes to future selling prices,
production costs and anticipated production capacity, as follows:

- Management used a discount rate which was derived from the
Company’s cost of capital, representing the expected return
on the Company’s capital, and assigned the following pre-tax
discount rate to each mine:

Bolong pial-S)
Fuchang 128
Jinxin v
Liaoyuan EIR
Xinfeng g3

BREE-ME - BERRER
EmERE (E)

EHRBEEXRERAZKERE -9
%é;ﬁﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬂﬂ%ﬁ
ﬁnﬁ”ﬁﬁuf:@f}aﬁﬁﬁZEE(EP“/&&HSIE
< RREBEHAEZE FEXNARBHE
EHIEWT

® 4

- BRBASAAMREBEADAERKE
(AVARRBEARZ B R) &5 E
fi o 2 #5 E B ARG 3R R E

2016 2015
—E-XKEF —T—HF
0/0 %

19.79 20.74
24.86 22.70
21.32 23.11
20.64 21.41
22.52 23.15

—  Future selling prices were estimated with reference to existing and
past quoted commaodity prices of the mining industry.

—  Future production costs were derived in accordance with feasibility
reports issued by J T Boyd with reference to the mine’s preliminary
design report and current industry cost indicators.

—  Future production capacity estimation was made in accordance
with the feasibility report issued by J T Boyd dated 28 February
2017 (2015: 21 November 2012). The estimated optimal
production capacity per annum is expected to be as follows:

Bolong fABE
Fuchang B &
Jinxin 5
Liaoyuan FEIR
Xinfeng =yl

- RREBEZ2ERENBEBREERRE
flate

— RREERARTDIBRIBITEEE L 21T
MRELLEER 2 KRR ME LB
BT AIERATH -

- AXRERBRBITEEEHAHA=Z
—+tF-AZFTNB(ZZE—RF: =%
——F+—A=+—B)zAiTkERE
et EH A REFERDT

31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
+ZA=+—-8B +TZA=+—H
tonnes tonnes

7] ]
1,200,000 1,270,000
600,000 680,000
450,000 450,000
600,000 630,000
900,000 880,000

160 NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 4t S5 &/RIZER B R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VSRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—ZT—"FE+_-_A=1+—HIFE

B.REE-ME - BERZRER

33. IMPAIRMENT OF MINING RIGHTS, PROPERTY, PLANT

AND EQUIPMENT AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of mining rights, property, plant and
equipment and goodwill in relation to mining operation
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, impairment testing of goodwill
in relation to the acquisition of Jiang Xi Jin Chuang Information
Technology Limited (“Jin Chuang”). Details of the acquisition are set out
in Note 34.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill with indefinite useful
lives set out in Note 17 has been allocated to one individual CGU,
systems integration services and software solutions, to determine its

recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of the goodwill is determined from value-in-
use calculation. The management of the Group prepared cash flow
forecast derived from the most recent available financial budgets
approved by management and cash flows beyond 5-year period are
extrapolated using zero growth rate over five years which does not
exceed the long-term growth rate. Cash flow projections during the
budget period for Jin Chuang is also based on the budgeted sales
and expected gross margins during the budget period and the same
raw materials price inflation during the budget period. Expected
cash inflows/outflows, which include budgeted sales, gross margin
and raw material price inflation, have been determined based on
past performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management considered that the carrying amount
of goodwill of Jin Chuang exceeded its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss of goodwill of HK$2,352,000 was recognised for the

year ended 31 December 2015.

BERE (%)

ERBEXBERB2XKRE Y
X BERRBEREERENR
(&)

RBEZF-AFT_A=+—HIEFE"
BYBIRSAIEMRMERAR (T2A])
A A BREAH B BB SRR
i34

SR ERI SN = - M1 7Pr R A SR A (5
FH AEC I EE - EFE - REELE
7 - BN EARIRTE R AR T 2 - AR E
AIUE 5 BE o

FEz AW E R EREEEAEE -
AEHEREERGIPLEREASI A
BREGEEeREEN BAAFHBA
RenBllRTHER(TRBRAREER
E)VEHRAFHE - SRIRBEBRAZRER
ERBTATEERAZBEHERLTAHE
ME-UREEHAZAERRMEERTE
REB-FAHRSTA S RE (BIEEH
S8 ENERREMEHERIR) DIRBER
BREBEHTSER2ASMET -8
BRA BBz kEEEBEATEEDE
oM B RERE2,352,0008 TREBE-T
—HF+-_A=+—RILFEER-
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34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 4 December 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity interest of

Jin Chuang from an independent third parties, settled by a cash

consideration of HK$2,387,000. The acquisition has been accounted

for using the acquisition method. Jin Chuang is engaged in the systems

integration services and software solutions business. Jin Chuang is

acquired so as to continue the expansion of the Group’s systems

integration services and software solutions operation.

The effect of acquisition is summarised as follows:

M. YWE—EHELQF

RZZE-—AF+-AWA AKER 2B
UE=FWEELEIZ100% MK AR - W LATR
& 32142,387,000/8 TLHAE » Wi = H AU
ENE - AN E R ERRE LB ARR
FTREB -2RIZKBEENREBNREASE
B2 ZRER IR R BRR T TR

Wiz agiamT:

Consideration transferred CEERE
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration RERE 2,387
Asset (liabilities) recognised at the date of acquisition RUBEBRHBRAZEE (BF)
HK$'000
FHT
Property, plant and equipment M WERE&E 6
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk EA R FRIR (41)
(35)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEBEE2BESREFEH
HK$’000
FAT
Cash consideration paid EEeRE 2,387
Goodwill arising on acquisition KEBELECHE
HK$’000
FET
Consideration transferred EHEERE 2,387
Add: net liabilities acquired m:FrEeEFE (35)
2,352
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34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) M WiE—EMEBAR (&)
Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Jin Chuang because the HARESEENREERERAF BK
consideration included a control premium and assembled workforce. Bl EARE - ZENR T EEFESH
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill because BR EARBETKEUERNEREECHE
they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible R
assets.
Included in the profit for the year is approximately HK$40,000 FERNBESABENEBREEZLN
attributable to the additional business generated by Jin Chuang. 40,0008 T FEWMABIESBIMEE 24
Revenue for the year includes approximately HK$4,184,000 generated 4,184,000 T W WEEHNR — T — 1L F
from Jin Chuang. Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January —A—BAZEKCRIAEE 2 FERAERE
2015, total revenue of the Group for the year would have been 1% #) £64,116,000/ 7T i F E BB KL A
approximately HK$64,116,000, and loss for the year would have been 3,774,385,0008 Lo EEFHEHRF P A
approximately HK$3,774,385,000. The pro forma information is for B U T —FEAMBESEER - —AF
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue —A—HBERAEBRBERRE ZB/A KK
and results of operations of the Group that actually would have been BEBZEZE BV THIEARREEZTE
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015, nor Al e

is it intended to be a projection of future results.

35. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS B.ABEFIRS
Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, BirEMBBRREMITDAEEEIN KE
the Group entered into the following significant transactions with ERFANTHEAB AT LA TEARS:

related parties during the year:

Transaction with /845 @4 BB R Q A BHEBMERERBRERARETZIR S
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—AF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHT
Purchase expense paid EATERERE 229 -
Mr. Zhang Sanhuo, a director and chairman of the Company is also a AARBEEREIFER=ZERENALESHE
director of LGB MERIEBR AR - WEREBRABIZES
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE_-Z

—RETZA=T-RLEFE

35. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

B.EBWEIRS (&)

Compensation of key management personnel FTEEBEAEHE
The remunerations of the directors of the Company and other members FAN ARAEERHEHMEZERERE L
of key management during the year were as follows: T
2016 2015
—NE —HE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAET
Short-term benefits EEER 8,917 8,838
Post-employment benefits BEBERET 78 86
Share-based payments B& 17 15 3% 6,538 17,523
15,533 26,447
The remunerations of directors of the Company and other members ARAREEREMEEETEENE 2 H A

of key management were determined by the remuneration committee

having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

36.
(@)

164

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there were conversions
of convertible preference shares into ordinary shares as detailed in
Note 28(a).

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were
conversions of convertible loan notes into ordinary shares as
detailed in Note 28(b).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company issued
20,000,000 share options (with fair value of share options at grant
date of approximately HK$2,102,000), as detailed in Note 38, to
a lender of the other borrowing as a consideration to renew the
borrowing. Fair value of the share options is considered as part
of the borrowing costs and was off set with the relevant other
borrowing recorded in the balance sheet and amortised over the

term of the loan.
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6. TEFHRERF

(a8 REE-ZT—AF+-_A=+—HIEF
EX ﬁﬂ%@@f‘iﬂxﬁ@ﬁ%k i% - 5¥15
B K FE28(a)

(b) E/\\Etf: T-RER-—ZFT—HF+=-A
=+— if‘%'*ﬁﬂ?ﬁﬂﬁ%?&%“ifﬁl
BmaE B% - FEEER M EE28(0) ©

0 REEZZ—hF+=-_A=1+—HLt

FE ARrRMEMEBEEZERART
20,000,00017 % fix 7 (#8 AR R X H B
B2 NFEH A2,102,0008 7T) 1A
BHEECRE FBEHANM T8 FE
itz ANTFEBERABEERARZ — 5
H-HEIREERERP ZHEBEME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VSRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE

36. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(d) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company issued
share options (with fair value of share options at grant date of
approximately HK$41,007,000 charged to profit and loss for
the year ended 31 December 2015), as detailed in Note 38, to
directors, senior management and employees for the purpose of

providing incentives to directors and eligible employees.

(e) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Government
had approved the refund of certain mineral compensation fees
amounting to approximately HK$22,581,000 previously paid by a
subsidiary of the Group and recognised as cost of mining right.
HK$5,967,000 was refunded in cash while the remaining amount
was offset with payables due to certain government agencies

included in other payables.

() During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company issued
28,078,979 ordinary shares of the Company to settle interest

payables of HK$4,071,000 as detailed in Note 28(d).

(9) During the year ended 31 December 2015, Mr. Tse has resigned,
therefore HK$66,000 has reallocated from amount due from a
director to other receivables. However during the year ended
31 December 2016, Mr. Tse has been re-appointed, therefore
HK$66,000 has reallocated from other receivable to amount due

from a director.

(h) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company entered
into agreements with a customer of the Group to offset trade
receivables due from the customer of HK$8,733,000 with other

payables in aggregate of HK$8,733,000 due by the Group entities

to the customer.

36. TEFREXRZ (F)

(d)

RBE-Z-—AF+_-_A=+—BILF
E-ARBRAEE SREEENES
BOTERE (BRERKEREHZ AT
{B#) /41,007,000 7L ERNBE-F
—hAFET A=t HLEFERERT
k)  FREERAERER ZERE)
FHIEEMNHIEESS -

REE-_T—AF+-_A=+—BLHF
& - BRRTHE R B AR S B — BB A A
BEEXN WHERRRKBEBEKEZE
T 1% &= & JR 6 (8 B £922,581,0007% 7T ©
5,967,000/ 7T LATR & iR [B] - M #4258 A A
FAHE 88 H fh B < SR IB R 2 FE A5 T U
EBPIRRIE -

REBEZE_FT—AF+T_A=T—HIF
€ A R % 1728,078,979M AN 2 A
AR - LAV (8 FE T 54,071,000 7T -
ST IFE A MY FE28(d) ©

REBE-_T—HAF+-A=+—H1
FE -HEEDEHT B 66,0007
TN —BESERIBARE H M ER
HE-AM RBEE-T—X~"E+=A
=E+—HILFE H#HELDESHEL
66,0007 7T B B H A FE U KIE S 1 5
REEK—REEHIE-

RBE_Z-—R"F+_-_A=+—BItF
B ARBEAREE - RRPRIL I
i FEY R B 2 B 5 FE MR IR8, 733,000
BTEAEEERERTE 2L MEN
FRIA & 8,733,000/ TR 8K ©
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37. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

commitments:

(a) Commitments under operating leases
The Group as lessee
The Group’s leases certain of its office premises and staff quarters
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for a term ranging from two months to three years and

rentals are fixed.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

37. & IE
SRS Bk - A SR E A LA TR -

() KEHERE
AEBIEEAEEEA
AEBERBLEEHEZHHEHESETET
BYERETIES -WEAEETAM
BARAZ=F1% I EEHE-

RIEHR REBRE T HBELE
HEANTHERE 2 RRREEE &

leases which fall due as follows: BT
2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Land and buildings T REF
Within one year —F R 9,784 10,833
In the second to fifth year inclusive ~ E_ZFHF (REEEMSE) 4,152 8,942
13,936 19,775
(b) Other capital commitments (b) HAth&EAREIE
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHEIT
Contracted but not provided for in EHEER ST B
respect of:
— acquisition of property, —WEYE  HE REE
plant and equipment 313,879 328,555

166 NORTH ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED e 4t S5 &/RIZER B R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #EHZE—ZT—XFE+_-_A=1+—HIFE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 3B ROXNARS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company:

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 July 2015 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees and
loan arrangement with an independent third party (the ‘Lender’), and
will expire on 13 July 2025. Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors
of the Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares

in the Company.

On 14 July 2015, share options to subscribe for 825,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company were
granted to certain individuals. At 31 December 2016 and 2015,
807,000,000 options remained outstanding.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of
upon which it is made provided that no such offer shall be open for
acceptance after the earlier of the 10th anniversary of the date of
adoption or the termination of Scheme or the participant to whom
such offer is made has ceased to be a participant. For the share option
73% of the options are exercisable from the date of grant to expiry of
option period; and 27% of the options are exercisable from the first

anniversary of the Date of Grant to expiry of option period.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of an option. An option shall be deemed to
have been accepted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the option duly signed by the participant together with the said
consideration of HK$1.00 is received by the Company. The exercise
price is determined by the board of directors at its absolute discretion
but in any event will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (i)
the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of

the share on the date of grant.

ARz EREEBRETE:

AARRBER-ZZ—FFLATHBARBZ
RBRERABRESE ([ZETE]) 21
REERAERRBEUARBYE=H ([EX

ADFTILERRBEZ 2R BT _RF
T A+=BEm- - REZTE KRARESE
AmMeEREE (BREARARENBE LR
ZES)BREERE URBRARZEKNG -

RZZ—RAF+LATHMHE -A2FRETA
4% A RS R 2 B AR A #1825,000,0008%
lHXE@OO1/§7EZ AR AR
T-RFRZFE-—RF+ZA=+—81"
807,000, OOOP%HX%W*(T@

EREZBREVANORZEN AL
28R MNAR EBERMZON SR A& SR
MBHIES RIORFZ B %At B R IEZ
B RERZEHZSEETERBEEY
B (AREERE)BRIDATHZMK - BRE L
73%R]TA X RO B H R I R A R
& % L BRI AT R - 27 %8 AT IR U BB IR 4 B
MR —IRF 2 B R =R ERE W
HMTTEE -

AR ANBRZABRERZ1.008 T2
JROEZEHERE-BARARZ2EELZS
BEZERMN (BRBREZER) EER £
ﬂ1m%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ'$%%%WﬁEE%§
M- TRETHEZSS2RKNIE REDIS
Eﬂﬂ%?ﬁ$mﬁ%MT*%Z
Ohﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ%(&ﬁmﬁ“ﬁﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁ
FERRERMRZETE: (IRHNEE
RHEHHR A %E 2 FHRHE: Kii)
B AEL Bz HE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #EHZ_—ZT—XFE+_-_A=+—HIFE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company:

(continued)
Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Option granted on 14 July 2015

Vesting Vesting
Grantee proportion period
ARA BELY BED
Directors 17% N/A
B% TEA
Directors 17% 14 July 2015 to
13 July 2016
B% *“*ﬁﬁtﬂ+@5i
ZE-REtAT=H
Senior Management & 9% N/A
Employees
SRERERES TEA
Senior Management & 9% 14 July 2015 to
Employees 13 July 2016
SRERERES *“*ﬁitﬂ+mai
—E-RFLA+=H
The Lender 1% N/A
ERA TEA
The Lender 1% 14 July 2015 to
13 July 2016
ERA *“*ﬁﬁtﬂ+@5i
—E-RFLA+=H
Employees 46% N/A
&8 TEA

38. RO Z (M)

RARzESEEBRETS:

(&)

BRE 2 ABARFENT

R-E-AFtATHBERHZERE

Exercisable
period

M

14 July 2015 to

13 July 2025
Z-hELATMAEZE
quﬁitﬂ+ =

14 July 2016 to
13 July 2025
“E-RELtATHmAZE
e = e =

14 July 2015 to

13 July 2025
Z-hELATMAEZE
quﬁitﬂ+ =

14 July 2016 to
13 July 2025
“E-RFtATMHEZE
ZZE-hFEATZ=H

14 July 2015 to

13 July 2025
Z-hELATMAZRE
quﬁitﬂ+ =

14 July 2016 to
13July 2025

“T-R"FtAt+WHEZE
—ZRE+LAT=R

14 July 2015 to 13 July
2025

T-IFtATOHAE

,qfﬁitﬂ+ H
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Exercise
price

TEE
HK$
BT

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.15

Fair value
at grant date
REHBEHZ

ATE
HK$
BT

0.0815

0.0831

0.0453

0.0575

0.1051

0.1051

0.0453



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 8. BIBZARS (&)
(CONTINUED)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company: KRBz EREEBRES S
(continued) (&)
Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows: FRBRITEBEREFBOT

Forfeited Outstanding at Exercisable at

Outstanding at Granted Exercised during 31 December 31 December

1 January 2016 during year during year the year 2016 2016

RZB-X% RZB-XxE RZB-Xx§

-A-H +ZA=t-8 tZB=t-8

B EREH ERfTE ERRR B TFTH

'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000

T T Ty T T T

Option granted on 14 July 2015 R-E-RELA+EA 807,000 - - - 807,000 807,000

Ritl 2 BIRiE

Weighted average exercise price METHTRE 0.15 - - - 0.15 0.15

Forfeited Outstanding at Exercisable at

Outstanding at Granted Exercised during 31 December 31 December

1 January 2015 during year during year the year 2015 2015

R=B-1% R-B-1% R=Z-1%

-A-H tZA=+-8 tZA=+-8

HRTE FERRH ERTE ERRR HRTE CRifin:d

'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000

T T Ty T T T

Option granted on 14 July 2015 R-E-RELA+EA - 825,000 (10,000) (8,000 807,000 591,000

Rt 2 BRE

Weighted average exercise price METTRE - 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15
In respect of the share options exercised during the year ended 31 RREE_T—AF+-_A=+—HILEE
December 2015, the weighted average share price at the dates of TEZERENS RNITEBHZMETH

exercise is HK$0.128 (2016: Nil). RERCA28BTL (ZE—RNF &) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—T—"F+_A=+—HILFE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS B.ROZMNRZ (&)

(CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company:
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 825,000,000 options were
granted on 14 July 2015 (2016: Nil). The estimated fair value of the
share options at the granted date was HK$49,237,000.

The Group recognised the total share based payment expense
of HK$8,229,000 (2015: HK$41,007,000) for the year ended 31

December 2016 in relation to share options granted by the Company.

These fair values were calculated using The Black-Scholes pricing
model with Binomial Tree method. The inputs into the model were as

follows:

Weighted average share price niEFEHRE

ARz EREEBRETE:
(8&)
REE-_ZT-—RAE+-_A=+—HILFE"
825,000,000 R EE R —E—AF A
THAERE (ZE—RF &) ZSHERE
R B 82 55 A T B B49,237,0007%
JTe

REBEZT—A"F+A=+—BLEFE"
REBEFARRRR D 2 B E®ER AR
9 2 1 B9 8,229,000 T (— T — A4 -
41,007,000/ L) °

ZERNTEDNEAMHEE - RAETE
B — BB BRI E - A 2 g A
[ER NN

Options
B R R

HK$0.13607% 7T

Exercise price 15 E HK$0.15/%8 7T

Expected volatility T8 HA R 1R 74.52%

Expected life TEHAF HR 10 years

Risk-free rate A Ja B ) R 1.9254%

Expected dividend vield TEHARR B & 0%
Suboptimal factor KB RE

Directors % % 2.8

Senior management and employees = & B2 E N (& & : 1.5

The Lender B ZA: N/A 7 i A

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company’s share price over the previous year. The expected life
used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and

behavioural considerations.
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e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &}

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Emb

NE+—A=1+—HILtFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. XD A B AR R TR

COMPANY
2016 2015
—RE —E—hF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
iz FHxT FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LERN S 102 59
Investments in subsidiaries RBRARZEE 390 390
492 449
Current assets MBEE
Other receivables H b U R IE 3,840 3,890
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS (a) 5,206,301 5,181,179
Amount due from a director Bl —RZEEFHIE 66 -
Bank balances and cash RITEHBERS 15,499 14,369
5,225,706 5,199,438
Current liabilities mEBAE
Other payables E b FE A RIB 7,520 7,999
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEHHE" G (a) 1,567 1,633
Amounts due to related companies FERED Iﬁ 44,389 -
Liabilities component of —J?;@HXEM%H’?Z
convertible loan Notes BEHY - 121,587
Derivative component of AMREREEZ
convertible loan notes PTHET A 67,594 356,225
Promissory notes ZQ R - 217,963
121,070 705,407
Net current assets REBEEFE 5,104,636 4,494,031
5,105,128 4,494,480
Capital and reserves B R
Share capital [N 729,675 206,634
Reserves i (b) 4,004,455 3,145,658
Total equity AR 4,734,130 3,352,292
Non-current liabilities EmBEE
Liabilities component of AMREREEZ
convertible loan notes BERS 370,998 1,142,188
370,998 1,142,188
5,105,128 4,494,480
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—T—"F+_A=+—HILFE
39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(a) Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable

172

on demand. The fair values of the amounts at the end of the

reporting period were approximated to the corresponding carrying

amounts due to their short-term maturity.

(@)

39. AR A M B MR K (&)

FEW (FEAY) MY/ 2 &

ZERESEEM 28 RA

=)
b
IS

R IH

BI& - R E FARNE BN EE -
RIEMRZ XV ERREERS -

Reserves (b) fEE
Convertible Share
Share preference  Contributed options  Accumulated
premium shares surplus reserve losses Total
ROERE TERELRK BARS  BRERE ZER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
At 1 January 2015 RZE-RFE—-A—H 4,974,717 19,887 458,561 29,545 (4,271,361) 1,211,349
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (1,085,298)  (1,085,298)
Recognition of share based RRH XA
payment expense - - - 41,007 - 41,007
Issue of shares upon: UTEEMETRN - -
- Placings -KE 318,185 - - - - 318,185
- Expenses on issue shares ~ — R EITHY (3,575) - - - - (3,575)
- Interest capitalisation -FISERL 3,313 - - - - 3,313
- Exercise of share options —ThRERE 1,852 - - (452) - 1,400
- Conversions of convertible ~ — 3 A AR B L
preference shares (1,965) (19,887) - - - (21,852)
- Conversions of convertible  — X BT BRRERZE
loan notes 2,681,129 - - - - 2,681,129
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-REFZA=1—H
1 January 2016 k=2-"%-A-H 7,973,656 - 458,561 70,100 (5,356,659) 3,145,658
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (50,068) (50,068)
Recognition of share based RRH XA
payment expense - - - 8,229 - 8,229
Issue of shares upon T EEmETRS
- Transaction costs ~REEERFHA
attributable to placing (3,990) - - - - (3,990)
- Conversions of convertible ~ — X BT RRERZE
loan notes 904,626 - - - - 904,626
At 31 December 2016 REF-AETZA=+-H 8874292 - 458,561 78329 (5406,727) 4,004,456
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@)

Categories of financial instruments

40.£mIE
(@ EMIEZDE

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—-h%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Financial assets cREE
Loans and receivables (including ERREWRE (BiERe R
cash and cash equivalents) REFEY) 207,910 130,242
Financial liabilities =R
Amortised cost 1 5 P A 5,442,003 6,348,728
FVTPL derivative BATEFAEBERIITETAR 67,594 356,225

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, amount due from a related company, amount
due from a director, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, convertible loan notes, other borrowings, promissory
notes, amounts due to related companies and amount due
to a non-controlling interest holder. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk
Certain financial assets are denominated in currencies other than

the functional currency of the respective group companies.

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the end of
the reporting period to currency risk arising from transactions or
recognised assets denominated in a currency (HK$ and US$) other
than the functional currency (RMB) of the entity to which they

relate.

b) HEEBREEEERBE

AEEZTZSRIAREES RAM
FEMRIE - FRM — IR A R FOR - B
—REEFR ROTEBREES BHR
HAb B 0R - ATRRERRR - AR
5 AARE  ENBRELRFUEREN
—HFERERFTEARBA-ZESH
TAZHBENEBMEANRE 2%
CRTAFMzRABREBEMSEER (K
KRR ENXER) FERRERSHE
TER - FREZEFRR 2 BURBN T3 -
EREEENMEREZFAR BRI
B REGE S B -

™5 E R

B E g

ETeREENSEARZS AR
PASh 2 EH¥ETE

TRERAEBERREHRTELNE
BEEDEER (AR UM ZEE
(BEREL)FHEZRHAERREE
ELzE¥EAR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—FT—"F+_A=+—HILFE
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

0. /T H (&)
(b) BHEEREEBERBEK

(&)
s EkE (&)
B (&)
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2016 2015

R-B-—RF R-T—RF

+=ZBA=+-8 +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET

Assets BE
- HK$ -8B 1,314 5,468
- Us$ —%7 14,130 3,620
15,444 9,088

Liabilities BE
- HK$ —A7T 153,878 116,355
- US$ —E7T - 339,550
153,878 455,905

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2016, assets and liabilities denominated
in US$ arise mainly from entities with functional currencies
in denominated HK$ (2015: HK$). For the sensitivity analysis
related to the currency risk of US$. As HK$ is pegged to USS$,
management considered the foreign currency risk exposed to

these US$ assets and liabilities is insignificant.

At as 31 December 2016, the Group is mainly exposed to the
currency of HK$ against RMB (2015: HK$ against RMB).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—ZT—"FE+_-_A=1+—HIFE
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

0. T H (&)
b) BEEREEEEREX

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities against HKS$. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in
profit for the year (2015: decrease in loss for the year) where the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities strengthen 5%
against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the Group
entity’s functional currency against HK$, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit for the year (2015: the loss for

the year), and the balances below would be negative.

Impact on profit (2015: loss) for the year i F 5 F)

(ZZF—h%F BRI ZTYE

(%&)

miZEk (&)

B ()

WREE DN (&)
TRAVNAEEHEHAEE TR 2 W88
BN BTHEREES%Z GUKRE - &
RESWESERBINESHEZEBE
B UERSHRHABERNFLEA R
B TXEHBETRMWMIEEREEER 2D
B &M H AR E W FHES %A F 5 11
M ZZE—RF FEBEBRD) - HE
FASEER 2 EE L BITRES%:
A FEA (ZT—RF FEER)
BRRAZESBE2HARTE ML TEH#
BREH-

2016 2015
—NE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
5,721 4,158

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate amounts due to related companies (see Note 20), other
borrowings (see Note 25), convertible loan notes (see Note 27)

and promissory notes (see Note 31).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate amounts due to non-controlling interest holder (see

Note 24) and bank balances.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the

need arise.

T F m B
AEEEEBETEENBERRFKA
(RHis20)  HfufEE (RKfFE25) - 7
BRERER (R E27) AL &
(RFES1) Z X FERMERER -

RNEBE INEEE E SRR TR R
A ARE (REo4) RRITHEBZE
EREF KRR

K%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂlkﬁ"ﬁi
EEEEREMNERR TERERE
Ev%%ﬂﬁiﬁ*'%@ % o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—T—"F+_A=+—HILFE
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

176

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate amount due to
non-controlling interest holder and bank balances, the analysis
is prepared assuming amount due to non-controlling interest
holder and bank balances at the end of each reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. The basis point increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

50 basis points have been used for variable-rate amount due to

non-controlling interest holder and bank balances.

For variable-rate amount due to non-controlling interest holder
and bank balances, if the interest rates had been 50 basis points
(2015: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year (2015: loss for the
year) would increase/decrease (2015: decrease/increase) by
approximately HK$14,592,000 (2015: HK$13,822,000).

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their
obligations to repay the amounts owing to the Group, resulting in
a loss to the Group. The maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event that the counterparties fail to perform their obligations at
the end of the financial year in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has no significant credit risks as it has policies in
place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to
customers with appropriate credit history. The Group has adopted
a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults. The Group only transacts with entities with good

repayment history.
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40. /T H (&)
(b) HEREBEEEERBE

(&)

miEEkE (&)

FEmE (&)

PRE DT
NEIGURE 3 TR RS BB FE R A
BRFAARBRRITERZ N EEARE
EoMGRABRINMERERN S HREH
RZ BN IEEBE R A ARIEKLIRTT
EHRBEFEHEE - AR HRARAELR
IT2EBRABRSNEER YAER
BEHMEZAER LS 2 -
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)% BB IR R 2 A A SUE R IR
1TREBRFIE BT RRS0MEER (ZF
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BAg AIRAEEFERFN(ZF—5
FFEEEBE) RN RS (ZF—h
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

0. R T H (&)
b) BEEREEEEREX

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
by customer, with exposure spreading over a number of

counterparties and customers.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
is mainly in the PRC with exposure spreading over a number of
customers, which accounted for all trade receivables for both
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and

mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$5,011,026,000 (2015: HK$4,465,371,000). The directors of
the Company have given careful consideration on the measures
currently undertaken in respect of the Group’s liquidity position.
As detailed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company believe that the Company will be able to

operate as a going concern.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table

includes both interest and principal cash flows.

(&)

FERR (&)

EFSE AEBYEEMEAEFRE
ERER - BB HRTREFTRES -

wEROMIH AEEEERRIEE
HRAE - ARABRIRAER (H8E
ZE-RERZE-RFFTZA=+—
BIEMEFE2BE S EUKRIE

nBEETHZEERRER REAR
HFTHREBEBREEFARBETS
BEERZRIT-

oY

N

A ER
ERABESARE AEBERRSE
BEERERARAZASRASSEY
KT AR A R R P R ORI IR
SHRERBZEE-

I

I

RZE—XRNF+ZA=+—0 F4&H
BB EF 5 A55,011,026,000% 70 (=
T — A 4,465,371,0008 L) - AR
RAEEEHFAZEBARAEERDE
SRR RE 2 1B 5 o AN AR & BT IS 3R &
MisE1FTafill - A ARIEZRAED AL

WIFEIEE -

TREBEEFPHIIANREETES
BMEERTANIHABR -ZRBER
SERPAURERNRAHRERAE
ZAUBBRRERERHE - ZHEENE
RASHERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—T—"F+_A=+—HILFE
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

178

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity risk tables

40. /T H (&)
(b) BHEEREEBERBEK

(&)

RBEERR (&)

RBELERIF

More than More than
1 year but 2 years but Total Carrying
Within 1 year less than lessthan  undiscounted amount at
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows 31 December
=y
—F0E MENE RER =t-H
- FRFEER BRWER BREFR  RERBAE ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR Ti#n TiEn TiEn
2016 I SN2
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ F#{T£&REE
Trade and other payables B RERENTE 758,626 - - 758,626 758,626
Amounts due to related companies  Eff B A R FUA 347,672 - - 347,672 344,157
Amounts due to anon-controlling R —&FEBEERBEA
interest holder HE 4,105,457 26,221 - 4,131,678 3,928,215
Other borrowings EigE 41,595 - - 41,595 40,007
Promissory notes RAEE - - - - -
Convertible loan notes ARERER - 419,101 - 419,101 370,998
5,253,350 445,322 - 5,698,672 5,442,003
2015 —Z-1%
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ {74 ¢ HEE
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE 788,047 - - 788,047 788,047
Amounts due to related companies  [EffEE A EFUE 321,448 - - 321,448 321,448
Amounts due to anon-controling ~ JEN — & RREREAA
interest holder HE 2,892,596 1,036,150 - 3,928,746 3,720,456
Other borrowings EfEE 8,723 32,872 - 41,595 37,039
Promissory notes EAER 227,379 - - 227,379 217,963
Convertible loan notes THRERZE 133,862 - 1,420,388 1,554,250 1,263,775
4,372,055 1,069,022 1,420,388 6,861,465 6,348,728
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 4. €T A (&)

Fair value

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of current financial assets and current financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost approximate their fair values due to their immediate or
short-term maturities.

The directors of the Company also consider that the fair values
of the long-term portion of financial assets and financial liabilities
approximates to their carrying amounts.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates from
observable current market transactions.

Derivative component of convertible loan notes

The fair value of the derivative component of convertible loan notes is
determined by the inputs to Black-Scholes model with trinomial tree
method including spot price, risk free rate, expected option period and
expected volatility. Please refer to Note 27 for the details of the inputs.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

e |Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or
liabilities.

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

There were no transfers among level 1, 2 and 3 in the current and prior
years.

AVE
AREEZRR ARNRHEHEKAARZAD
HemBEENNMESRE DA BN
EEANEIS REREEREAFERAE -

AATMEENRA SREERSMAME
BHH 2 AFEREAERE -

HeRMEERSRARZ A FERRER
BEmMERS BRI REKRRS
2

Of
RENTARREEBELEE -

ARBRERZEZTETARS
MTERERRE 2 ITET AR 2 ATFER
P AR 5E — ¥ R AT A AR L e = TR U
HEEEZBARE (REREE  SEART
SR HRRBNIE) B AR
ABE 2 F 1 2 B0 27

MR E MBI RERZAFE
_I_
RERERREATEIEZ SRTARE
DNFEZARRRENRE—EZE M
BRT*-

b o

il

« F-EATVENBEEAERAESAER
WOERT IS L2 WE CRGBE) BH -

s FEAVEELAEEXEFEZE
(BB kEE (BB ERITE) A
BEREBABE (E-EeFE2RERM)
B

e F-ERAFVEFEEMBEERN (B4
WIRERABEEMSRIEZEELR
BRABE (THEEHARE) )E
o

RAFERBAFE F— ZRk=EBZHEIL
mEo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #;

Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated

FoR—NE+AS+—RIEE
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

statement of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the only financial instrument

measured at fair value was the derivative component of convertible

loan notes which belongs to level 3 financial instruments.

4. @ T H (&)
AY¥{E(E)
MREETBRRRER ZAFE

T2 (&)

RZE—RFR-_FT—AF+-_A=1+—
B AT EFEZERIAEATHRR

ERRBZVET A BRE=ZETH

Valuation techniques and significant key or unobservable inputs

HERTRIERRATTEREALE

Black-Scholes model with trinomial tree method

hRR-HANSRE ERAREARNE R

0.94% (2015: 0.46%-0.75%)
0.94% (= E—T5:0.46%%0.75% )
13.05% (2015: 12.59%-13.04%)

18.05% (ZE—R%F 1 12.50%213.04%)

82.77% (2015: 47.68%-97.06%) (note |
82.77% (ZF T :47.68%%97.06% ) (fitsHi)

EMERZREENAEEH DB AERAE

TH-
Fair value
Financial instrument Fair value as at hierarchy
$BIA RT5IBHZATE DTERE
Derivative component of convertible
loan notes 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
TRRERREZITETIES “B-RE “T-n%
TZA=+-8 TZA=1-A
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TEL
- Financial liabilities (67,594) (856,225)  Level 3 Valuation technigue:
-tBER £=E B
Key observable inputs:
BRITBZGARE:
Risk-free rate
BRRME
Effective interest Rate
ERAE
Key unobservable inputs:
BRAIBEZEAGE:
\olatility
%0
Notes: iz
i) An increase in the volatility used in isolation would result in an increase in the i)

fair value measurement of the derivative component of convertible loan notes

classified as financial liabilities, and vice versa. A 10 % increase or decrease
in the volatility with all other variables constant, the fair value of derivative

component of convertible loan notes classified as financial liabilities at 31

December 2016 and 2015 would not have material change.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 4. €T A (&)

Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position (continued)

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015.

Please refer to Note 27 for the reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

measurements.

Valuation process

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for the fair value measurements are determined by the directors

of the Company and the independent qualified valuer.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages independent qualified
valuer to perform the valuation. The directors of the Company
work closely with the independent qualified valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The directors
of the Company will review the cause of fluctuations in fair value of the

assets and liabilities semi-annually.

NEE (&)
NMrEMBERRKRER 2 A FEE
T2 (&)
REBEZE-_ZE-R"EFR-ZT—AF+A
=t —HLEFE FZERESEAREL-

EHE=BATEIEZYE HEMME
27 °

HERE

AEEBHAEREERMERRORAT
st & AFEHBEM 2B BERTR
BABBEARDES RBTA G RHER

B

REAEERBBZATER AEEER
AESZTSABRESE - HEEREE—
B ABE ~AEEeZBEIAERME
BETHE - ARRESRBIAERME
B &% A 1 BESIIR A (E B 2 8 8 [ E R
LRBABE AAREEHEFFREEE
LRAaEATERSZEH-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—T—"F+_A=+—HILFE

41.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES N AMBLARZEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has interests in the RMERR AABIR T EEN B R E %
following principal subsidiaries: A

Nominal value of

Place of paid-up share/ Class of Proportion of Proportion of voting power
Company incorporation  registered capital shares held ownership interest held by the Company Principal activities
BARG /2R
e AMAILE EACEE FisRAER RRERSLA RARFBREEL D TEEY
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE  ZET-RF ZB-RE  —E-1F
Held directly: % % % %
ERRA
Technology Venture Investments BV US$1,000 Ordinary 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited EBRLHE 10007 il REER
North Asia Precious Metals Group  BVI US$60,000 Ordinary 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited EBELBE  60,000%TT L@ RERR
Guang Cheng Group Limited BVI US$1 Ordinary 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
EREBARAR ERRUNE 1ER Ei REER
Sanmu Investment Holding BVI USS1 Ordinary 100 - 100 - Investment Holding
Limited EBRNME 1ET L@ RERR
Held indirectly:
BERE:
Sequent China/ Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 100 100 Distribution of information
Hong Kong Limited technology products and
provision of computer
technology services
B 10,0007% 7T L@ AHEAMBERR
RETRRIRS
Technology Venture (Software) BVI US$1,000 Ordinary 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited LRBEZES  1000ETL L REER
Topasia Computer Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 100 100 Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services
BRERARAR B 10,0007% 7T L@ AHEAMBERR
RETRRIRS
Topsoft Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 100 100 Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services
RERHBRAR Ek 10,0007 il PEEAMBERR
REBERITRS
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e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE

41.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Nominal value of

Place of paid-up share/ Class of
Company incorporation  registered capital shares held
BARR/ER
e AMELEE ERZEE fisRHRR
Held indirectly:
RERE:
# Topasia Tech (Shanghai) Limited  The PRC US$3,800,000 Registered Capital
BEHR(LE)ERAA P 3,800,000 70 HHER
“Topasia IT (Shanghai) Limited The PRC US$1,000,000 Registered Capital
BEESHERS E 1,000,000% T AMER
(E8)BRAR
Rong Xin Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary
REHBERAR £k 10,000 10 R
Lexing Holdings Limited BVI US$1 Ordinary
SRERERAT ERRUHE 1ET il
Hong Kong OEPC Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary
FRERERTLOERAR £k 10,000 10 R
“Jiangxi Wantai Enterprise Co., The PRC RMB113,000,000 Registered Capital
Ltd
IRBREEERAA E AR AMER
113,000,000
*Jiangxi Hengchuang Energy The PRC RMB60,300,000 Registered Capital
Investments Co., Ltd
IRERIRREFRAR P E ARE AMER
60,300,0007C
“Jiangxi Hengpuwei Energy The PRC RMB51,350,000 Registered Capital
Investments Co., Ltd
IRBEHERREAERAA  HE AR AMER
51,350,0007C
*Shanxi Ruiying Investment and ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 Registered Capital
Management Co., Ltd
UERREEERERAA Gk AR AMER
10,000,0007¢
“Taiyuan Zhituo Investment The PRC RMB1,100,000 Registered Capital
Consultant Co., Ltd
ARTERREERAERAR & AR AMER
1,100,000
*Shanxi Changtong Energy Share  The PRC RMB100,000,000 Registered Capital
Co., Ltd
WEERERERABRAA P E ARE AMER
100,000,0007¢

NRHBRAZKRE (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest

BRERRLA
2016 2015
—E-XE CZT-EHF
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Proportion of voting power

held by the Company
RARFEREELH
2016 2015
“B-RXE -T-1F%
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

IRER

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

DHEARHERRREREMR
KR

Systems integration services

and software solutions

FRERBBEREABAAR
Investment holding
RARK

Investment holding

REARR

Investment holding
RARK

Coal Operation
s
Coal trading and new energy

development
BRE S RAERRE

Energy wholesale and
investment
ERRERRE

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding
REER
Energy development and

equipment trading
ERAERREES
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—T—"F+_A=+—HILFE

= 3 =
41.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) NREBARZRE (&)
Nominal value of
Place of paid-up share/ Class of Proportion of Proportion of voting power
Company incorporation  registered capital shares held ownership interest held by the Company Principal activities
BARR /2R
e AMEIEYE ERZEE FsRHRH BERERLS RAAAFEREELA TEXH
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-xE -T-1% ZB-Af C-T-1fF
Held indirectly: % % % %
RERE:
Shanxi coal * The PRC RMB370,000,000 Registered Capital 49 49 56 56 Coal operating and trading
ey P AR AMER BREBRES
370,000,0007
Jinxin * The PRC RMB50,080,000 Registered Capital 49 49 56 56 Coal mine development
2a P AR AMER RS
50,080,0007C
Bolong* The PRC RMB23,924,200 Registered Capital 49 49 56 56 Coal mine development
e P AR AMER RS
23,924,2007C
Liaoyuan * The PRC RMB2,000,000 Registered Capital 49 49 56 56 Coal mine development
ER P AR¥2,000,0007 AMER RS
Fuchang * The PRC RMB2,000,000 Registered Capital 34 34 56 56 Coal mine development
e P E AR 2,000,000 AMER FRRE
Xinfeng * The PRC RMB62,000,000 Registered Capital 49 49 56 56 Coal mine development
i P AR AMER RS
62,000,0007C
Parkson Global Investments Samoa US$1 Ordinary 100 100 100 100 Investment Holding
Limited
BERRREABRAT EED e il REER
Bilion Zone Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 100 100 Investment Holding
KBEERERAR &k 10,000 70 i REER
Shanxi Guanghui Corporate The PRC RMB$10,000,000 Registered Capital 100 100 100 100 T service, system
Management Consultancy integration, sales of
Limited equipments and services
UEESCXERFABRAA  HH AR% AMER BARBIRS ZREN #H
10,000,0007¢ ERBERRB
Jiang Xi Jin Chuang Information ~ The PRC RMB$2,000,000 Registered Capital 100 100 100 100 T service, system integration
Technology Limited
IALEEERIERAR P AR%2,000,0007 AMER BABRIRE REEK
Sky Rainbow Ventured Limited BVI USD §1 Ordinary Share 100 - 100 - Investment Holding
RIEIRERAT ERRUHE 1ET EAaR REER
Seasonal Global Investment Co.  Cambodia USD$10,000 Ordinary Share 100 - 100 - Cultivation and processing of
Limited cassava starch for sale
RiEE 10,000% 7T LER BERMIAZRAHHE
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e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE

41.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Nominal value of

N RHBRFRZKRE (&)

Place of paid-up share/ Class of Proportion of Proportion of voting power
Company incorporation  registered capital shares held ownership interest held by the Company Principal activities
BARR/ER
e AMAIHE EEXZEE fisRHRR BERERLS ARAFEREELA TEXH
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-xE C-T-Rf ZEB-x§ -T-1f
Held indirectly: % % % %
RERE:
Snmu High Tech Argo Research  Samoa USD $1 Ordinary Share 100 - 100 - Dormant
and Development Limited BED 1= Lak EaE
Snmu High Tech Argo Research ~ Hong Kong HKS$1 Ordinary Share 100 - 100 - Dormant
and Development (Hong Kong) ~ & BT Lk TREK
Limited
Sunshine Agricultural Investment  Cambodia USD$1 Ordinary Share 100 - 100 - Dormant
Limited RER 1% TER TREH
North Asia Financial Investments ~ Hong Kong HKS$1 Ordinary Share 100 - 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited
FReRREARERAT ik BT LaR REER
LEREEH ORI BERAF  PRC - Registered capital 100 - 100 - Dormant
E - AMER HREH
EESBER(FINERAA™  PRC - Registered capital 100 - 100 - Dormant
i - AMER Imex
# English name is for identification purpose only # B EBEMBR

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as at the
end of the year or at any time during both years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015.

Although the Group only held 49% of equity in interest in Shanxi coal,
Jinxin, Bolong, Liaoyuan, and 34% equity in Fuchang, the directors of the
Company concluded that the Group has control over these companies on
the basis as set out in Note 4.

= I BRERR ORI BRAF and LB EEIER ORI BRIEF are
incorporated in the PRC with a registered capital of RMB$30,000,000 and
RMB$300,000,000 respectively, which have not been paid up by their
holding Company as at 31 December 2016.

BENBADREEANFERINBES
E-AFR=F-BEF+=A=t+—BLM
A BN REE 2 EEES

i BEASEERFHLUARRK £8 HER
BRZ 49% LA T AR & 2 34% I - HEAR
AEEERA RBHEARMBELE  AE
BHEEZERAZIESE-

iiE TR ERN ORI AR AR KRILE S F
A% CRY) BRA R P B - H
& A5 Bl A A R #30,000,0007T & A
R #300,000,0007 ' R =ZFE—RF+=
A=+—BMAARFERARME -
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41.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) N AMBLARIZEE (&)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non- FEERFERERZIFZEMNB LA
controlling interests: 15
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the TREJNFEERFERERZ 2 AEEFES
Group that have material non-controlling interests: BB A mEFE
Place of Voting power Profit/(Loss)
incorporation and Proportion of held by the allocated to Accumulated
principal place of ownership non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of the subsidiary business interest interests interests interests
PWFFER
EMAR LR AWMFEER BEoAE/
MEBAREHE IEEENE BEERERLLAH BRZER (B1]) A ERRES
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL FET
2016
“E-RE
Shanxi Coal and its subsidiaries ~ The PRC 51% 44% 83,593 2,935,887
VL7 e e EL T A HE
2015
—T-hF
Shanxi Coal and its subsidiaries ~ The PRC 51% 44% (1,399,451) 2,945,506
W7 R e e E T 8 i
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group has only 49% RZE—RENZZE—RAF+=A=1+—
ownership in Shanxi Coal, the directors of the Company concluded that H AEEEES LR Z490%EEE K
the Group has control over Shanxi Coal on the basis of set out in Note NABEFRA RBHFAMSELE A&EH
4. The 51% ownership interests in Shanxi Coal are owned by Shanxi A L PR oz PR o L PR R 251 %
Coal Transportation and Sales Group Co., Ltd (41%) and LI FR4ERE % ARERILAREREFEEBRBRATEE%
E@MBEREITAF(10%). FALAEREXEBEGREETAAER
10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZT—"F+_A=+—HILFE

41.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) N RAMBARZRE (&)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group'’s subsidiaries REBEASERFERER 2MB AR M
that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The BEMBEZI M T - Tl 2B AR E
summarised financial information below represents amounts before REENEHAT R

intra-group eliminations.

Shanxi Coal and its subsidiaries 2016 2015
AR REHE DR —E-XKF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Current assets REBEE 136,715 62,816
Non-current assets ERBEE 9,402,905 9,078,670
Current liabilities REBE (4,687,797) (3,488,951)
Non-current liabilities ERBELE (1,939,967) (2,976,758)
Equity attributable to owners RARER AEL#ER
of the Company (24,031) (269,729)
Non-controlling interests IEVERER 2,935,887 2,945,506
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41.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) NRAMEBARZRE (&)

Shanxi Coal and its subsidiaries 2016 2015
WL 7 A e 2 ELFE A R —E-XREF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAET
Revenue WA 93,225 5,590
Expenses X (380,267) (186,721)
Impairment losses B E 18 (390,600) (3,083,454)
Reversal of impairment losses B 1B 1,044,397 -
Profit (loss) for the year FEmMN (EE) 259,316 (2,583,322)
Loss attributable to RAGHER AEIEERE
owners of the Company 175,724 (1,183,871)
Loss attributable to FIERER LR
non-controlling interests 83,593 (1,399,451)
Profit (loss) for the year FEmMN (EE) 256,511 (2,583,322)
Other comprehensive expense NAEER AEAS
attributable to owners of the Company EmEmEAx (73,240) (151,207)
Other comprehensive expense FEVERR M 2 AL
attributable to non-controlling interests HEme2mEAX (93,212) (186,302)
Other comprehensive expense FREEMEERX
for the year (166,452) (337,509)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) A &% A A B
attributable to owners of the Company 2mElE (A ®58 102,484 (1,335,078)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FEIE R M AR PG
attributable to non-controlling interests 2Eika (%) 8%E (9,619) (1,585,753)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) FE 2 E W (Bl ) &%
for the year 92,865 (2,920,831)
Net cash outflow from operating activities 4% & & &35 £ 7 /R 58 (6,867) (127,920)
Net cash outflow from investing activities & & BB & 7 B F 58 (171,024) (65,690)
Net cash inflow from financing activities Bl & EEIR &R AFEE 182,132 193,762
Net cash inflow WRERAFE 4,241 152
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